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About Lotterywest

Four core values underpin all that we do:
Rewarding 
We seek to ensure that the experience of all those with  
whom we come into contact – players, grant seekers, 
business partners and the community as a whole, will 
be a valued and rewarding one and that all will be 
treated with courtesy and respect.

Inspiring 
We motivate, encourage and inspire ourselves and 
others to achieve greater things for the benefit of the 
community of Western Australia. 

Trusted 
We are honest, reliable and trustworthy. We conduct 
ourselves professionally with the highest standards of 
integrity and excellence in all our business operations  
and in our relationships with all our stakeholders. 

Engaging 
We actively seek relationships with all our stakeholders 
based on principles of mutual respect and strive to 
enhance the achievement of their goals and ours.

Our vision
Building a better Western Australia together.

Our purpose
To enhance the quality of life and wellbeing for all Western Australians through the funding and support we 
provide to our beneficiaries and by running our lottery business with excellence and integrity. 

Our values
Lotterywest is an organisation committed to serving the community of Western Australia with excellence  
and integrity. 

In enacting these values, we recognise the diversity of our stakeholders and strive for an approach which 
balances their different needs and expectations. 

Visionary van 
hits the road

Lotterywest has paid for this Vision  
Van and all the fancy equipment we have  
in it. Now we have to really make the most  
of it and get on the road to give country 
patients equal opportunities to have the  
best eye treatment.
Dr Angus Turner

Dr Angus Turner is Director of the Lions Outback Vision Van. 
While working in country areas of WA he has experienced 
first-hand the frustrating lack of access to modern equipment 
to treat eye conditions.

His visionary solution is the Lotterywest supported Lions 
Outback Vision Van. This is a 20 metre long rig fitted with 
technology to deliver state of the art eye care to patients in 
regional Western Australia.

Dr Turner said the van would travel more than 24,000 kms 
each year and had the capacity to treat up to 200 people  
per week.
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Highlights 2015/16

Total sales 

$889.5 million
Prizes allocated 

to Western Australian 
winners 

$600.9 million
Contribution back to 

the Western Australian 
community 

$281.4 million

$317.6  
million

$58.7  
million

$96.1  
million

$3.7  
million

$156.4  
million

$188.3  
million

$55.2  
million

$12.5  
million

$1.0  
million

Product sales
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Annual lottery sales and return to the community 2012-16
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Our games
Total sales of $889.5 million 
Increase of 7.6% on last financial year

Our distribution channels
529 retail outlets – 93% of total sales

Play Online service – 7% of total sales (of which 71% of  
those sales are via Play Online and 29% through the 
Lotterywest Mobile App)

Our players
Total annual sales per Western Australian adult  
of $424.88 (people over the age of 16)

Total sales Total annual sales per Western Australian adult Total return to the community

Our beneficiaries
Allocated $281.4 million to the Western Australian community:* 

$130 million to the State’s health services and hospitals 

$16.3 million to Sport and Recreation

$16.3 million to Culture and the Arts

$118.9 million approved in Lotterywest direct grants, including:

•  $7.6 million to The University of Western Australia for the 
Perth International Arts Festival

•  $7.6 million to ScreenWest for investment in the Western 
Australian screen industry

•  $103.7 million to not-for-profit organisations and local 
government authorities

Lotterywest approved 963 grants to 814 different not-for-profit 
organisations and local government authorities

*Including $3.8 million reallocated from prior years
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Launch of the WA Health Translation Network (WAHTN). Lotterywest Chair 
- Heather Zampatti with WAHTN Chair - Malcolm McCusker, QC.
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Chair’s summary 
In my first year as the Chair of the Lotterywest Board, I’m 
delighted to present the Annual Report in which Lotterywest 
has achieved record sales. 

Lotterywest prides itself on running a sustainable and 
responsible organisation. It continues to excite West 
Australians in the dream of winning whilst returning proceeds 
back to the community. It’s a model that is admired by many 
as a unique State asset.

In challenging economic times, Lotterywest continued to meet 
the needs of our community. This was achieved through direct 
grants to not-for-profit organisations and local government 
authorities and via statutory provisions to health, sports and 
the arts. 

Lotterywest’s contribution totalled $281.4 
million with 963 direct grants approved.

Lotterywest enjoyed a pleasing result in allocated prizes to 
lucky winners with $600.9 million returned to West Australian 
players on both lottery and Scratch’n’Win games. 

This was made possible through the network of 529 retailers 
who work tirelessly to sell games to players each week and 
celebrate with thousands of winners each year. I sincerely 
thank them for their commitment and hard work.

Lotterywest works in partnership with so many important 
organisations that enrich the lives of all West Australians. 

I recently had the privilege of attending a $3.2 million grant 
presentation to the WA Health Translation Network. The 
Network brings together all of the State’s universities, hospitals 
and medical research institutes. The aim is to improve practical 

health outcomes for the WA public through a collaborative, 
consumer focused approach.

The Lotterywest Grant will support the establishment of the 
Consumer Community Health Advocacy Network, and a mass 
spectrometer to assist the understanding of environmental 
impacts in medical research. The Advocacy Network will allow 
consumers to play a direct role in the future direction of health 
research in our State. 

I am particularly proud that 
Lotterywest was able to support 
communities and special interest groups. 
Grants towards local events also brought 
people together to celebrate the cultural 
diversity of our State.

Lotterywest has continued to deliver on its five year strategic 
plan (2014-18) which guides the organisation in its delivery 
of products and services. The plan directs a distribution 
approach, where technology is becoming a key driver of 
the business model both in-store and online. It also guides 
communications and branding to engage a new generation of 
players whilst continuing to remain relevant to existing players. 
Furthermore, it ensures that the capacity of Lotterywest’s 
people and business systems remains contemporary and 
optimised for the future. 

The Board is confident the organisation is well prepared to 
continue the sustainable growth of the organisation.

I would to like to make special mention of my predecessor 
Mr John Atkins, and thank him for his excellent leadership 

during his six years as Chair. I also thank and acknowledge 
my fellow Board Members for their commitment and service to 
Lotterywest. 

I also extend sincere thanks and appreciation to the Premier 
as Lotterywest’s reporting Minister and thank him for his public 
support of Lotterywest and his leadership. 

Finally, I thank CEO Paul Andrew and his Leadership Team, 
along with the committed team at Lotterywest for the excellent 
results this year. 

Heather Zampatti 
Chair
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CEO’s foreword
It has been another year of strong growth at Lotterywest with 
the people of Western Australia continuing their support for 
the products and services we provide. Last year proved, once 
again, that we are the lucky State with several record breaking 
wins. This included our biggest ever prize of $50 million to a 
Powerball winner in July. 

Our sales were up 7.6% on the previous 
financial year, achieving $889.5 million. 

This was a sales revenue turn-around of $63.2 million on the 
previous year.

We launched the first new game in twenty years, ‘Set for 
Life’ offering players the chance to win $20,000 a year for 20 
years. The game launched successfully and has captured the 
imagination of West Australian players. Our national share of 
sales was higher than other games in the portfolio.

Equally we are proud that the WA community we serve 
continued to reap the benefits of our success with $281.4 
million being returned by way of Lotterywest Grants. Our grants 
program is unique to WA and I’m reminded of this consistently 
when visiting many grant groups. 

This year, I’ve had the pleasure of seeing the North West 
operations of the Royal Flying Doctor Service and celebrating 
with Anglicare their 40th anniversary. We are privileged to 
support many important organisations and projects. Every time 
we see a ‘Lotterywest supported’ sign in the community, we 
are reminded of the breadth and impact of our grants. 

To ensure we continue our relevance and service to our players 
and beneficiaries, this financial year we have undertaken 
an organisational functional review. This has culminated in 
a new organisational structure and initiatives to improve our 
customer engagement and organisational performance.

Lotterywest team – Lucy, Paul Andrew and Michelle at the launch  
of the Royal Flying Doctor Service’s new facility in Broome.
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Our Retail Transformation Program (see Page 28) aims to 
provide a strong brand representation and contemporary play 
experience through the installation of new signage, digital 
point of sale, technology and a modern shop fit into our 529 
stores. Six concept stores have been completed. Over the next 
financial year, the roll out will continue across the network.

One of our many strengths is our retailers who are a driving force 
in assisting Lotterywest to be such a successful organisation. 
We will continue to grow and develop this important area of our 
business. It is where Lotterywest can play its part in developing 
the sustainability of the small business sector in WA. 

We have placed significant focus on our digital strategy. 
This includes the development of a new website due to be 
launched in September 2016 and the launch of the Mobile 
App, which has been well received by players. We are also 
streamlining the grants online application process to ensure 
that applicants have an improved user experience.

Later this year, Lotterywest will move to a new headquarters 
in Station Street in Subiaco. We will also relocate our 
warehouse to a new premises in Osborne Park. We see 
this as a key component of our transformation to ensure 
our business environment provides a greater focus on our 
customer engagement and service.

The industry that Lotterywest operates within has 
undergone some significant changes in recent times. 
Specifically a number of betting agencies using Lotterywest 
and other authentic lottery products to benefit their own 
businesses and shareholders. It is important to remember 
that by playing Lotterywest Games, either online or through 
our extensive retail network, the proceeds stay in WA and 
are distributed through our grants program. Participating in 
lotteries through betting and on-selling agencies will only 
result in profits going out of the State. Any potential benefits 
will be lost to WA.

My message to all our players is 
simple, Lotterywest is West Australian 
owned, so please help us support the 
communities that we support through 
our grants program by continuing to 
play with Lotterywest.

I would like to acknowledge the Lotterywest staff for an 
outstanding financial result this year. I also want to recognise 
their commitment to the work of Lotterywest and the 
organisational change necessary for Lotterywest to meet the 
future opportunities and challenges within a highly competitive 
industry. Their commitment and passion has contributed to 
another fabulous year of progress and achievements. 

The Board has been instrumental in its direction and 
support in advancing our organisation. I would like to thank 
the Board Members for their leadership and dedication and 
acknowledge past Chair Mr John Atkins and welcome new 
Chair Ms Heather Zampatti. The skill and expertise of our 
Board gives us great confidence in our future.

To the Premier, the Hon Colin Barnett MLA, as our Minister and 
Special Advisor John Hammond, I would like to thank you for 
your leadership and strong public advocacy of Lotterywest. 

I’m proud to lead such an important organisation that 
makes a significant impact on the lives of all West 
Australians. To all our players who dare to dream each 
week and our retailers, we thank you for the difference you 
make to your community. 

 

Paul Andrew 
CEO

Philip Lu’s store was put on the map when they sold WA’s 
largest ever Lotto prize. The $50 million Powerball prize was 
coincidentally the 50th Division 1 winner for 2015 and came just 
two years after Philip took over the business. 

It was quite exciting to sell such a 
momentous prize, a once in a life time 
experience. Armadale is a lucky area and as 
well as selling winners I’ve found it interesting 
to manage the people in my store and be more 
hands on with the customers. I love meeting  
people and hearing their experiences.

Retailer profile 
newsXpress Armadale Central
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140 kilometres south of Perth stands Patricia Forward’s 
store, Harvey Newsagency, which was thrust into the 
spotlight after selling a $40 million winning OZ Lotto ticket 
in March 2016. It remains the only $40 million ticket sold in 
WA and the second largest prize in Lotterywest’s history. 

We were shocked when we heard the 
news; it was very uplifting for our community 
in the midst of the fires we’d recently been 
through. We’d been wishing for our store 
to sell a big winner for so long and then it 
happened! Our customer count tripled after 
the news and it was great fun in the store. 
I really enjoy giving my customers winning 
tickets and seeing the expression on their 
faces when they realise they’ve got a prize. 
Some have been speechless and even cried 
from happiness.

Retailer profile 
Harvey Newsagency

2015/16  
Where the 

money came 
from 

2015/16  
Where the 

money  
went

  Saturday Lotto 35%
  Powerball 21%
  Oz Lotto 17%
  Scratch’n’Win 11%
  Monday & Wednesday Lotto 6%
  Set for Life 6%
  Other games 2%
  Interest 1%
  Forefeited prizes 1%
  Retailer fees 0.5%
  Other 1%

  Prizes 55%
  Return to WA community 30%
  Retailer commissions 7%
  Supplies and services 4%
  Employee benefits 3%
  Depreciation/amortsation 1%
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Organisational structure

Board of Commissioners
Heather Zampatti (Chair)

Miriam Borthwick
Stephen Carre
Andrea Hall

Maria Harries
Garry Trinder

Chief Executive Officer
Paul Andrew

Minister Responsible
Hon. Colin Barnett MLA 

Premier

Executive Support

Corporate 
Services

General Manager
Jeremy Hubble

Audit and Risk Management

Contract Management

Facilities Management

Financial Management

Governance and Legal

Human Resources and 
Organisational Development

Information Communications, 
Security and Technology

Project Management

Strategic Development

A/General Manager
Alec James

Bloc and Industry Relations

Business Intelligence 
and Analytics

Business Systems Support 
and Maintenance Innovation

Marketing Analysis

Product and Channel 
Development

Strategic Planning

Marketing & Brand 
Development

General Manager
Honor Clarke

Brand Management

Digital Channel  
Development

Direct Marketing

Loyalty and Engagement

Mass Marketing

Public Relations

Grants & Community 
Development

General Manager
Jacquie Thomson

Community Engagement 
and Development

Grant Assessment

Grant Management

Grants Strategy  
and Governance

Industry and Stakeholder 
Support and Engagement

Lottery  
Operations

General Manager
Maree Brown

Business Development 
and Sales

Customer Services

Gaming Product 
Developments

Gaming System Management

Retail Network Planning, 
Management and Support
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Corporate structure - Board of Management
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Dr Maria Harries

Dr Maria Harries joined the 
Board in June 2011.

Dr Harries runs her own 
evaluation and management 
consulting business. She holds 
the position of Senior Honorary 
Fellow at The University of 
Western Australia (UWA) where 
she worked as an academic for 
over twenty years. She is also 
an Adjunct Professor at Curtin 
University engaged in research 
development.

Dr Harries has had a forty 
year career in human services. 
She holds original degrees in 
Psychology and Politics from 
the University of Tasmania and 
Social Work from UWA. She 
also has a Masters in Social 
Administration from Flinders 
University and a PhD from 
Murdoch University. During 
her career she has developed 
a reputation as a leader in 
a diversity of areas including 
mental health, child and family 
welfare, ethics, research, 
management and governance.

She sits on a variety of boards 
and has chaired a number 
of organisations including 
MercyCare WA, a large not-for-
profit organisation that provides 
health, aged care, family and 
community services.

Dr Harries was awarded an 
Order of Australia (AM) in 2004.

Ms Miriam Borthwick

Ms Miriam Borthwick joined the 
Board in April 2015.

She is an experienced journalist, 
strategic communications 
specialist and media relations 
advisor with more than 25 years 
working in the media, government 
and corporate sectors.

She provides media and 
presentation skills training and 
regularly facilitates professional 
panel discussions for a diverse 
range of clients.

Ms Borthwick was WA's first 
female State politics reporter 
for ABC TV News. She was an 
award winning senior reporter 
for The 7.30 Report and a political 
panellist on ABC Radio.

Ms Borthwick is currently a 
Board Member of Rocky Bay and 
immediate past President of the 
Board of the Spina Bifida and 
Hydrocephalus Association of WA 
and is a Member of the Australian 
Institute of Company Directors.

Ms Heather Zampatti 

Ms Heather Zampatti is 
the Chair of the Lotterywest 
Board and was appointed in 
September 2015. 

Heather is currently Head of 
Wealth Management at Bell 
Potter Securities.

She also sits on the Boards of 
Osteoporosis Australia, Chief 
Executive Women (CEW) and the 
University of Western Australia 
University Club. Ms Zampatti 
is a member of the Australian 
Government Financial Sector 
Advisory Council, ASIC 
Financial Services Consultative 
Committee and the WA 
Regional Council of FINSIA.

Formerly the Chair of the 
Princess Margaret Foundation, 
Ms Zampatti brings a strong 
background in community 
support to the Lotterywest 
Board. 

Ms Zampatti has previously 
served as a Board member 
of the Australian Government 
Takeovers Panel, West 
Australian Ballet, UWA Strategic 
Resources Committee, pSivida, 
The Hunger Project (Australia) 
and the Australian Institute of 
Management. 

Heather is a graduate of The 
University of Western Australia 
(UWA) with a Bachelor of 
Science (BSc) and Diploma of 
Education (Dip Ed). She is a 
Certified Financial Planner (CFP).

Mr Stephen Carre

Mr Stephen Carre joined the 
Lotterywest Board in December 
2013.

Mr Carre brings a wealth 
of experience as a small 
business owner of his multi-
award winning IGA store 
in Swanbourne. He also 
has interests in food and 
distribution as the Managing 
Director of Farm to Table which 
supports famers to distribute 
their products to independent 
retailers and supermarkets.

He has a strong background 
in business improvement, 
developed during his 30 year 
career in banking and small 
business. Mr Carre has held 
senior roles at Bankwest 
and worked nationally with 
Westpac, NAB and IAG. He 
is a CPA and has a business 
degree and MBA. He is a 
Fellow of the Australian Institute 
of Company Directors.

Mr Carre has also worked 
with numerous not-for-profit 
organisations including those 
providing services to the 
homeless, disadvantaged 
people and the elderly.

Ms Andrea Hall

Ms Andrea Hall joined the 
Lotterywest Board in March 
2012.

Ms Hall FCA GAICD is a Board 
Member of the Insurance 
Commission of Western 
Australia, Fremantle Football 
Club and a Senate member 
of Murdoch University. Further, 
Ms Hall is Chair of Community 
First International Ltd. She is 
either the Chair or member 
of their Audit & Risk / Finance 
Committees. 

Ms Hall is a former KPMG Risk 
Consulting Partner. She has 
over 20 years’ experience in 
risk management, financial 
management, internal audit, 
external audit and board, 
corporate and operational 
governance. Industry segments 
she has worked with include 
healthcare, insurance, mining, 
transport, mining services, 
property and government.

Ms Hall is also a former non-
executive director of Gryphon 
Minerals Ltd (then ASX200) 
and chaired their Audit & Risk 
Committee. She is a former 
Chair and member of the 
WA Council for the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants in 
Australia and New Zealand, 
and a former non-executive 
director of Black Swan Health.

Mr Garry Trinder

Mr Garry Trinder joined the 
Board in December 2011.

Before he retired Mr Trinder 
was Chief Information Officer at 
Edith Cowan University. He has 
more than 45 years’ experience 
in the information technology 
industry in both private and 
government sectors.

In 2007, he was awarded 
the prestigious WA 
Information Technology 
and Telecommunications 
Award which recognised his 
outstanding contribution to the 
State's ICT industry. He is also a 
Fellow, Honorary Life Member 
and Past National President of 
the Australian Computer Society 
(ACS).

Before he joined Edith Cowan 
University, Mr Trinder held a 
range of senior consultancy 
and management roles for 
groups including Mercy Care, 
BHP Iron Ore and Arthur Young.

Mr Trinder served a four year 
term as an Elected Member 
on the City of Subiaco Council, 
including two years as Deputy 
Mayor.

L-R: Mr Stephen Carre, Ms Andrea Hall, Mr Garry Trinder, Ms Heather Zampatti (Chair), Dr Maria Harris, Mr Paul Andrew (CEO), Ms Miriam Borthwick.
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Corporate structure - Leadership Team
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Ms Maree Brown 
General Manager, 
Lottery Operations

Ms Maree Brown is responsible 
for leading the lottery operations, 
which includes gaming, channel 
and product development. She 
also heads management and 
development of the retail network, 
and services and support to our 
broad customer-base including 
retailers, players and grant 
customers. 

Maree took up her current role in 
2006, having managed our Retail 
Distribution and Operations section 
since 2003. She has a Bachelor of 
Arts from the University of Western 
Australia. 

Mr Paul Andrew 
CEO

Mr Paul Andrew joined Lotterywest 
in February 2015. He is responsible 
for the organisation’s day to day 
operations and the growth and 
development of Lotterywest through 
business and strategic frameworks.

Paul has over 30 years work 
experience within government and 
the not-for-profit sector. In his most 
recent role, Paul was the Chief 
Executive Officer of Surf Life Saving 
Western Australia (SLSWA) for nine 
and a half years. During his tenure 
with SLSWA, Paul navigated the 
organisation through a period of 
significant operational, membership 
and financial growth and stability.

Before he took up this role, Paul held 
the position of Director, Corporate 
Services at St John of God Health 
Care Murdoch. He was also 
Manager, Employee and Community 
Relations at the Catholic Education 
Office in WA.

Paul holds a Bachelor of Business in 
Human Resource Management and 
Industrial Relations. He has extensive 
experience in leadership, strategic 
planning, business growth and 
development.

Paul has a strong community focus. 
He remains an active surf lifesaver 
and a former President of the City of 
Perth Surf Life Saving Club. Paul was 
the former Board Chair of Our Lady 
of Good Counsel Catholic School and 
former Deputy Chair of the Western 
Australian Sports Federation.

Ms Jacquie Thomson 
General Manager, Grants and 
Community Development 

Ms Jacquie Thomson is responsible 
for ensuring the effective management 
of Lotterywest’s direct grants program 
and support and advice to the West 
Australian not-for-profit sector.

She has a Bachelor of Arts (Social 
Sciences) from the Western Australian 
Institute of Technology (now Curtin 
University) and a Graduate Certificate 
in Management from Deakin 
University.

Jacquie has worked in community 
development for more than 25 years. 
Before joining Lotterywest in 1994, 
she worked in the not-for-profit sector 
in the areas of domestic violence, 
youth accommodation, mental health 
and as a community development 
practitioner. 

After undertaking a variety of grants 
assessment, management, policy 
development and strategic planning 
roles for Lotterywest, Jacquie took up 
her current role in 2003.

Mr Jeremy Hubble 
General Manager,  
Corporate Services and  
Chief Financial Officer

Mr Jeremy Hubble is responsible 
for the financial, human resource, 
information, physical and technology 
related support functions critical to 
Lotterywest’s operations. In addition, 
he is also responsible for overarching 
financial management, governance, 
statutory compliance and technology 
partner for the business critical 
gaming system. 

Jeremy is a qualified Chartered 
Accountant with substantial 
experience in commerce and 
government. He holds a Bachelor 
of Business degree and a Master 
of Business Administration. He also 
has extensive corporate governance 
experience and is a member of 
the Australian Institute of Company 
Directors.

Before he joined Lotterywest in March 
2016, Jeremy was a senior executive 
in both State and local government 
for 20 years. Jeremy has held senior 
positions with a major international 
chartered accounting firm and public 
commercial entities.

Ms Honor Clarke 
General Manager, Marketing and 
Brand Development

Ms Honor Clarke heads up the 
Marketing and Brand Development 
team. She brings her passion for 
leading teams and brands and has 
been doing this work for over 20 
years across the UK, Asia, Australia 
and New Zealand.

With her brand strategist hat on, she 
understands what makes brands 
different and leads the team in 
formulating and executing marketing 
strategies to deliver business 
objectives. She also inspires and 
motivates the team to think about 
how today’s digital consumers 
engage with Lotterywest. She has 
developed strategies for leading 
brands including; Singapore Pools, 
Telstra, 3 Mobiles, Australian Olympic 
Committee and Rabobank. 

Honor has an MBA, Business and 
Finance (major in Marketing) from 
Macquarie University and has been 
CPM accredited since 2014.

Her community service focus is 
coaching and redefining what is 
possible for people and what matters 
most to them.

L-R: Ms Jacquie Thomson, Mr Jeremy Hubble, Mr Paul Andrew (CEO), Ms Maree Brown, Ms Honor Clarke.
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Agency Performance Management Framework
The State Government’s broad, high level goals are supported at an agency level by specific outcomes. The following table shows the alignment between the Government goals and 
Lotterywest’s strategic objectives, key performance indicators, measures and results. 

Government Goal Objectives Measures Key Performance Indicator Results

Greater focus on achieving results 
in key service delivery areas 
for the benefit of all Western 
Australians.

Support the community of 
Western Australia through our 
grants program.

Grants administration, evaluation and 
distribution.

Total returns to beneficiaries  
per capita [S].

Total allocation to beneficiaries 
as a % of sales [S].

$106.98 

31.6%

Responsibly managing the State’s 
finances through the efficient 
and effective delivery of services, 
encouraging economic activity 
and reducing regulatory burdens 
on the private sector.

Efficiently administer the lottery in 
Western Australia.

Provision of Lotto and Scratch’n’Win 
products to the public.

Provision of grants and community 
development services to the public.

Lottery expenses as a % of 
sales [S]. 

Grant expenses as a % of  
direct grants approved [S].

5.9% 

13.5%

Ensuring that economic activity 
is managed in a socially and 
environmentally responsible 
manner for the long-term benefit 
of the State.

Provide a responsible lottery 
service for Western Australia. 

Accreditation process through World 
Lottery Association.

Sales per adult [S].

‘Play Responsibly’ program 
offered in line with World 
Lottery Association Responsible 
Gaming Framework.

$424.88

Greater focus on service delivery, 
infrastructure investment and 
economic development to improve 
the overall quality of life in remote 
and regional areas.

Ensure that our products and 
services are accessible to all 
people living in our State.

Increase awareness of the grants 
program in remote and regional 
areas.

Annual distribution planning.  
Raising awareness of Play Online. 

Establishing operational structure to 
increase understanding of remote 
and regional areas’ needs and 
requirements.

% representation of Community 
Service Outlets within our 
distribution network.

Play online participation.

No. of visits to remote and 
regional areas.

16.8% of distribution network are 
designated Community Service Outlets.

39.3% increase in Play Online 
registration from previous year.

41 visits to regional and remote centres 
by Grants and Community Development.

Building strategic infrastructure 
that will create jobs and underpin 
Western Australia’s long-term 
economic development.

Maintain a strong State-wide 
retail network.

Develop relationships and 
partnerships with WA suppliers.

Annual distribution planning.

Retail Transformation Program.

No. of full service Lotterywest 
stores.

% of procurement contracts 
with WA based supplier 
organisations.

500 full service Lotterywest stores 
65.2% of procurement contracts with 
WA based supplier organisations.

[S] Statutory Key Performance Indicator

Alignment to government goals
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The diagram describes the key elements of our business model and provides the framework to achieve our goals.  
The structure of this Annual Report focuses on these components of our business model.

Strategic framework

It’s always exciting to sell a big winning 
ticket. There’s the mystery and excitement 
that comes with it, wondering if the winner 
is a local or a tourist passing by. We’ve 
been here so long it’s like a second home 
to us and we really enjoy coming to work. 
The ongoing community commitment 
Lotterywest has in WA is another wonderful 
reason we love what we do.

  Retailer profile 
Kalbarri News & Gift Centre  

Simone and Gregory Morgan have been Lotterywest 
retailers for almost 18 years and in their time have 
sold a number of Division 1 winning Lotto tickets to 
lucky customers. They even sold two Division 1 winning 
Saturday Lotto tickets, each worth $349,831, in the 
same draw! It came as a result of a regular customer 
accidentally putting on her numbers twice.

Vision
Building a better 

WA together

Products 
and Services

Communications 
and Branding

Distribution

Capacity
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Agency performance – products and services
Games

Red Lotto - Saturday, Monday and 
Wednesday
Saturday Lotto sales represented 36% of total sales. 
Combined Red Lotto accounted for 42% of sales for financial  
year 2015/16.

Our flagship game Saturday Lotto was supported by the 
new ‘Dream a little’ campaign and retailers participated in 
‘Boost Your Base Weeks’ and ‘Red Lotto Rewards’ programs 
to stimulate sales.

OZ Lotto’s growth, driven by jackpot activity and Set for Life’s 
higher than anticipated sales contribution (6.2% against a 
budget of 4.6%), impacted Saturday Lotto in particular.

Jackpot games – OZ Lotto and 
Powerball
The jackpot rolls exceeded forecasts this financial year. 
Powerball and OZ Lotto sales were driven by the combined 
Division 1 offer being 41% up on expectations. OZ Lotto sales 
were up 21.1% against budget and 26.7% above last year’s 
result. Powerball sales were up 18.9% against budget and 
5.1% higher than last year’s result.

Whilst nine OZ Lotto events greater than or equal to $20 
million were forecast, there were 16 over the year. 

Strong Australian Lottery Bloc share of both games 
performance during 2015/16 for large jackpots (larger than 
$20 million) has enabled Bloc share overall to remain steady.

A new game - Set for Life
In its launch year, Set for Life exceeded budget by $11 million. 
This included celebrating three WA winners sharing $14.4 
million each receiving $20,000 per month for the next 20 
years. Set for Life accounted for 6.2% of overall sales.

Core strategy 
•    Develop an enhanced portfolio  

of products that appeals to 
existing and new players. 

Play Responsibly  
gamblinghelponline.org.au  1800 858 858

WHAT 
WOULD 
YOU BE?

*Guaranteed for up to 4 winners

M
F
_
L
O
T
T
O
0
0
0
0
8
5
A

Play Responsibly 
gamblinghelponline.org.au  1800 858 858

Client Insert Date

Campaign Size (HxW)

Description

Filename Proof/Alt #

Publication Date/Time

Prod Mgr

Studio Mgr

Studio Op

Acc Dir

Acc Coor

Art Dir

Writer

Notes: Grey fields for internal sign off on hard copy proof.
PDF may appear on screen not at actual size.

2015-12-22

300.0 x 190.0

LOTTO000085A_300x190mm 1

West Australian 2015-12-22 15:44
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West Australians’ strong support of the launch of Set for Life 
drove positive performance – particularly immediately after the 
launch. This continued through late May and June due to the 
impact of back-to-back local winners.

Set for Life finished the year with sales 25% above budget. 
Our Australian Lottery Bloc share for Set for Life was 18.9%, 
considerably higher than for all other major Lotto games. 

Instant tickets - Scratch’n’Win
Tickets in the price points $1 to $20 contributed 10.8% to overall 
sales.

Sales of Scratch’n’Win have faced a challenging year with the 
highlight being the popularity of the higher price points. The 
shift towards higher priced tickets is in line with industry trends 
across the world. Scratch’n’Win sales were down 9.8% against 
budget and 0.7% lower than last year. Sales during the second 
half of the financial year were considerably stronger driven by 
the performance of the Word Play products.

Syndicates
Syndicates contributed 3.8% to overall sales, an increase 
of 0.6% on the previous year. Whilst overall syndicate sales 
remain stable there has been a shift towards Network 
Syndicates run by Lotterywest. This is attributed largely to the 
fact that Lotterywest holds liability for Network Syndicates.

Lotterywest offers three different kinds of syndicates:

syndicates organised by groups of retailers; syndicates offered 
by individual retailers; and syndicates offered by Lotterywest 
and sold by individual retailers across the retail network.

Players
In the 2015/16 financial year, sales per capita (people over the 
age of 16) was $424.88.

This was an increase of 5% on the previous year based on 
record sales.
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  Struggling South 
West family claim $40 
million OZ Lotto prize 

I’ve always wanted to secure a 
future for my children and take my wife 
shopping for a home we can actually 
call our own for the first time. Now we 
can do all that.

Products results 2012-16
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The second largest Lotto prize in WA history brought 
tears of joy to a struggling South West family. The OZ 
Lotto ticket delivered a $40 million win to the family. This 
followed a tough decade of working seven days a week, 
without being able to afford a house or car.

$55.2m2016
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  Trails boost for 
picturesque Pemberton

Created by timber mill workers in the 1920s as a place for 
swimming lessons, Pemberton’s Swimming Pool Brook nestles 
amongst karri trees in the spectacular Pemberton Forest Park. 
The heritage listed freshwater pool has been a recreational hub 
for the Pemberton community for almost a century.

A grant to the Pemberton Visitor Centre will support construction 
of a bridge over the picturesque freshwater pool, as well as 
linkage trails in the Pemberton Mountain Bike Park.

The Visitor Centre’s President, Mark Hudson, said the bridge and 
trails upgrade would be welcomed by locals and visitors.

This latest grant will build on our trails 
network and provide the infrastructure for 
bushwalkers, mountain bike riders, trail 
runners and horse riders to get outdoors and 
discover this beautiful part of the world.
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Agency performance  
– products and services 
Core strategy 
•    Deliver an effective and 

creative grants program.

Grants

Supporting community need
Lotterywest’s Grants and Community Development model 
is built on a consultative approach working in partnership 
with grant customers. We share and contribute ideas 
while working with potential applicants and routinely 
engage with them before applications are submitted to 
determine eligibility and suitability. Where appropriate, we 
have worked with customers who could potentially share 
resources or partner with aligned organisations or projects. 
We receive regular feedback that our customers value our 
engagement approach highly. They also tell us that this is 
our unique point of difference that distinguishes us from 
other grant makers.

We connect with and listen to customers, regularly inviting 
not-for-profit sector representatives to join us in informal 
round table conversations. These help us understand 
contemporary issues and opportunities and how we can 
continue to support each organisations and community 
needs.

Insights from the sector conversations included:

-  The value of the community development role  
Lotterywest offers.

-  The important role of Lotterywest encouraging 
partnerships and collective engagement.

-  The experience the Lotterywest team members bring to 
the table.

-  The commitment of not-for-profit organisations to identify 
opportunities for improvement.

-  The need for Lotterywest to continue to support 
organisational and service development.

Our grant making approach
As per the Lotteries Commission Act, we provide grants to  
not-for-profit organisations and local government 
authorities for charitable or benevolent purposes.

The Lotterywest Board re-endorsed our grant making and 
community development approach in June 2016. Our model 
is customer focused and based on four principles:

•  Flexible - We adapt our grant making framework to best 
suit the circumstances of the customer.

•  Responsive - We react as promptly and as positively as 
we can to the needs of our customers.

•  Complementary - We look to combine with others in 
such a way as to enhance or emphasise the qualities 
and resources of each stakeholder, including financial 
contributions.

•  Developmental - We work with our grant customers, if 
needed, to assist them to grow and develop their ideas 
and join them with others working on similar initiatives.

This grant will allow WAHTN to increase 
the involvement of end users and consumers 
in medical research. This network will be the 
first of its kind in Australia, and possibly the 
first of its kind in the world!

  Research collaboration 
benefits WA health

The Western Australian Health Translation Network 
(WAHTN) unites great minds for a meaningful goal – to 
make sure findings of medical research are fast tracked to 
have a positive impact on the health of people in our State.

The Network consists of 18 state-wide contributing 
partners. These include six medical research institutes, five 
universities, the WA Department of Health and the State’s 
major public hospitals.

A Lotterywest Grant of $3.2 million will support a key project 
of the group - the establishment of the Consumer Community 
Health Advocacy Network. Professor John Challis, Executive 
Director of the WAHTN, said the project invites health 
consumers to play a direct role in the future of health research 
by participating in advisory groups and forums.
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We bring these principles to life by:

• building and maintaining relationships

• maintaining discretion in grant making

• working with others to increase our impact

• encouraging others

• identifying gaps and opportunities

• encouraging learning and ongoing development.

These principles and ways of working are important 
factors that inform Lotterywest’s planning and customer 
engagement. They help us to be across the economic, 
demographic and social needs of the community.

We continually review our grant types to ensure their 
relevance and align to our overall approach. Our grants 
website provides information on our grant opportunity 
areas. It strongly encourages organisations to talk with us 
about their needs so that we can work with them on their 
application to create the best opportunity for success. 

Support for the not-for-profit sector
We continue to closely monitor the changing economic 
environment in WA. Significant changes in State and federal 
funding support have impacted on our customers and their 
business models. 

One key area of focus this year has been around supporting 
the not-for-profit sector and individual organisations 
to remain strong and viable into the future. A number 
of grants had a focus on planning for financial viability 
and sustainability. Through Lotterywest Grant support, 
customers can adapt to shifting needs and consider the 
impacts of a changed funding landscape. 

Lotterywest is committed to adding value to the community 
and our grant applicants:

•  Communicating widely grant opportunities for 
organisational development.

•  Using sector conversations and peak and leading 
organisations to continue to build our understanding and 
promote our potential support.

•  Encouraging proposals that enable a more strategic and 
a long term approach to organisational development and 
capacity building.

•  Supporting education and industry forums that support 
sector development and innovation. 

•  Working proactively with industry bodies and key 
stakeholders to ensure we are planned and strategic in 
our approach.

Whilst policy and funding changes are impacting many of 
our grants customers, the demand for their services and 
the complexity of that demand is increasing. The changed 
Western Australian economy has also impacted the support 
provided to important services and initiatives through 
corporates and philanthropy. 

Sector organisations are active in responding to these 
challenges. We are working with them as alternate 
forms of social finance are explored, social enterprises 
are developed and new ways of delivering services are 
considered, including through digital technology. 

  YACWA MYAN – inspiring 
future leaders 

A talented group of young people from diverse cultural 
backgrounds had their thoughts and ideas heard by leading 
decision makers at the Catalyst Youth Summit in February.

A grant to the Youth Affairs Council of Western Australia covered 
travel and accommodation costs so young people from regional 
WA didn’t miss out on the opportunity to contribute.

The Summit brought multicultural young people together to talk 
about issues important to them. They also got a chance to speak 
directly with politicians and decision makers.

Lianda Gibson, of the Multicultural Youth Advocacy Network WA, 
said the Summit left people inspired and committed to action.

One young person said that they wanted 
to volunteer their time to mental health services 
to increase multicultural awareness… they all 
had so much fun they didn’t want it to end.
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Statutory grants
In total, Lotterywest distributed 
$162.6 million in Statutory grants 
to Health, Sports and Arts this 
financial year. 

The Lotteries Commission Act specifies how net gaming 
revenue (i.e. sales less prize payments) is to be distributed to 
beneficiaries. Under the Act, 40% is to be distributed to the 
Department of Health for the support of the State’s hospitals. 
A further 5% is to be distributed to the Sports Lottery 
Account and a further 5% goes to the Arts Lottery Account. 
The respective Minister for each of these portfolios is then 
responsible for the subsequent distribution of these funds. 

Health and Hospitals
Lotterywest funding of $130 million to health projects across the 
State helped deliver safe, high quality and accessible health care 
to our growing population of 2.6 million Western Australians.

Employing 40,000 dedicated staff in metropolitan, regional 
and remote areas of the State, WA Health offers services to the 
community in hundreds of locations spanning an area of 2.5 
million square kilometres.

In the past 12 months, WA Health has: 

• received 1,020,455 emergency department visits

• performed 86,464 elective surgeries 

• delivered 23,650 babies.

As the population of Western Australia continues to grow,  
so too will the demand for health services. 

Lotterywest is proud to be able to support the growth  
and development of our State’s health services to benefit  
the community.

Lotterywest funding of $130 million to  
health projects across the State helped deliver 
safe, high quality and accessible health care  
to our growing population of 2.6 million  
Western Australians. 

Dr David Russell-Weisz, Director General, Department of Health.

Arts and Culture
Lotterywest is a strong supporter of culture and the arts, 
distributing $16.3 million this year to the Department of Culture 
and the Arts. 

This supported 42 Western Australian arts and cultural 
organisations.

The funding provides a base from which organisations can 
generate additional income to support their annual programs, 
providing a rich and diverse calendar of cultural and arts 
events for West Australians.

These range from the AWESOME International Arts Festival 
for Bright Young Things, dance companies including the West 
Australian Ballet and newly formed CO3 through to the intimate 
and immersive performances by Lost and Found Opera Company.

Arts and culture make considerable 
contributions to the well-being of  
communities and are powerful tools with  
which to engage communities. 

Duncan Ord, Director General, Department of Culture and  
the Arts.

[Image credit: Fiona McAndrew in ‘Médée’, Lost and Found 
Opera, 2015. Photo by Jessica Wyld].
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Sport and Recreation
The Department of Sport and Recreation encourages participation 
in sport and active recreation at all levels. This year it received 
$16.3 million from the Sports Lotteries Account which supported a 
range of programs and organisations around Western Australia.

Lotterywest supported more than 5000 local sporting clubs 
with $7.6 million in funding to 87 State Sporting Associations 
and 17 peak bodies. These ranged from football and hockey 
through to archery and Parks and Leisure Australia.

Significant funding also went towards:

• creating active regional communities

• integrity in sport programs

• supporting industry representative organisations

• WA Disabled Sports Association

• Western Australian Sports Federation

•  42 Club Development Officers who deliver practical advice 
and programs to community sporting organisations in 60 
local governments throughout WA. 

Sport and recreation is not just about winning. 
Being active means kids learn better, we all feel 
mentally and physically happier and become 
naturally more connected to community. 

Ron Alexander, Director General, Department of Sport and 
Recreation

Western Australia Institute of Sport (WAIS)
$5,088,390 was allocated to WAIS in 2015/16 via Lotterywest’s 
support to the Department of Sport and Recreation. This helped 
Western Australia’s peak high performance athletes through 
funds provided by Lotterywest to the Department of Sport  
and Recreation.

The Road to Rio provided the key focus for operations at WAIS 
in the past financial year. 2015/16 was the first full year of 
operation for WAIS in the newly completed High Performance 
Service Centre (HPSC) in Mt Claremont.

The world-class facilities at the WAIS HPSC helped support 
over 30 athletes onto the Australian Olympic Team. They 
also supported more than 10 WA athletes onto the Australian 
Paralympic Team in Brazil. 

The ongoing support provided to WAIS 
through Lotterywest continues to help WA 
athletes achieve success on the world  
sporting stage. 

Steve Lawrence, Director, WAIS

  Retailer profile 
The Lucky Charm News 
Noranda 

Theo Popis has just celebrated his 10 year anniversary 
with Lotterywest. In this time he has given customers of 
The Lucky Charm News Noranda just over $25 million in 
Division 1 prizes. In the past financial year he has also 
sold three Scratch’n’Win Top Prizes which is the largest 
number of Top Prizes sold in 2015/16.

I look forward to coming to work 
every day. Giving away money for a living 
is something nice to do. I enjoy the daily 
interaction with my customers which is  
always delivered with a humorous flair. 
There’s lots of laughter from everyone who 
enters the store. 
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The Lotteries Commission Act 
specifies an amount up to 5% 
of net subscriptions should be 
given to the University of Western 
Australia (UWA) for the support of 
the Perth International Arts Festival 
and to approved bodies (such as 
ScreenWest) for the support of the  
State commercial screen industry. 
This year Lotterywest distributed 
$7.6 million each to UWA and 
ScreenWest.

Perth International Arts Festival
The 64th Perth International Arts Festival (PIAF) created an 
explosion of energy and ideas. More than 1,000 of the most 
talented artists from Australia and around the world presented 
350 events for an audience of over 350,000.

PIAF presented an unmatched quality, depth and diversity in its 
2016 Festival. After the stunning opening spectacle of Home, 
presented on Langley Park by a 500-strong cast of Western 
Australian artists, there was a wide range of arts events on offer 
in theatres, halls, found spaces and even a boxing gym.

The PIAF Connect program joined artists 
and audiences through workshops and 
masterclasses. This signalled a dynamic 
exchange for the people of WA through the 
vision of new artistic director Wendy Martin. 

Grants stories Perth International Arts Festival
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This type of win is perfect for us rather 
than a lump sum. It’s such a fabulous gift.

ScreenWest
Regional Western Australia took centre stage this year. 

The Great Southern was the backdrop for the filming of Breath, 
based upon Tim Winton’s best-selling novel. Jasper Jones, 
based on the award-winning novel by Craig Silvey, was filmed 
in the South West with an all-star cast that includes Toni Collette 
and Hugo Weaving.

Looking for Grace, filmed in the Wheatbelt, achieved international 
acclaim screening at the Venice and Toronto film festivals.

The regions will also be showcased on television. Documentary 
series Aussie Gold is being filmed in the Goldfields, Dolphin 

Dynasty in the Gascoyne, while Surfing the Menu - Next 
Generation takes in coastal communities from Shark Bay  
to Kununurra.

In total, 47 productions received funding support through 
ScreenWest and Lotterywest to film in Western Australia. 

We are very excited about these stories 
coming to life on screen. For the communities 
where they were filmed, it is even more exciting.

Ian Booth, Chief Executive, ScreenWest 

  Southern suburbs 
family Set for Life 

A family from Perth’s southern suburbs took the title 
of Western Australia’s first ever Set for Life 1st Prize 
winners just three months after the launch of the game. 
The good news was a complete surprise when they 
returned to Brentwood Village News to check their ticket.

Their $20,000 every month for the next 20 years will 
enable them to spoil family, invest in their future and go 
on a holiday or two.

Surfing the Menu
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Agency performance distribution - games
 Core Strategy

•  Determine ‘best’ retail 
opportunity for an area.

•  Actively manage retail 
network for optimum 
performance.

•  Grow digital channel  
presence to meet our 
customers’ expectations.

Player channels
Lotterywest products are sold through two channels –  
the retail network consisting of 529 outlets and our online 
channel, Play Online. Our online offering is now available 
on both the web and via our App. The Lotterywest App is 
popular with players; 29% of online sales have come through 
the App since its launch in May 2015. In the coming year, we 
will also offer an option of playing on an in-store kiosk. 

Play Online
Our online channel now delivers 7% of annual sales, an 
increase of 39.3% on the previous financial year.

Play Online has generated $61.8 million sales. This includes 
Lotterywest App sales of $18 million or 29% of Play Online 
sales. This is an increase of 48% on last financial year.  
A significant increase in the number of online registrations 
coincided with the launch of Set for Life.

There were minimal changes to Play Online other than the 
second release of the Lotterywest App. This introduced a 
range of reminders and notifications about our games, 
draws and events. 

Contemporary retail 
The Lotterywest retail network contributed 93% to annual 
sales.

In the past financial year we have reviewed and implemented 
a new retail distribution strategy. This takes into consideration 
new trends in retailing, changes in customer expectations and 
technological advances. It will ensure we continue to remain 
relevant to our players and prospective players. 

In research completed in late 2015 we reviewed our current 
retail network performance and distribution strategy. We 
identified opportunities for growth as well as locations where 
we need to be represented to optimise sales. 

We also made some improvements to our processes so we 
can be more responsive to changes in our retail network and 
broader operating environment.

We are continuing to research locations of interest for potential 
retail network expansion. These include new retail environments 
that complement our existing retail business types such as 
newsagencies, specialised kiosks and pharmacies.

Our current retail network includes 529 outlets operating 
across metropolitan and regional areas. 

Location type Full service Scratch’n’Win 
only

Total

Metropolitan 347 21 368
Country 69 8 69
Community Service Outlet 84 0 84
Total 500 29 529

Distribution activity 2015/16 2014/15

New Outlets 4 6
Change of Ownership 44 51
 • Full service Lottery Outlets 41 48
Relocations 9 4
Voluntary Outlet Terminations 7 13
 • Full Service Lottery Outlets 3 7
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Percentage comparison of outlets by 
business environment

Commercial environment Full service Scratch’n’Win Total
Neighbourhood 
Shopping Centre 227 2 229

Regional Shopping Centre 70 0 70
Stand alone 48 14 62
Strip shop 155 13 168
Total 500 29 529

Primary business type
Primary business type Full 

service
Scratch’n’Win 

only
Grand  
Total

Convenience Store 9 4 13
Delicatessen 4 12 16
Kiosk 40 1 41
Newsagency 399 11 410
Pharmacy 12 0 12
Supermarket 36 1 37
Total 500 29 529

Supporting growth
We piloted a new Business Development Program with 130 
metropolitan and regional retailers between January and 
May 2016. The program focused on supporting retailers 
to achieve optimum lottery product sales and sustainable 
business growth. Participating retailers achieved an 
estimated $724,160 in additional sales over a four month 
period. 90% of survey respondents told us the program 
benefited their business. As a result of the successful pilot 
we will launch our new business growth initiative in the new 
financial year across the retail network. 

Our new strategy focuses on business development and 
changes the way we support the retail network. Three 
elements work together to support retailers with short term 
and long term planning for business growth.

Retail Business Development

Retail Image

Retail Incentives and Rewards
 

Now trading 24/7
Customers expect the convenience of online services being 
available 24/7. This year we introduced 24/7 terminal and online 
operations to meet players’ needs and provide flexibility for 
retailers with a range of opening hours. 24/7 was introduced 
in March 2016 and has been well received by players wanting 
convenience when they play Lotterywest Games.

Connecting with retailers
We hosted six business meetings with our Retailers’ 
Consultative Panel over the year. We engage panel members 
on overall business results and in significant business 
projects. Panel members represent both metropolitan and 
regional retailers and bring valuable insight and expertise to 
our business planning and operations.

Incentives and rewards
Participating retailers earned $136,800 in incentives and 
rewards in the 2015/16 financial year.

We continued our established retailer incentives and rewards 
program focusing on increasing sales during set rewards 
periods. A number of changes were trialled during the year 
to improve the program and in 2016/17 we will launch a new 
annual rewards program.

Retailer Conference
We hosted 163 retailers at our biennial Retailer Conference 
in September 2015. The conference was designed as a 
professional development day for our retailers. It provided 
retailers the opportunity to participate in interactive 
workshops and hear presentations from industry experts. 

In addition, retailers and their teams participated in our core 
training programs. 

Training Course No. of attendees

Manage a Lottery Outlet 99

Work in a Lottery Outlet 282

Total attendees 381
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Retail Transformation Program
The Retail Transformation Program (RTP) is introducing new 
signage, shopfit and technology to deliver a simple and 
engaging customer experience. This provides a platform for 
growth for Lotterywest into the future. 

What’s changing?

 Signage
New signage items will include a new External Lotterywest 
Identifier and a dynamic Digital Point of Sale. 

 Shopfit
The old yellow and teal ‘bubble’ shopfit will be replaced with 
a contemporary new design. This features LED illumination, 
curved lines and a durable solid surface material.

 Technology
Updated technology will include a new and improved Ticket 
Checker, a Self-serve Device in some stores, and a new 
Lotterywest membership service with new and improved 
features for players. 

Why we’re changing
•  The Retail Transformation is one of a variety of growth 

strategies we’re implementing to ensure our players are 
more engaged. We aim to remain relevant and grow the 
support of our existing players while attracting new ones. 

•  Our players are becoming increasingly connected 
through a range of digital, online and social tools. They 
expect a playing experience that is both convenient and 
personalised.

•  Our old signage and shopfit was introduced 12 years ago 
and our old lottery technology in 2008. 

How we’re changing
•  Considerable consultation and engagement with 

key stakeholders, including retailers, has contributed 
significantly to the signage and shopfit designs. 

•  A mock store phase in late 2015 tested the signage and 
shopfit in a controlled environment. This provided useful 
feedback that has helped refine the signage and shopfit 
designs. 

•  A concept store phase in mid-2016 has tested the signage 
and shopfit in real retail situations, before the roll-out to  
the network.

•  Technology will be rolled out to the network in April 2017.

•  Three key documents have been developed to guide 
retailers through each of the stages - Signage, Shopfit and 
Technology Guide, Standards and Specifications.
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Key outcomes
Retailers will benefit from the following outcomes:

• A modern store design. 

• Efficient and up to date retail technology. 

•  Modernised marketing opportunities via the Digital  
Point of Sale screen.

•  Time efficiencies in promoting games and jackpots to  
your players.

•  Targeted marketing opportunities via the new  
 Lotterywest membership service.

Players will benefit from:

• Improved ways to play Lotterywest games in-store.

• More visibility of Scratch’n’Win tickets at the counter.

•  More interesting ways to find out about favourite games 
and jackpots in-store.Signage, Shopfit and 

Technology Standards

Click to 
 get started

Version 1

Signage, Shopfit and 
Technology Specifications

Click to 
 get started

Version 1.0

Signage, Shopfit  
and Technology Guide

Guiding you through the three stages of the  
Lotterywest Retail Transformation in your store

Click to 
 get started

Version 1.1

I felt a bit sick and dumbfounded 
when I checked the ticket. I still didn’t 
believe we’d really won until right now 
in the Winners Room!

  Change in handbags 
reveals $711,872 
winning Lotto ticket 

A Saturday Lotto draw in September 2015 saw a Palmyra 
couple’s lives improve by $711,872.

It was only because the woman decided to change 
handbags that she found the forgotten ticket, purchased 
at Palmyra Supa News.
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Here’s what our concept store retailers 
are saying about the new design:

“I love the design and the feedback 
from my customers is that they love  
it too,” 
Greg Hopkins - Clark’s Newsagency, Albany. 

“It’s a much more polished and 
consistent look,” 
Henry Gulev - The Downs Chemmart Pharmacy & News, 
Wembley Downs.

Here’s what some of our players are 
saying about the new design at our 
concept stores:

“It looks clean, neat and modern,” 
Valda, Hamilton Hill.

“The new signage is bright and  
easy to see,” 
Teresa, South Fremantle.

“The new digital screen looks  
neater and more professional,” 
Lena, Wembley Downs.

Retail Transformation Program
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Agency performance distribution - grants
 Core strategy

•  Ensure the effective 
distribution of our grants.

•  Grow digital channel and 
presence to meet our 
customers’ expectations. 

Relationship model
The way we connect with and understand the needs of 
communities around the State is the foundation of our 
grant making program. Grants staff carefully manage the 
State’s diverse needs across metropolitan and regional 
and remote communities. They work with not-for-profit and 
local government authorities in their local environment. 
Understanding the local context and service delivery models 
is key to how we work. Our aim is to maximise not only the 
grants supported but the community development role that 
we contribute. It is the point of difference to how we work; 
we are proud of the deep understanding we have of the 
communities we serve.

Community engagement
The Grants and Community Development team has 
continued to focus on building a sound regional presence. 
This year we have made over 40 regional trips across the 
State. We are committed to an extensive travel program 
to ensure we understand communities and to observe the 
outcomes of our grant support. We are unwavering in our 
commitment to this model to ensure our grants are having 
the greatest impact. 

The South West team’s travel included visits to Busselton, 
Bunbury, Margaret River, Dunsborough, Capel, Greenbushes 
and Bridgetown. It offered extensive support to events, trails 
and organisational development projects. A partnership 
project with National Trust resulted in a grant of $676,291 
towards the conservation, heritage and a community 
engagement project for Ellensbrook, a colonial heritage 
site in the South West region. Additional to the conservation 
works, the project will interpret the heritage, capture the 
stories and focus on the Aboriginal significance and cultural 
values associated with this site.

In the Great Southern we visited Albany, Kojonup, Katanning, 
Gnowangerup and Denmark. We met with the Local 
Government Authorities, stakeholders and visited newly 
established community facilities. A key project in partnership 
with the Shire of Katanning was a revitalisation project 
incorporating the Welcome Precinct and the Piesse Lake 
Development. This resulted in a grant of $2 million towards 
an all ages playground, a skate park and street park, 
botanical gardens, amphitheatre, boardwalks, interpretative 
elements and creek rehabilitation.

In the Pilbara and Kimberley our travel has taken us to 
Broome, Bidyadanga, Karratha and Newman. We continue to 
work alongside the Regional Development Commissions and 

Lotterywest grants team – Lee and Joni visiting Wiluna.
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corporate partners such as Rio Tinto and BHP Billiton on various 
projects and regional infrastructure development. Key projects 
this year include a grant of $3 million to Nyamba Buru Yawuru 
towards the construction of the Liyan-Ngan Nyirrwa. This is a 
place of cultural renewal and healing for the Yawuru people in 
the Broome and Kimberley region. We also granted $2 million 
to the City of Karratha towards a multipurpose community hub 
in Dampier, and $3.9 million towards the construction of the 
Royal Flying Doctor Service Hangar in Broome.

Around the Wheatbelt and Goldfields regions we visited 
Darkan, Dalwallinu, Pingelly, Esperance, Kalgoorlie, 
Coolgardie and Northam. We delivered an information 
session in Kalgoorlie with the Regional Development 
Commission, Department of Local Government and 
Communities, Department of Sport and Recreation and Office 
of Multicultural Interests. We also worked alongside the 
Esperance agencies and community groups in response to 
the devastating fires. A key project, and timely for the region, 
was a grant of $415,000 to the Shire of Esperance towards 
a skate park and outdoor recreational youth precinct to 
complement the foreshore redevelopment. The Paupiyala 
Tjarutja Aboriginal Corporation received grant support of 
$1.2 million. This was to help build a new facility to meet the 
needs of frail aged and people with disabilities in the desert 
community of Tjuntjuntjara in Menzies.

Travel in the Midwest region has included numerous trips 
to Geraldton and visits to Shark Bay, Jurien Bay, Gascoyne, 
and Carnarvon. Our travels have also included participating 
in the turning of the sod ceremony for the Ningaloo Centre. 
This is a multi-purpose facility for the community of Exmouth. 
We also attended the ‘Future of the Gascoyne’ conference in 
Carnarvon.

  Jurien Bay Volunteers to 
the rescue 

The volunteers of the Jurien Bay Volunteer Marine Rescue Group 
cover 5000 square kilometres of ocean. If boaties are in trouble 
the Jurien Bay VMR spring into action.

A grant towards a new garage and a fuel tank trailer will mean 
the group is well equipped to perform rescue services and run 
marine safety awareness courses.

The new garage will free up space for the group in an existing 
building for rescue debriefing and training. Deputy Commander, 
Ian Stiles said the fuel tank trailer would also make a huge 
difference to refuelling the group’s rescue boat.

Most of our volunteers are retirees. Before 
we had the trailer we were lugging 25 litre 
jerry cans to refuel our craft. Now we can just 
hitch up the trailer, drive to the jetty and use the 
electric pump to transfer the fuel.

Lotterywest grants team - Renai with 
Willetton Community Garden volunteers.
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Agency performance distribution - grants
In the Mandurah and Peel regions, we have continued 
with the bi-monthly information sessions and meetings 
in partnership with the Local Government agencies and 
community groups, we have also been involved in the 
immediate discussions regarding the impact of the Yarloop 
fires. Here we have been working collaboratively with the 
Shire of Harvey and State government agencies. 

In the metropolitan area we have hosted two information 
sessions with over 100 people attending. We also attended 
the WACOSS conference networking day and presented at 
the Community Service Excellence and the Youth Awards. 
We participated in the WA Men’s Shed conference and had 
a presence at the RSL Remembrance Day commemorations. 
Staff spoke at the Bayswater Funding Multicultural 
Communities seminar, Playgroup WA’s networking day and 

Connect Groups Awareness Week. Key projects supported 
include the upgrade of the outdoor community facility at 
Cantonment Hill in Fremantle and St Vincent de Paul’s major 
project to build a new facility to accommodate 64 staff, 180 
volunteers and co-locate the Head Office, Warehouse and 
Distribution Centre. We collaborated with local government 
authorities, peak organisations and other key partners to 
discuss opportunities, future projects, developments and 
initiatives. These organisations include the Department of 
Culture and the Arts, Department of Sport and Recreation, 
Department of Local Government and Communities and the 
Office of Multicultural Interests. 

We work closely with metropolitan and regional 
development commissions, local government authorities, 
peak organisations and corporate partners. We seek 

their guidance on support for community initiatives and to 
encourage partnering and collaboration.

Working efficiently
A number of improvements have been introduced in the 
past financial year. We want to make sure that we continue 
to streamline the customer experience when applying for 
Lotterywest Grants. At the same time we have been making 
sure that we maintain appropriate due diligence around our 
grant making. 

A major focus has been on revising the application process, 
particularly online forms. We significantly reduced the number 
of current forms from eighteen to six. We also redesigned the 
application form to simplify and reduce questions. The focus 

Perth International Arts Festival Lotterywest Festival Opening ‘Home’.
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has now shifted to developing a Grants Customer Application 
Portal. This will let applicants input organisational details just 
once into the redesigned form. New facilities will allow us to 
record and store these details for each application.

We have adapted the application process for groups with 
multiple needs so that they may combine multiple requests 
into one application. This has resulted in a reduced number 
of applications needing hands on support, a better customer 
service and a reduced administrative effort. 

Support for community buildings and infrastructure grants 
have come into focus. We have made changes to our 
management approach in order to reduce administrative 
burden on customers. At the same time, we ensure that we 
are adequately protecting Lotterywest interests. Our aim is to 

make sure that the purpose and use of a supported building 
or facility is for long-term community benefit.

Grants processing and average turnaround time for all 
approved grants in 2015/16 was just under four months. 
Internal management practices have helped bring about this 
improvement. We now have the presentation of a second 
agenda going to the Lotterywest Board each month as well 
as the usual monthly Board meeting. In effect, there are now 
two approval rounds per month. The Board considered a total 
of 20 grants agendas in 2015/16. The average grant payment 
time for the year was six days from the date of payment 
request; this was well ahead of our target of 10 days.

It felt really good to sell a Set for Life 
winner; it was certainly a nice surprise 
and great news for the Lucky Charm 
Group. My favourite thing about my job 
is meeting so many great people and 
making friends. I like having a chat and 
talking to my regulars about footy.

  Retailer profile 
The Lucky Charm  
Newsagency Baldivis

 Since 2008, Nelson De Freitas has enjoyed selling Lotto 
dreams to his customers and was overjoyed to make a 
WA player Set for Life in May 2016. They brought the State’s 
tally of Set for Life 1st Prize winners to three since the game 
launched in August 2015. 

Lotterywest grants team - Antony, Lucy and  
Scott at Fremantle Volunteer Sea Rescue.
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Agency performance – communications and branding
 Core strategy

•  Target communications so 
that we balance existing and 
new communication channels.

•  Continue to build upon our 
heritage as a provider of 
lottery products and an 
integral part of the WA 
community.

Lotterywest promotes nine lottery games and the 
Scratch’n’Win portfolio. These offer West Australians the 
opportunity to play our games seven days a week. Our diverse 
aims and responsibilities create a complex but considered 
marketing and communications program. We promote game 
participation, celebrate winners, inform the community of 
potential grant opportunities and demonstrate the return to 
beneficiaries through our grants program.

Our place in the community
We use our marketing and public relations to proactively 
communicate Lotterywest’s unique role in supporting the WA 
community with our grants. 

80% of Western Australians acknowledge Lotterywest as a 

significant contributor to community life (Lotterywest Brand 
Health Study, 2016).

We market our games responsibly and communicate to 
players the ‘win-win’ model of both the potential prizes and the 
community benefit. This has been a key to engaging players.

We launched the Summer events campaign in November 
2015. This evidenced the range of community celebrations and 
events we support through our grants program, particularly in 
the Spring and Summer months. We strongly linked our games 
into these communications with the statement ‘It all starts with 
you, speaking directly to the player. This positions a Slikpik 
ticket, Scratch’n’Win ticket or Play Online central to the event 
experience. The campaign was supported by our corporate 
positioning of ‘You play. You give’.
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It all starts 
with you.

Every time you play Lotterywest Games, 34 cents of every 
dollar goes back to the WA community through our Grants. 
Giving you the chance to enjoy events and festivals supported by 
Lotterywest. So thanks for playing, because it all starts with you.  
lotterywest.wa.gov.au

Thank you for helping us support 
events and festivals all round WA 
including the Kids Fun Day Out.

Play Responsibly  gamblinghelponline.org.au  1800 858 858
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It all starts 
with you.

Every time you play Lotterywest Games, 34 cents of every dollar 
goes back to the WA community through our Grants. Giving you 
the chance to enjoy events and festivals supported by Lotterywest. 
So thanks for playing, because it all starts with you.  
lotterywest.wa.gov.au

Thank you for helping us support 
events and festivals all round WA 
including the Harvey Harvest Festival.
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We aligned many of our communications to the events we 
supported. We partnered with a major media partner to  
co-brand their online news portal for Events and Festivals over 
four months of Spring and Summer. This was the online hub for 
Perth International Arts Festival and the Fringe World Festival 
along with hundreds of smaller community celebrations. We 
also rolled out a media first of 360 cameras at key events so the 
experience could be shared online.

Lotterywest supports the Anzac Day commemorations with an 
appropriate tribute. Lotterywest is a major supporter of the RSL 
and Anzac Day events around the State. It has continued the 
tradition of honouring all those who have served and those 
who continue to serve in wars and peacekeeping efforts. 

Building advocacy
Over many years, Lotterywest has built a powerful network of informal advocates in the community. In 2016, we developed a pilot 
program to engage Lotterywest Grant customers as advocates. We refreshed information and online assets relating to ‘Sharing the 
Good News’. Our aim was to make sure customers had a range of tools at their disposal to evidence Lotterywest’s support. We are 
evaluating the success of the pilot and planning a comprehensive advocacy program to launch in 2016/17.

Redefining our brand
Lotterywest started research and planning for a major brand review in 2016/17. We aim to ensure that we are relevant to our 
current and future players and remain at the heart of the WA community. 

A new game
In August 2015, we launched the first new national lottery game since 2006 when Monday and Wednesday Lotto was launched 
in Western Australia. Set for Life is a new style of game in our portfolio where players can win $20,000 a month for 20 years. An 
extensive national marketing and PR campaign launched the game in August 2015. We have celebrated three West Australian 
winners since launch.

In February 2016, we gave people the opportunity to experience a five minute taste of what it would be like to be Set for Life during 
the Lotterywest supported Fringe World Festival. A tropical oasis with mocktails and massages right in the hub of Fringe World 
Festival ran over 10 nights and engaged 180,000 Festival goers. Over 1,400 participants downloaded the Lotterywest App for the 
first time as their pass to the activation.
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It all starts 
with you.
Every time you play Lotterywest Games, 34 cents of every dollar 
goes back to the WA community through our Grants. Giving you 
the chance to enjoy events and festivals supported by Lotterywest. 
So thanks for playing, because it all starts with you.  
lotterywest.wa.gov.au

Thank you for helping us support events 
and festivals all round WA including the 
Dunsborough Arts Festival.

Play Responsibly  gamblinghelponline.org.au  1800 858 858
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Set for Life activation at Fringe World Festival.
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Dream a little
A new Saturday Lotto branding campaign launched in March 
2016, with the central theme of dreams.

We are reminding players to think again about what their 
Lotto dream is – whether it’s travelling the world with friends, 
spending more time with their family, or paying off their mum 
and dad’s mortgage. 

The campaign was supported by TV, social media and social 
influencers who explored their dreams as part of Superdraws 
and base weeks.

Scratch’n’Win innovation celebrating WA
We launched two innovative Scratch’n’Win games, I Love WA 
and Footy Fever. Both celebrated unique Western Australian 
assets. The I Love WA scratchie featured some of WA’s most 
iconic landmarks including Cottesloe beach, the Perth City 
skyline, the Busselton Jetty and the Pinnacles. Players had a 
chance to win up to $100,000 or one of ten $10,000 holiday 
packages.

Footy Fever was our first AFL licenced ticket. We partnered with 
WA football teams Fremantle Dockers and West Coast Eagles. 
The ticket offered experiences instead of cash as Top Prizes to 
bring something new to Scratch’n’Win players. Players had the 
chance to win the ultimate grand final experience.

Digital and social channel focus 
Customer and player behaviour has significantly shifted to 
online and social channels with customers increasingly making 
the choice to transact and engage on their mobile devices. 

We continue to examine trends to optimise marketing 
expenditure and communicate to customers through  
relevant channels.

Our ‘Always On’ channel continues to build from previous years 
focusing on prospecting and remarketing to drive purchases. 
The platform allows for cost effective message creation and 
real time targeting with a focus on specific player behaviours. 
In February 2016, we introduced Facebook into the eco-system 
to increase reach and bring down cost per thousands. To date 
this has shown positive results. 

Our focus on building social relevance continued with our two 
Facebook pages focusing on building relevant content for 
customers interested in our games and grants. 

The Lotterywest Grants Facebook page following increased to 
15,000 and the Lotterywest Games Facebook page to 30,000. 
Our Facebook pages will merge in 2016/17 to represent one 
Lotterywest brand. Our Twitter channel has 3,000 followers. 

We continued to generate targeted content and competitions to 
increase engagement. As part of this we promoted a hashtag 
strategy with community organisations when sharing their 
good news about a grant. We also started LinkedIn recruitment 
advertising.

We evolved our PR approach to engage social influencers with 
strong followings, focusing on Saturday Lotto Superdraws and 
base weeks. Influencers shared their Lotto dreams, engaging 
new audiences to consider playing our games.

Agency performance – communications and branding
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Celebrating Chinese New Year
We launched an activation at the Chinese New Year festival 
held in Northbridge in February 2016. The celebrations were 
organised by the Chung Wah Association and supported by 
Lotterywest, and provided an opportunity to reinforce the link 
between playing and giving.

The activation promoted Scratch’n’Win with an interactive on 
screen game that was free to play for anyone aged 16 or over. 
People participated in pairs to control the dragon in our virtual 
game by using leap track motion pads. The project focused  
on building brand awareness of Scratch’n’Win; nearly 600 
people engaged in the activation and 70,000 visitors attended 
the celebrations.

76
Division 1 winners shared 

a combined total of

$66.4 million

3
Division 1 winners 

claimed

$90 million

4
Division 1 winners 

shared in

$857,229

6
Division 1 winners shared 

a combined total of

$6 million

5
Division 1 winners 

collected

$92.3 million

58
Top Prize winners 

shared in

$4.7 million

3
First Prize winners shared a 

combined total of

$14.4 million

2
Division 1 winners 

claimed

$36,565

Winners
During the 2015/16 year, 99 Western Australians shared in Division 1 and 1st Prizes worth $270 
million and 58 ‘Scratch’n’Win top prizes worth $4.7 million

In total, Western 
Australians won over

$600.9 million
across all divisions 

and prizes and on our 
Scratch’n’Win tickets.
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Agency performance - capacity
 Core strategy

•  Build our resilience and ability 
to respond quickly to change. 
Ensure we use our resources 
and systems to achieve our 
identified business strategies.

Our people 
Lotterywest has an establishment of 225 FTE staff. In the past 
year, 26 staff members left the organisation and 45 started. 
The Lotterywest staff profile reveals that:

Lotterywest 
workforce

Average WA 
public sector

Average age 43 years 46 years
Under age 25 5% 5%
Between 26 and 54 77% 69%
Over 55 18% 26%
Female / Males 56% / 44% 72% / 28%
Equity index 84 74
Indigenous Australians >1% 3%
People with a disability 2% 2%
From culturally diverse 
backgrounds

17% 13%

Recruitment and induction
Lotterywest recruitment and induction processes ensure 
we have the right people with the right skills to achieve our 
strategic objectives. 

A number of project initiatives were implemented in 2015/16:

•  Lotterywest trained 38 managers in the recruitment and 
selection process. 

•  The recruitment process became completely online. It used 
the Recruitment Advertising Management System (RAMS) 
to streamline the end-to-end process, with nine managers 
trained in its use.

•  Seven staff attended the revised corporate induction 
program which emphasises key messages and expectations 
for new staff.

•  Lotterywest reviewed and updated its ‘Position Application 
Pack’.

Employee Assistance Program
A panel of suppliers provide access to a range of employee 
assistance services to support the wellbeing of staff and 
others. The services include confidential, professional 
counselling on work-related or personal matters, specialist 
advice for managers, and critical incident or trauma response 
services for retailers, their staff and families.

Developing our people
Leadership and management training

Lotterywest launched two new leadership and management 
programs for senior managers and managers. The first 
program is designed to enhance and build on the leadership 
skills in the senior manager cohort. It is delivered by 
consultants with a deep understanding of the revised structure 
and the drivers behind the recent organisational review. The 
other program is designed for managers, particularly those 
with small teams, and is delivered by AIMWA. It comprises two 
groups drawn from all areas of the business. 

Learning and development 

We have offered a diverse range of courses to employees 
throughout 2015/16. These include, Accountable and Ethical 
Decision Making (AEDM) training for new staff, contract 
management workshops, and sessions on written and verbal 
communication and effective meeting techniques.

Inter-agency mentoring program 

The Inter-agency mentoring program provides opportunities 
for staff to foster their personal and professional development 
by pairing up with either a mentor or a mentee from one of 
five other government agencies. Ten Lotterywest employees 
participated in the mentoring program this year.
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Individual performance development

Employees and their manager complete Individual 
Development Plans on an annual cycle. They are aligned 
to Lotterywest’s strategic and operational priorities. It is an 
opportunity for all involved to identify training needs for the 
coming year. Lotterywest has now thoroughly embraced the 
70:20:10 model of learning. This is based on the theory that 
adults can learn as much through exposure through acting in 
a position or being mentored or coached on the job as they 
can through traditional training options.

Lotterywest also offers staff an opportunity to apply for support 
to undertake structured professional development with 
recognised training and higher education institutions. Support 
includes course fee subsidies and time off for study/exams.

Wellness program 

Lotterywest continues to provide a range of initiatives to 
promote healthy wellbeing in our workplace. These range from 
vaccinations, health checks, exercise programs through to 

mental wellbeing activities such as meditation and massage. 
There was a notable increase this year in the take up of blood 
pressure monitoring and healthy heart checks (to 25% and 
20% respectively). 

Staff reward and recognition 

Lotterywest recognises staff for their achievements at work. 
Through the RITE Awards, Lotterywest continues to build staff 
engagement, reinforce desired values and engender a sense 
of personal responsibility for the workplace. A total of nine staff 
members were nominated for a RITE Award over the year with 
three overall winners selected. 

Workforce plan 

During the year Lotterywest developed and adopted a 
Workforce Plan. This outlines the human resource challenges 
confronting Lotterywest. It identifies the strategies and actions 
necessary to have the right human resources with the right 
skills to achieve our strategic objectives. 

The sheer number and types of tracks 
make this the most significant site for dinosaur 
tracks in Australia, if not the world. The 
materials to be produced will tell the story of 
when these giants walked the land and the 
geology and the landscape of the time.

  Sharing Broome’s 
dinosaur past

While they’ve always been known to the Aboriginal 
custodians of the land, Broome’s Dinosaur footprints are 
set to garner worldwide attention when scientific research 
on these treasures is released later this year.

A Lotterywest Grant to Broome’s Dinosaur Coast 
Management Group will support the production of education 
materials including display panels and information sheets. 

The group’s aim is for the Dinosaur Coast to be recognised as 
a highly valuable asset both for the community and visitors.

Prints from at least 20 different dinosaur species have been 
found. Group Committee Member, Michelle Teoh said. 

Lotterywest Marketing and Brand Development team - Melissa and Claudia with Marketforce Account team - Brendon and Deborah.
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Corporate social responsibility
The way in which we operate our business and the impact 
it has in the community is as important as the results we 
achieve. Lotterywest is a government organisation bound 
under the Public Sector Management Act and by the ethics 
and standards of the public sector in Western Australia.

The following programs define our commitment to ensuring 
we operate our business with integrity and responsibility. 

Responsible Gaming
Lotterywest’s commitment to responsible gaming ensures the 
responsible promotion and management of our games. We 
have committed to the World Lottery Association’s Responsible 
Gaming Framework and have embedded ten key principles 
of awareness and best practice across our organisation. The 
principles include:

• focusing on current research 

• an employee program

• a retailer program

• game design measures

• appropriate controls in online gaming channels

•  highlighting responsible play in advertising and marketing 
communications

• educating players on responsible play

• ensuring treatment referral is available

• engaging key stakeholders

• reporting and measuring outcomes.

Lotterywest is also a member of the Western Australian 
Problem Gambling Support Service Committee. Chaired by the 
Department of Racing, Gaming and Liquor, other members 
include Crown, TAB and Department of Communities. The 
Committee supports the annual Responsible Gambling 
Awareness Week campaign hosted in October and an annual 

program of community awareness. The Committee also 
oversees the provision of gambling support services around 
WA of which Lotterywest contributes to. 

Reconciliation Action Plan
Lotterywest’s activities over the past year included staging a 
NAIDOC Week event with three students from Kiara College, 
who spoke to Lotterywest staff about their academic success 
and ambitions for the future, including university. 

Lotterywest also participated in the Public Sector Commission’s 
Aboriginal Traineeship program this year.

We are proud to fly the Aboriginal flag at our head office and 
acknowledge Aboriginal people as the traditional custodians 
of our land at formal Lotterywest events.

Environment and Energy Plan
Reflecting Lotterywest’s aim to minimise our environmental 
footprint, our new premises in Subiaco which we will  
relocate to in October 2016, is a five and a half star NABRS 
rated property.

Follow You Printing and Follow You Scanning was introduced 
across the organisation in February 2016 to reduce printing 
wastage and improve security of hard copy prints. In the four 
months since introduction, Follow You Printing has saved over 
45,000 sheets of paper providing significant financial and 
environmental savings.

The implementation of our Electronic Document Records 
Management System (E-Dreams) will also see an ongoing 
decline in paper usage. 

We’re just a hard battling family 
and we don’t want this win to change 
us. This never happens to people like 
us!” said the winners.

  Largest Lotto prize in 
WA history

A family from south of the river rewrote Lotterywest’s history 
books with their $50 million Powerball win in July 2015. The 
salt of the earth family were humbled by their enormous 
$50 million Powerball windfall. But they were determined to 
remain the same grounded people as before they bought 
their winning ticket from newsXpress Armadale.
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Significant issues impacting agency
Lotterywest is facing a number of environmental challenges 
such as changes in the economy, decline in population 
growth, demographic changes, technology trends, lottery and 
gaming developments, retail trends, and funding opportunities 
for the not-for-profit sector. Challenges to Lotterywest 
achieving its objectives are: 

• maintaining brand position and reputation

• retail and technology trends

•  an increasingly competitive commercial environment and the 
emergence of new competitors in the gaming market place

• increased support needs in the community sector driven by: 

- growth of the sector

-  changes in the way community demand is funded by 
government

- declining levels of corporate and philanthropic support

- the need to build sector capacity

•  access to and awareness of Lotterywest Grants and 
Community Development services

• developing organisational capability.

It’s the people that we meet that make 
our day. We’ve made so many friends along 
the way and everyone has an interesting 
story to tell. I’ve also enjoyed the experience 
of being on the journey with Lotterywest to 
transform the appearance of our kiosk. Our 
customers have been very positive about the 
new look and feel of the store.

  Retailer profile 
Livingston Lot-O-Luck  

Geetha Saiganesh owns three Lotterywest stores with 
her kiosk, Livingston-Lot-O-Luck, being a concept store for 
the Retail Transformation Program. Since 2011 Livingston-
Lot-O-Luck has sold two Division 1 winning tickets plus a 
Scratch’n’Win Top Prize while Geetha has enjoyed working 
with Lotterywest and engaging with her customers.

Lotterywest Field Technicians - Phillip, Alan, Peter and Tung.
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Disclosures and legal compliance
Ministerial directives 
No Ministerial directives were received during the financial year.

Information statement
Lotterywest’s policy is to provide as much information as possible 
to the public within the bounds of commercial requirements. 
Members of the public can access the following publications from 
Lotterywest’s head office at 74 Walters Drive, Osborne Park: 

• 2014-18 Strategic Plan

• Lotterywest Information Statement

• Player Guide Brochures. 

In addition, Lotterywest publishes its Information Statement 
on its website in accordance with Section 94 of the Freedom 
of Information Act (FOI) 1992. The website also provides 
information on our organisation, game results and grants.

Recordkeeping plan 
Lotterywest will review its approved Recordkeeping Plan early 
in 2017. As part of the induction process, new staff are made 
aware of their Lotterywest Recordkeeping Plan responsibilities 
and records compliance requirements.

Governance disclosures 
• Contracts with senior officers

At the date of this report, no senior officers, or firms which 
senior officers are members, or entities in which senior 
officers have substantial interest, had any interests in existing 
or proposed contracts with Lotterywest other than normal 
contracts of employment of service.

Lotterywest provide grants to a broad range of not-for-profit 
beneficiaries. Board members have disclosed a standing 

declaration of any such interests. In matters which may extend 
beyond mere association, Board members are required to 
disclose the full extent of their interest and abstain from voting 
or participating in the decision making process. 

• Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

An insurance policy indemnifies Board Members and directors 
(as defined in Part 3 of the Statutory Corporations (Liability 
of Directors) Act 1996) against liability under Section 13 and 
14 of that Act. The 2015/16 premium was $18,452 with $182 
contributed by Board members to this premium.

• Enabling legislation

The Lotteries Commission (trading as Lotterywest) operates 
under the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 (the Act) and its 
subsidiary legislation. Lotterywest’s functions under the Act 
are to conduct lotteries and to perform any other function 
vested by the Act (primarily concerning the distribution and 
administration of grants). Our subsidiary legislation includes: 

• Lotteries Commission (Policy Instruments) Regulations 2010
• Lotteries Commission Regulations 1991
• Lotteries Commission (Cash 3) Rules 1998 
• Lotteries Commission (Designated Authorities) Regulations 1998 
• Lotteries Commission (Instant Lottery) Rules 1996 
• Lotteries Commission (Internet Entries) Rules 2010
•  Lotteries Commission (Monday and Wednesday Lotto) Rules 2006
• Lotteries Commission (OZ Lotto) Rules 1995 
• Lotteries Commission (Powerball) Rules 1996 
• Lotteries Commission (Saturday Lotto) Rules 1996 
• Lotteries Commission (Soccer Pools) Rules 1996 
• Lotteries Commission (Super66) Rules 1996 
• Lotteries Commission (Set for Life) Rules 2014.

Other key legislation impacting on Lotterywest’s activities include:

• A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax) Act 1999 (Cwth)

It’s a great outcome. I’ve worked 
my whole life and karma has certainly 
come back around for us. 

  Mandurah Lotto 
winner hangs up  
FIFO life for wife

A former FIFO worker who’d recently lost his job decided to try 
his luck in Lotto and ended up winning $1,008,278 in Saturday 
Lotto from a ticket purchased at Mandurah City News. 

The man said the best part of the win was being able to 
start a different trade where he can work less hours and 
spend more quality time with his wife.
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Disclosures and legal compliance
• Auditor General Act 2006
• Competition and Consumer Act 2010 (Cwth)
• Competition Policy Reform Act 1996
• Copyright Act 1968 (Cwth)
• Corporation Act 2001 (Cwth)
• Corruption and Crime Commission Act 2003
• Disability Services Act 1993
• Electronic Transactions Act 1999 (Cwth)
• Electronic Transactions Act 2011 
• Equal Opportunity Act 1984 
• Financial Management Act 2006
• Freedom of Information Act 1992
• Fringe Benefits Tax Act 1986 (Cwth)
• Gaming and Betting (Contracts and Securities) Act 1985
• Gaming and Wagering Commission Act 1987 
• Gaming and Wagering Commission Regulations 1988
• Industrial Relations Act 1979
• Interactive Gambling Act 2001 (Cwth)
• Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993
• Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984 
• Patents Act 1990 (Cwth)
• Privacy Act 1988 (Cwth)
• Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003
• Public Sector Management Act 1994
• Retail Trading Hours Act 1987
• Salaries and Allowances Act 1975
• Spam Act 2003 (Cwth)
• State Records Act 2000
• State Supply Commission Act 1991
• State Superannuation Act 2000
• Statutory Corporations (Liability of Directors) Act 1996
• Superannuation Guarantee Charge Act 1992 (Cwth)
• Superannuation Act 2005 (Cwth)
• Trade Marks Act 1995 (Cwth)
• Unclaimed Money Act 1990 (WA)
• Workplace Gender Equality Act 2012 (Cwth).

Board and committee remuneration
Position Name Salary Superannuation Period of  

membership 
Total remuneration 
2015-16 

Chair Heather Zampatti $46,856 $4,451 9 months $51,307

Chair John Atkins $10,412 $989 2 months $11,401

Member Miriam Borthwick $31,236 $2,967 12 months $34,203

Member Stephen Carre $31,236 $2,967 12 months $34,203

Member Andrea Hall $31,236 $2,967 12 months $34,203

Member Maria Harries $31,236 $2,967 12 months $34,203

Member Garry Trinder $31,236 $2,967 12 months $34,203

Total: $233,723

Other legal requirements 
Expenditure on advertising, market research, polling and direct mail 

Advertising agencies $ 3,696,649 Longtail Communications $ 1,522,566

Meerkats $ 860,796

Spirit Visual $ 154,697

Marketforce $ 1,012,297

Getting Hectic $ 146,293

Market research agencies $ 120,868 Painted Dog $ 462

Colmar Brunton $ 120,406

Polling agencies $ nil $ nil

Direct mail agencies $ 120,450 Pro-Active Games $ 38,885

ABNote $ 81,565

Media advertising agencies $ 16,168,823 Carat $ 13,128,793 

OMD $ 3,015,393 

Adcorp $ 24,367

Total Expenditure $ 20,106,790

Lotterywest 2016 Annual Report      45



Public interest disclosures 
During the year Lotterywest did not receive any public interest 
disclosures within the meaning of the Public Interest Disclosure 
Act 2003.

Freedom of Information
During the year, 11 Freedom of Information applications were 
received of which 10 were finalised. The average time to 
complete these applications was 41 days. Three applications 
for internal review were also received.

Disability access and inclusion  
plan outcomes 
Lotterywest’s Disability Access and Inclusion Plan (DAIP) 2012-
2016 seeks to improve the experience of people with a disability 
when they visit, work or communicate with us. To support this 
aim, the DAIP desired outcomes are that people with disability 
have the same opportunity as other people to: 

• access services and events organised by Lotterywest

• access buildings and other facilities of Lotterywest

•  receive information in a format that will enable them to 
access the information

• the level and quality of service from the staff of Lotterywest

• make complaints to Lotterywest

• participate in any public consultation by Lotterywest

• obtain and maintain employment with Lotterywest.

A detailed operational plan facilitates and measures 
performance against these planned outcomes. Of note, the 
design of Lotterywest’s new premises provides amenity and 
support to staff and visitors with disabilities. This will include 
ample staff and visitor disabled parking and wheelchair 
access. The plan can be accessed on Lotterywest’s website.

Compliance with Public Sector Standards 
and ethical codes 
Employees of Lotterywest, other than designated members of 
the Senior Executive Service, are government officers, not public 
servants. Lotterywest is not bound by Part 3 of the Public Sector 
Management Act 1994. Lotterywest has however complied with 
the Public Sector Standards in Human Resource Management 
(HRM), the Public Sector Code of Ethics and the Lotterywest 
Code of Conduct as follows:

•  All employees have access to information about the HRM 
Standards, Commissioner’s Instructions and Human Resource 
policies.

•  Checklists are used for compliance against each of the HRM 
Standards and Commissioner’s Instructions in administering 
the HR function and reviewing all transactions.

•  Particular attention is given to reviewing recruitment decisions 
for compliance with the Employment Standard and Filling a 
Public Sector Vacancy.

There were no breach of standards claims in 2015/16.

Public Sector Code of Ethics and 
Lotterywest Code of Conduct
The Public Sector Code of Ethics and Lotterywest’s Code of 
Conduct are given to all new staff and available to all staff on 
the Lotterywest intranet.

During the year, Lotterywest delivered the accountable and 
ethical decision making course to six staff.

Confidentiality Agreements and National Police Clearances are 
required of all staff and contractors. This helps manage the 
level of risk associated with working in an organisation which 
holds commercially sensitive information.

Occupational Safety, Health and Injury 
Management
Occupational health and safety and injury management 
policies and systems are in place. This is in accordance with the 
requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984 
and Workers’ Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981. 

Operational plans include goals to address risk and improve 
health and safety in the workplace. The OSH Committee is the 
formal mechanism for consultation and reporting between 
management and staff. 

An injury management system is in place in accordance with 
the Workers’ Compensation and Injury Management Act 
1981. The HR team consults with the employee, their manager 
and medical practitioners on the development of an injury 
management plan. This process has been successful in 
helping several employees return to work after significant 
illness or injury.

Disclosures and legal compliance
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Occupational Safety, Health and Injury Management Results

Measure Actual Results Target2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Number of fatalities 0 0 0 0

Lost time injury and/or 
disease incidence rate

1.5 2 1.4
0 or 

10% reduction

Lost time injury and/or 
disease severity rate

33.3% 25.0% 0
0 or 10% 
reduction

Percentage of injured 
workers returned 
within 26 weeks

75% 75% 66%
80% or more 

to return within 
26 weeks

Percentage of 
managers trained 
in OSH and injury 
management

70% 70% 70%
80% or more 
to be trained

The Occupational Safety and Health Committee met once 
during the 2015/16 year.

Unauthorised Use of Credit Cards
Officers of Lotterywest hold corporate credit cards where their 
functions warrant. Despite each cardholder being reminded 
of their obligations under Lotterywest’s Credit Card Policy, 
four employees inadvertently utilised the corporate credit 
card for personal transactions. The matter was not referred 
for any disciplinary action as the Chief Finance Officer noted 
prompt advice and settlement of the personal use amount, 
and that the nature of the expenditure was immaterial and 
characteristic of an honest mistake.

Aggregate amount of personal use expenditure $257

Aggregate amount settled within 5 working days $66

Aggregate amount settled after 5 working days $191

Aggregate amount outstanding at balance date $0

Risk and audit
•  Audit and Risk Management Committee 

The Chair of the Audit and Risk Management Committee is 
Andrea Hall (Board member). Other committee members are 
Heather Zampatti (Board Chair) and Stephen Carre (Board 
member).

•  Information Security Framework 
Lotterywest is certified under the World Lottery Association 
(WLA) Security Certification Standard. ISO 2700: Information 
Security Management forms part of the WLA security 
standard. WLA certification fosters continuous improvement 
of our business, systems and key processes and is vital in 
driving professionalism and security across the organisation. 
During the year Lotterywest underwent the re-certification 
audit process and awaits confirmation of the outcome.

•  Internal Audit 
Lotterywest’s Internal Auditor for 2015/16 was Ernst & Young.  
A tender for the new audit contract term was awarded to 
KPMG who start in 2016/17. During the year, Lotterywest 
reviewed and updated its Internal Audit and Risk 
Management Committee Charter which provides the 
framework for the internal audit function.

•  Risk Framework 
Lotterywest has adopted the principles of the Australian/
New Zealand Risk Management Standard AS/NZS ISO 
31000:2009 for its business operations. It began a thorough 
review and restructure of its Risk Framework and Strategic 
Risk Register during the year. Lotterywest conducts strategic 
and operational risk assessments and puts in place action 
plans for controls and treatment where appropriate. During 
the year it conducted business continuity testing. 

Risk is a standing item on the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee’s agenda for consideration. The committee 
regularly reviews the Risk Register.

I’m the first one in my family to own a 
brand new car, I still can’t believe it! 

  Bunbury family drive 
away in brand new car 

It was a case of perfect timing for the Bunbury family who 
were due to look at a cheap second hand car the day 
they scratched their way to a brand new car! A $10 Beaut 
Utes Scratch’n’Win ticket from Bunbury Centrepoint Lottery 
Centre and News delivered the couple a brand new 
Toyota Hilux Ute. 
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The accompanying financial statements of the Lotteries Commission 
have been prepared in compliance with the provisions of the 
Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records 
to present fairly the financial transactions for the financial year 
ended 30 June 2016 and the financial position as at 30 June 2016.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances 
which would render the particulars included in the financial 
statements misleading or inaccurate.

JEREMY HUBBLE 
Chief Finance Officer 

25 August 2016

HEATHER ZAMPATTI 
Chair  
Accountable Authority

25 August 2016

ANDREA HALL 
Commissioner 
Accountable Authority

25 August 2016

Financial Statements

48      Lotterywest 2016 Annual Report



Lotterywest 2016 Annual Report      49



Outcome Statement
Lotteries are conducted with the proceeds returned to the community of Western Australia

Services 
1. Sale of lottery products to the public of Western Australia 
2. Provision of grants and other distributions to the community of Western Australia

Effectiveness Indicators Actual 
2015/16

Budget 
2015/16

Actual 
2014/15

Actual 
2013/14

Actual 
2012/13

Actual 
2011/12

1. Sales per Adult $424.88 $401.19 $404.49 $397.11 $424.19 $421.79
2. Total Allocation to Beneficiaries per Capita $106.98 $100.48 $110.28 $107.61 $112.77 $109.84
3. Total Allocation to Beneficiaries as a % of Sales 31.6% 31.5% 34.2% 34.0% 33.4% 33.9%

Efficiency Indicators Actual 
2015/16

Budget 
2015/16

Actual 
2014/15

Actual 
2013/14

Actual 
2012/13

Actual 
2011/12

4.  Lottery Expenses as a % of Sales* 5.9% 6.1% 5.7% 5.7% 5.5% 5.6%
5.  Grants Operations Expenses as a % of Direct Grants Approved 13.5% 15.6% 11.7% 12.0% 11.2% 10.7%

Base Data Actual 
2015/16

Budget 
2015/16

Actual 
2014/15

Actual 
2013/14

Actual 
2012/13

Actual 
2011/12

a. Total Population (million) 2.6305 2.7559 2.5654 2.5206 2.4327 2.3522
b. Adult Population (million) 2.0935 2.1935 2.0429 2.0070 1.9349 1.8084
c.  Total Sales (million) $889.49 $880.00 $826.35 $796.99 $820.76 $762.68
d. Total Allocated to Beneficiaries (million) $281.41 $276.92 $282.90 $271.23 $274.34 $258.36
e. Total Approved Direct Grants (million) $118.84 $115.00 $130.85 $124.46 $123.31 $117.89
f.  Total Lottery Expenses** (million) $636.54 $634.96 $589.76 $569.66 $584.18 $544.77
g.  Lotteries Operations Expenses (million) $52.34 $53.94 $46.72 $45.21 $45.28 $42.84
h.  Grants Operations Expenses (million) $16.10 $17.98 $15.32 $14.93 $13.76 $12.60

Notes: 
*   Lottery Expenses include all administrative costs (excluding cost of sales) associated with selling of lottery products.    
**    Total Lottery Expenses include the cost of sales (including prizes and the commission paid) and all operational costs associated with selling of lottery products and administering the grants funding.    

 For the purpose of these Indicators, the Goods and Services Tax has been excluded from expense calculations; and beneficiaries refers to the allocation prescribed in the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 to the Hospital Fund, the Sports Account, the 
Arts Account and to eligible organisations of “approved purposes”.

Key Performance Indicator Tables
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Notes to the Key Performance Indicator Tables
Effectiveness Indicators
1.  This measure shows the effectiveness of Lotterywest in 

entering the players’ market that is considered to be the 
adult population in Western Australia. The positive variance 
in sales per adult to budget is a result of two factors. Firstly, 
total sales have exceeded budget expectations. This is due 
to strong performance of our jackpotting products, OZ Lotto 
and Powerball, as well as a very strong result of our new 
product, Set for Life. Secondly, the population prediction 
published by ABS at the time of setting the budget was 
higher than the forecasted figures by the Treasury. 

 The increase in sales per adult against the previous year  
is attributable to an overall increase in sales performance  
in 2015/16 as a result of higher level of jackpots for Powerball 
and OZ Lotto this financial year as well as the launch of  
Set for Life.

 Note: Adult population refers to the number of Western 
Australians of 16 years and over who are permitted by the 
Lotteries Commission Act (1990) to purchase lottery products.

2. This measure relates to Lotterywest’s grant funding function 
which is to provide funds and support to the community of 
Western Australia. The favourable to budget result this year 
is a consequence of higher than anticipated sales result, 
combined with lower than expected population estimates.

 This measure is lower than the previous year as a result 
of a reduction of $11m to the direct grant programme. The 
reduction was implemented to provide a sustainable level 
of direct grants and to preserve prudent cash reserves. 

3. This measure shows the effectiveness of Lotterywest in 
converting sales revenue to community grants.  

This year Lotterywest approved 31.6% of gross sales revenue 
as grants for the Western Australian community, which is 
above budget. This level of return is well above that stipulated 
in the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 which provides that 67.5% 
of net subscriptions be returned in the form of grants to the 
Western Australian community. By way of comparison, this 
equates to a funding to sales ratio of approximately 25%.

 This measure is lower than the previous year. The main 
reason is the lower distribution to direct grant programme 
of $11m. 

Efficiency Indicators
4. This indicator shows the efficiency of Lotterywest in 

generating its sales revenue. It excludes the Grants 
Operations expenses. The ratio of 5.9% is favourable to 
budget and mainly due to delays in expenditure relating to 
the Retail Transformation Program. 

 This measure is higher than previous year. Lottery 
Operations expense is $5.6m higher and is mainly 
attributable to increase in advertising expenses across 
media channels and salary and wage expense.

5. This measure shows the ratio of expenditure associated 
with the grants distribution to not for profit and benevolent 
organisations. The result for 2015/16 of 13.5 cents of 
expenditure for every dollar of direct grants distributed 
is lower than budgeted. This is primarily due to lower 
expenditure and higher direct grants than budgeted.

 This measure is higher than previous year due to the 
increase of salary and wage expense for redundancy 
payments arising from the organisational restructure and 
reduction in the total direct grant budget.

Base Data
(a)/(b)  Lotterywest uses population figures sourced from  

the Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS) in calculating  
its performance indicators.

  The total population of Western Australia is used for 
Community Grants indicators as all Western Australians 
benefit from the community funding grants program. 

  The adult population figures are used for Lottery 
Product indicators as only adults (aged 16 years and 
over) are permitted to purchase lottery products in 
Western Australia.

(c)   This shows Lotterywest’s total annual gross sales for 
the financial year 2015/16.

(d)   This item shows the total of all statutory and direct 
grants allocated for 2015/16 including amounts 
reallocated from prior years. 

(e)   This item shows the total approved direct grants 
allocated for 2015/16. 

(f)   The Total Lottery Expenses includes Lotteries Operations 
Expenses ($52.3m), Grants Operations Expenses 
($16.1m), Cost of Sales, which consists of prizes ($500.1m) 
and retailers’ commission ($67.9m), excludes payments 
of GST on the gaming margin on the basis that such 
payments are refunded by the State Government.

(g)   This figure shows the total operational costs in 
operating the lotteries business. It excludes the 
Grants operations expenses.

(h)  This figures reflects the total costs in undertaking the 
grant funding administration and distribution function, it 
excludes Lotteries operations expenses.
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Statement of Financial Position As at 30 June 2016

Note 2016 
$000

2015 
$000

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 20 36,917 14,845
Inventories 1,369 842
Receivables 9 10,634 11,166
Held to Maturity Financial Assets 10 45,163 70,202
Non Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale 11 — 1,614
Other Current Assets 12 469 393

Total Current Assets 94,552 99,062

Non Current Assets
Held to Maturity Financial Assets 10 182,300 158,300
Property, Plant and Equipment 13 27,376 21,576
Intangibles 14 13,671 17,166

Total Non Current Assets 223,347 197,042

Total Assets 317,899 296,104

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Payables 16 174,496 168,186
Provisions 17 30,586 31,026
Other Liabilities 18 9,099 5,061

Total Current Liabilities 214,181 204,273

Non Current Liabilities
Payables 16 13,570 250
Provisions 17 1,330 1,256

Total Non Current Liabilities 14,900 1,506

Total Liabilities 229,081 205,779

NET ASSETS 88,818 90,325

EQUITY
Asset Revaluation Reserve 19 8,540 9,162
Retained Earnings 19 80,278 81,163

Total Equity 88,818 90,325

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statement of Comprehensive Income For the year ended 30 June 2016

Note 2016 
$000

2015 
$000

INCOME
Revenue

Sales of Lottery Products 3 889,487 826,344
Interest Revenue 9,514 10,963
Other Revenue 4 14,204 13,489

Total Income 913,205 850,796 

EXPENSES
Cost of Lottery Sales 3 603,564 560,730
Lotteries Operations 5 52,347 46,742
Grants and Community  
Development Operations

6 16,096 15,319

Returns to Grant Beneficiaries 7 277,551 278,060

Total Expenses 949,558 900,851

Loss before Grants from State Government (36,353) (50,055)

Grants from State Government 8 35,468 33,031

Loss for the Period (885) (17,024)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items not reclassified subsequently to profit and loss

Changes in Asset Revaluation Surplus 19 (622) —

Total Other Comprehensive Income (622) —

Total Comprehensive (Loss) for the Period (1,507) (17,024)

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes, particularly Note 
27 ‘Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service’.

Images:
1. Lotterywest Product Marketing team - Nicholas and Monique.
2.  Marketforce Account team - Rebecca and Brendon with Lotterywest  

Marketing and Brand Development team - Andrea and Leah.
3. Lotterywest Field Technicians - Phillip and Alan. 
4. Lotterywest Retail Supplies team - Dilys, Duke, Steve, and Chad. 
5. Lotterywest Strategy and Planning team - Gavin and Tanya.
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Statement of Changes in Equity For the year ended 30 June 2016

Note Asset 
Revaluation

$000

Retained 
Earnings

$000

Total  
Equity
$000

Balance at 1 July 2014 9,162 98,187 107,349
Profit/(loss) for the period 19 — (17,024) (17,024)

Other comprehensive income — — —

Total comprehensive profit/
loss for the period

 
9,162

 
(17,024)

 
(17,024)

Balance at 30 June 2015 9,162 81,163 90,325

Balance at 1 July 2015 9,162 81,163 90,325
Profit/(loss) for the period 19 — (885) (885)
Other comprehensive income (622) — (622)

Total comprehensive profit/
loss for the period

 
(622)

 
(885)

 
(1,507)

Balance at 30 June 2016 8,540 80,278 88,818

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statement of Cash Flows For the year ended 30 June 2016

Note 2016 
$000

2015 
$000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts

Sale of Lottery Products 898,539 834,079
Interest Received 9,700 11,400
GST Receipts on Sales 876 459

Payments
Prizes and Retailers’ Commissions (546,435) (517,830)
Employee Benefits (25,061) (22,415)
Suppliers and Services (38,182) (33,123)
Direct Grants (109,152) (140,778)
GST Payments on Purchases (21,973) (23,942)
GST Payments to Taxation Authority (13,749) (10,050)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 20 154,563 97,800

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of Non Current Assets (8,141) (4,030)
Proceeds from Non Current Assets  
Classified as Held for Sale

11 1,494 —

Proceeds from Maturing Investments 1,039 32,270

Net Cash from Investing Activities (5,608) 28,240

Cash Flows (to)/from State Government
GST Reimbursements 35,467 32,906
Statutory Payments to Beneficiaries (162,350) (152,412)

Net Cash (Provided to) State Government (126,883) (119,506)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash  
and Cash Equivalents

 
22,072 

 
6,534

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning  
of Period

 
14,845

 
8,311

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period 20 36,917 14,845

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2016

1. Australian Accounting Standards

Lotterywest’s financial statements for the year ended 30 
June 2016 have been prepared in accordance with Australian 
Accounting Standards. The term “Australian Accounting 
Standards” includes Standards and Interpretations issued by 
the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB).

Lotterywest has adopted any applicable new and revised 
Australian Accounting Standards from their operative dates.

Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard

Lotterywest has applied the following Australian Accounting 
Standards effective for annual reporting periods beginning  
on or after 1 July 2016 that impacted on Lotterywest.

•  AASB 2015-2 – Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 101 
(operative for reporting periods beginning on or after  
1 January 2016)

The Standard makes amendments to AASB 101 Presentation of 
Financial Statements arising from the IASB’s Disclosure Initiative 
project. The amendments are designed to further encourage 
companies to apply professional judgment in determining 
what information to disclose in the financial statements. For 
example, the amendments make clear that materiality applies 
to the whole of financial statements and that the inclusion of 
immaterial information can inhibit the usefulness of financial 
disclosures. The amendments also clarify that companies 
should use professional judgment in determining where and in 
what order information is presented in the financial disclosures.

This Amendment clarifies when materiality and professional 
judgement should be applied in determining what 
information to disclose in the financial statements, and thus 
will have no impact on Lotterywest.

Early adoption of Standards 

Lotterywest cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting 
Standard unless specifically permitted by Treasurer’s 
Instruction 1101 Application of Australian Accounting 
Standards and Other Pronouncements. No Standards and 
Interpretations that have been issued or amended but are 
not yet effective have been early adopted by Lotterywest 
for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2016. 
Consequently, Lotterywest has not applied the following 
Australian Accounting Standards. 

Future Impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet 
effective

•  AASB 9 – Financial Instruments 
(operative for reporting periods beginning on or after  
1 January 2018) 
AASB 9 includes requirements for the classification and 
measurement of financial assets. It was further amended 
by AASB 2010-7 to reflect amendments to the accounting for 
financial liabilities. These requirements improve and simplify 
the approach for classification and measurement of financial 
assets compared with the requirements of AASB 139.  
Lotterywest does not expect a material financial impact 
when the Standard is first applied. 

•  AASB 15 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
(operative for reporting periods beginning on or after  
1 January 2018) 
The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity recognises 
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services 
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to 
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those 
goods or services.  
 
 

Lotterywest has not yet determined the application or the 
potential impact of the Standard. However, the nature of 
Lotterywest’s revenue and incentives suggest there will be  
no material financial impact.

•  AASB 2015-6 – Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Extending Related Party Disclosures to  
Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities 
(operative for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2016) 
This Standard extends the scope of AASB 124 to include 
not-for-profit public sector entities. The key impact of 
the amendments is to specify consistent related party 
disclosure requirements for the Australian Government, 
State Governments, local councils and other not-for-profit 
public sector entities. 
There will not be a financial impact on Lotterywest.

•  AASB 2015-7 – Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Fair Value Disclosures of Not-for-Profit 
Public Sector Entities 
(operative for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2016) 
This standard relieves not-for-profit sector entities from 
making certain specified disclosures about the fair value 
measurement of assets within the scope of AASB 116 
Property, Plant and Equipment which are primarily held 
for their current service potential rather than to generate 
future net cash inflows. 
Lotterywest has not yet determined the application or the 
potential impact of the Standard.

•  AASB 16 Leases  
(operative for reporting periods beginning on or after  
1 January 2019. 
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This standard includes the leases of all assets, with certain 
exceptions. The new standard requires lessees to account 
for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model 
(subject to certain exemptions) in a similar way to finance 
leases under AASB 117. 

Lotterywest has not yet determined the application or the 
potential impact of the standard.

2.  Summary of Significant  
Accounting Policies

(a) General Statement

Lotterywest is a Statutory Authority and a not-for-profit 
reporting entity that prepares general purpose financial 
statements in accordance with the Australian Accounting 
Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting 
Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the 
AASB as applied by the Treasurer’s Instructions. Several of 
these are modified by the Treasurer’s Instructions to vary 
application, disclosure, format and wording.

The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s 
Instructions are legislative provisions governing the preparation 
of financial statements and take precedence over the Australian 
Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting 
Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB.

Where modification is required and has had a material or 
significant financial effect upon the reported results, details of 
that modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed 
in the notes to the financial statements.

(b) Basis of Preparation and Key Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty 

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual 
basis of accounting using the historical cost convention, 
except for land, buildings and infrastructure which have been 
measured at fair value.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the 
financial statements have been consistently applied throughout 
all periods unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and 
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($’000).

Long Service Leave
In calculating Lotterywest’s long service leave provision, several 
estimations and assumptions have been made. These include 
expected future salary rates, salary inflation, discount rates, 
employee retention rates and expected future payments. 

Depreciation of Non Current Assets
In providing depreciation of all non current assets including 
intangible assets (software application), the estimated useful life 
reflects the consumption of the assets’ future economic benefits. 

(c)  Classification of Current and Non Current Assets and 
Liabilities

Lotterywest presents assets and liabilities in the statement of 
financial position based on current/non-current classification. 
An asset is current when it is: 

•  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or 
consumed in the normal operating cycle; 

•  Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

•   Expected to be realised within twelve months after the 
reporting period; or 

•  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being 
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when: 

• It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; 

• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

•  It is due to be settled within twelve months after the 
reporting period; or 

•  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of 
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 
period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current

(d) Income Recognition

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration 
received or receivable. Revenue is recognised for major 
business activities as follows:

  (i)  Sales of goods revenue 
Recognised from the sale of tickets when the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership transfer to 
the purchaser and can be measured reliably.

   Sales revenue representing gross sales of all games 
of Lotto, Cash 3, Soccer Pools and Super 66, is 
recorded as at the date of the respective draw. Sales 
of instant lottery tickets are recognised when books 
of tickets are activated. 
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  (ii)  Grants, donations, gifts or other  
non reciprocal contributions 
Revenue from grants, donations, gifts or other non-
reciprocal contributions that are not contributions 
by owners are recognised at fair value. Revenue is 
recognised when Lotterywest has obtained control of 
the contribution (that is usually the date cash is received), 
it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the 
entity and the amount of the contribution can be reliably 
measured. Contributions of services are only recognised 
when a fair value can be reliably determined and the 
services would be purchased if not donated. 

 (iii)  Interest 
Recognised as the interest accrues using the effective 
interest method.

Gains
Recognised on a net basis. These include gains arising on 
the disposal of non current assets and some revaluation of 
non current assets.

(e) Property, Plant and Equipment

Capitalisation/Expensing of assets
Items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure costing 
$5,000 or more are recognised as assets and the cost of utilising 
assets is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives. Items of 
property, plant and equipment and infrastructure costing less 
than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income (other than where they form part of a 
group of similar items which are significant in total).

Initial recognition and measurement
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially 
recognised at cost.

For items of property, plant and equipment acquired at no 
cost or for nominal cost, the cost is the fair value at the date 
of acquisition. This applies to properties reverted back to 
Lotterywest.

Where a transfer of beneficial ownership in land and/or buildings 
from a Trust Estate has occurred, at no cost or for nominal cost, 
the fair value is recognised at the date of the reversion.

Subsequent measurement
After recognition as an asset, Lotterywest uses the revaluation 
model for the measurement of land and buildings and the 
cost model for all other property, plant and equipment. Land 
and buildings are carried at their fair value less accumulated 
depreciation on buildings and accumulated impairment losses. 
All other items of property, plant and equipment are carried 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses.

Where market evidence is available, the fair value of land and 
buildings is determined on the basis of current market values 
determined by reference to recent market transactions.

When buildings are revalued by reference to recent market 
transactions, the accumulated depreciation is eliminated 
against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net 
amount restated to the revalued amount.

Where market evidence is not available, the fair value of land 
and buildings is determined on the basis of existing use. This 
normally applies where buildings are specialised or where 
land use is restricted. Fair value for existing use buildings is 
determined by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining 
future economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the 
depreciated replacement cost. Where the fair value of buildings 
is determined on the depreciated replacement cost basis,  
the gross carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation 
are restated proportionately. Fair value for restricted use land is 

determined by comparison with market evidence for land with 
similar approximate utility (high restricted use land) or market 
value of comparable unrestricted land (low restricted use land).

Independent valuations of land and buildings are provided 
annually by the Western Australian Land Information Authority 
(Valuation Services) and recognised with sufficient regularity 
to ensure the carrying amount does not differ materially from 
the assets fair value at the end of the reporting period.

The most significant assumptions and judgements in 
estimating fair value are made in assessing whether to apply 
the existing use basis to assets and in determining estimated 
economic life. Professional judgement by the valuer is required 
where the evidence does not provide a clear distinction 
between market type assets and existing use assets.

Derecognition
Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of property, plant 
and equipment, any revaluation surplus relating to that asset 
is retained in the asset revaluation reserve.

Depreciation of non current assets
All non current assets having a limited useful life are 
systematically depreciated over their estimated useful life 
consistent with the consumption of their future economic 
benefits.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is 
provided on the straight line basis, using rates which are 
reviewed annually. Estimated useful lives for each class of 
depreciable asset:

Buildings  50 years

Leasehold Improvements 10 years

Equipment and Fittings 5 to 10 years

Computer Equipment 3 to 8 years
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Asset revaluation reserve
The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments 
and decrements on the revaluation of non-current assets as 
described in Note 13 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’.

Works of Art
Works of art controlled by Lotterywest are classified as 
property, plant and equipment. These are anticipated to have 
indefinite useful lives. Their service potential has not, in any 
material sense, been consumed during the reporting period 
and consequently no depreciation has been recognised.

Work in Progress
Costs associated with assets under development for use 
by Lotterywest are recognised as Work in Progress. Once 
completed, the assets are transferred to the appropriate asset 
account and are depreciated or amortised, as appropriate. 
No depreciation is provided during construction of assets.

(f) Intangibles

Acquisitions of intangible assets and internally generated 
intangible assets costing $5,000 or more are capitalised. The 
cost of utilising the assets is expensed (amortised) over their 
useful lives. Costs incurred below $5,000 are immediately 
expensed directly to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets 
acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is their fair 
value at the date of acquisition.

The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement 
requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with a finite useful life is 
calculated for the period of the expected benefit (estimated 
useful life which is reviewed annually) on the straight line basis.  

All intangible assets controlled by Lotterywest have a finite 
useful life and zero residual value (i.e. computer software is  
5 to 8 years).

Computer software
Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is 
treated as property, plant and equipment. Software that is 
not an integral part of the related hardware is treated as 
an intangible asset. Software costing less than $5,000 is 
expensed in the year of acquisition.

Development costs
Development costs incurred for an individual project are 
carried forward when the future economic benefits can 
reasonably be regarded as assured and the total project 
costs are likely to exceed $5,000.

(g) Impairment of Assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are 
tested for any indication of impairment at each reporting 
date. Where there is an indication of impairment, the 
recoverable amount is estimated. Where the recoverable 
amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is written 
down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is 
recognised. Where an asset measured at cost is written down 
to recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in 
profit or loss. Where a previously revalued asset is written 
down to recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a 
revaluation decrement in other comprehensive income.

As Lotterywest is a not-for-profit entity, unless an asset has 
been identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount 
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and 
depreciated replacement cost.

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances 
where an asset’s depreciation is materially understated, 
where the replacement cost is falling or where there is 
a significant change in useful life. Each relevant class of 
assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated 
depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption 
or expiration of the asset’s future economic benefits and to 
evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement costs.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible 
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at 
the end of each reporting period irrespective of whether there 
is any indication of impairment.

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus 
assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the 
present value of future cash flows expected to be derived 
from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have no 
risk of material impairment where fair value is determined 
by reference to market based evidence. Where fair value is 
determined by reference to depreciated replacement cost, 
surplus assets are at risk of impairment and the recoverable 
amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are tested for 
indications of impairment at the end of each reporting period.

(h) Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale are 
recognised at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less 
costs to sell, and are disclosed separately from other assets in 
the Statement of Financial Position. Assets classified as held 
for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

(i) Leases

Lotterywest has a number of government operating 
lease arrangements for motor vehicles, where the lessors 
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retain effectively all of the risks and benefits incident to 
the ownership of the leased asset. Lotterywest also holds 
operating leases for its business premises.

Equal instalments of the lease payments are charged to the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income over the lease term 
(i.e. on a straight line basis over the lease term), as this is 
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the 
leased vehicles and business premises.

Lease incentives received from entering into operating leases 
are recognised as unearned income and amortised on a 
straight line basis over the life of the lease term.

(j) Financial Instruments

In addition to cash and cash equivalents, Lotterywest has 
three categories of financial instruments:

• Loans and receivables (accounts receivable);

• Held to maturity investments (term deposits, floating 
rate notes);

• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (prizes 
and other payables, and returns to beneficiaries).

Initial recognition and measurement is at fair value which 
normally equates to the transaction cost or the face value. 
Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method.

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the 
face value because there is no interest rate applicable and 
subsequent measurement is not required as the effect of 
discounting is not material.

(k) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and 
cash equivalents includes cash on hand and short-term 

deposits with original maturities of three months or less that 
are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which 
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank 
overdrafts.

Lotterywest did not have any bank overdraft in the current 
year (2015: Nil).

(l) Inventories

Inventories are valued, on the first-in first-out basis, at 
the lower of cost and net realisable value.The inventories 
comprise instant lotto tickets and other consumables.

(m) Receivables

Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice 
amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts and 
are non interest bearing. The collectability of receivables is 
reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified 
as uncollectible are written-off against the allowance 
account. The allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful 
debts) is raised when there is objective evidence that 
Lotterywest will not be able to collect the debt. The carrying 
amount of receivables is equivalent to fair value as it is due  
for settlement within 30 days.

(n) Investments and Other Financial Assets

Lotterywest only has investments classified as held to 
maturity investments. At initial recognition, all held to maturity 
investments are measured at fair value. The fair value is 
usually the fair value of the consideration given, including any 
attributable transaction costs.

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments and fixed maturity dates are classified as held-
to-maturity when the intention and ability to hold to maturity 

is known. Investments intended to be held for an undefined 
period are not included in this classification.

Held to maturity investments are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Amortised 
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition, over the period to maturity.  
For investments carried at amortised cost, gains and losses 
are recognised in profit and loss when the investments 
are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the 
amortisation process.

Lotterywest assesses at each reporting date whether there is 
objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial 
assets is impaired.

(o) Payables

Payables, including amounts not yet billed, are recognised 
when Lottterywest becomes obliged to make future payments 
as a result of a purchase of assets or services for which 
settlement has not yet occurred. Payables, other than those 
that relate to prizes and returns to beneficiaries [see 2(p) and 
2(q) below], are generally settled within 30 days and as a 
result the carrying amount is considered to be equivalent to 
fair value.

(p) Prizes

Division 1 prizes are paid two weeks after the date of the 
draw, subject to claim. Set for Life’s 1st Prize is paid at 
$20,000 per month for a period of 20 years, except when the 
winner passes away before the payment term is completed, 
the remaining entitlement to prize payment is to be paid as 
lump sum to the deceased’s estate.

Set for Life games includes a ‘demand feature’ requiring 
payment of the remaining face value of the prize upon the 
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death of a winner. As a result, fair value reflects value at the 
earliest time the demand event could arise resulting in fair 
value reflecting the remaining face value of unpaid prizes.

Other prizes are paid upon receipt of a valid winning  
ticket, which remains valid for up to 12 months from  
the date of draw.

Prize liabilities are recognised by draw for Lotto, Super 66, 
Cash 3 and Soccer Pools and activation of instant lotteries 
by Retailers.

(q) Returns to Beneficiaries

Statutory Grants are recognised in accordance with Section 22 
of the Act.

Direct grants to eligible organisations for approved 
purposes are recognised when approved by the Minister. 
Unconditional grants are paid in full within days of the 
Minister’s approval. Conditional grants are paid as and 
when conditions are fulfilled.

When a grant is not taken up, it is written back against the 
current year’s grant expenditure, regardless of when it was 
approved.

(r) Provisions

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and amount. 
Lotterywest only recognises a provision where there is a 
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a 
past event and when the outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits is probable and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance date and adjusted to 
reflect the current best estimate.

Provisions – Prize Reserve

Lotterywest has a prize reserve fund to ensure sufficient 
funding is available for jackpots and bonus draws. The levels 
of prize reserves are administered by the Australian Lotto 
Bloc following pre-determined guidelines and funded by 
way of an allocation from each draw into the respective Prize 
Reserve funds.

Provisions - Employee Benefits

Annual leave and long service leave
All annual leave and unconditional long service leave 
provisions are classified as current liabilities as Lotterywest 
does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement 
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the 
reporting period.

Annual leave and long service leave not expected to be 
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the reporting 
period is considered to be “other long-term employee 
benefits”. The annual leave and long service leave liability is 
recognised and measured at the present value of amounts 
expected to be paid when the liabilites are settled using the 
remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement. 
Leave liabilities are in respect of services provided by 
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

When assessing expected future payments, consideration 
is given to expected future wage and salary levels including 
non-salary components such as employer superannuation 
contributions, as well as the experience of employee 
departures and periods of service.

The expected future payments are discounted to present 
value using market yields at the end of the reporting period on 
national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, 
as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

Sick leave
Liabilities for sick leave are recognised when it is probable 
that sick leave paid in the future will be greater than the 
entitlement that will accrue in the future. Past history 
indicates that on average, sick leave taken each reporting 
period is less than the entitlement accrued. This is expected 
to continue in future periods. Accordingly, it is unlikely 
that existing accumulated entitlements will be used by 
employees and no liability for unused sick leave entitlements 
is recognised. As sick leave is non-vesting, an expense is 
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for 
this leave as it is taken.

Deferred leave
The provision for deferred leave relates to Public Service 
employees who have entered into an agreement to self-
fund an additional 12 months leave in the fifth year of the 
agreement. The provision recognises the value of salary set 
aside for employees to be used in the fifth year. This liability is 
measured on the same basis as annual leave. Deferred leave 
is reported as a current provision as employees can leave the 
scheme at their discretion at any time.

Purchased leave
The provision for purchased leave relates to Public Service 
employees who have entered into an agreement to self-
fund up to an additional 10 weeks leave per calendar year. 
The provision recognises the value of salary forgone by 
employees and is measured at the undiscounted amounts 
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Superannuation
The Government Employees Superannuation Board 
(GESB) and other fund providers administer public sector 
superannuation arrangements in Western Australia 
in accordance with legislative requirements. Eligibility 
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criteria for membership in particular schemes for public 
sector employees vary according to commencement and 
implementation dates.

Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a 
defined benefit pension scheme closed to new members 
since 1987, or the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), 
a defined benefit lump sum scheme closed to new members 
since 1995.

Employees who commenced employment prior to 16 April 
2007 who were not members of either the Pension Scheme or 
the GSS became non-contributory members of the West State 
Superannuation Scheme (WSS). Employees who commenced 
employment on or after 16 April 2007 became members 
of the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS). From 30 March 2012, 
existing members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees 
can choose their preferred superannuation fund provider. 
Lotterywest makes concurrent contributions to GESB or other 
fund providers on behalf of employees in compliance with the 
Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation Guarantee 
(Administration) Act 1992. Contributions to these accumulation 
schemes extinguish Lotterywest’s liability for superannuation 
charges in respect of employees who are not members of the 
Pension Scheme or GSS.

The Pension Scheme and the pre-transfer benefit for 
employees who transferred to the GSS are defined benefit 
schemes. These benefits are wholly unfunded and the 
liabilities for future payments are provided at the end of the 
reporting period. The liabilities under these schemes have 
been calculated separately for each scheme annually by 
GESB’s actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The expected future payments are discounted to present 
value using market yields at the end of the reporting period on 

national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, 
as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

The GSS, the WSS, and the GESBS, where the current service 
superannuation charge is paid by Lotterywest to the GESB, 
are defined contribution schemes. The liabilities for current 
service superannuation charges under the GSS, the WSS, and 
the GESBS are extinguished by the concurrent payment of 
employer contributions to the GESB.

The GSS Scheme is a defined benefit scheme for the purpose 
of employees and whole of government reporting. However, 
from Lotterywest’s perspective, apart from the pre-transfer 
benefits, it is a defined contribution plan under AASB 119 
Employee Benefits.

Superannuation expense
Superannuation expense is recognised in the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income in profit or loss for defined 
contribution plans, including the concurrent payment of 
employer contributions to the GSS scheme, as and when the 
contributions fall due.

Subject to materiality for defined benefit plans (the Pension 
Scheme and the pre-transfer component of the GSS), changes 
in the defined benefit obligation may be recognised in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income either in profit or loss, or, 
other comprehensive income as follows:

• Profit or loss:

 - current service cost;
 - past service cost; and
 - interest cost.

• Other comprehensive income:

 - actuarial gains and losses;

Provisions – Other 

Employment on costs
Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation 
insurance and payroll tax, are not employee benefits and are 
recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the 
employment to which they relate has occurred. Employment 
on costs are included as part of ‘Other expenses’ and are 
not included as part of Lotterywest’s ‘Employee benefits 
expenses’. The related liability is however included in 
‘Employee on costs provision’.

(s) Accrued Salaries

Accrued salaries represent the amount due to staff but 
unpaid at the end of the financial year, as the end of the last 
pay period for that financial year does not coincide with the 
end of the financial year. Accrued salaries are settled within a 
fortnight of the end of the financial year. Lotterywest considers 
the carrying amount of the accrued salaries to be equivalent 
to the fair value.

(t)  Assets and Services Received Free of Charge or for 
Nominal Cost

Assets and resources received free of charge or for nominal 
cost that Lotterywest would otherwise purchase if not 
donated, are recognised as income at the fair value of the 
assets or serivces where they can be reliaby measured. 
A corresponding expense is recognised for services received. 
Receipts of assets are recognised in the Statement of 
Financial Position.

Assets and services received from other State Government 
agencies are disclosed separately under Income from State 
Government in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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(u)  Goods and Services Tax and Grants from State Government

The Goods and Services Tax (GST) is not applied to the consumption of gambling services.  
It is however, applied to the gambling margin defined as the subscription less the amount 
of prizes. Accordingly the State Government provides reimbursement to gambling operators 
(including Lotterywest) for GST paid on the operators’ margin. Lotterywest applies the 
reimbursement to maintain the level of returns to beneficiaries.

The GST paid on the operating margin is disclosed as a cost of producing trading profit 
(see Note 3). Treasurers’ Instruction 1102 also requires the reimbursement of the GST to be 
disclosed as a Grant from the State Government rather than offset against the cost to which  
it applies.

In accordance with GST legislation, GST is now attributed to the full amount of sales in advance.

(v) Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are initially translated into Australian currency 
at the rates of exchange applicable at the date of the transaction. At the reporting date, 
amounts payable and receivable in foreign currencies are translated to Australian currency at 
rates of exchange at that date. Resulting exchange gains and losses (if any) are recognised in 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(w) Comparative Figures

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures 
presented in the current financial year.

(x) Changes in Accounting Estimates

During the current financial year, the estimated useful life of an intangible asset being the 
Electronic Data Records Management System was revised from 10 years to 6 years to better 
reflect the nature of this investment and the likely economic life in which the asset is capable 
of operating. This change in estimates has been recognised prospectively in the financial 
statements from 1 July 2015. The effects of the above mentioned changes on the annual 
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2016 and future periods are as follows:

Amortisation Expense 2016
$’000

2017
$’000

2018
$’000

2019
$’000

2020
$’000

New amortisation method 477 477 477 477 477

Old amortisation method 265 265 265 265 265

Difference 212 212 212 212 212

(y) Reporting Entity

The reporting entity is the Lotteries Commission (trading as Lotterywest).

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2016

62      Lotterywest 2016 Annual Report



3. Trading Profit
2016
$000

2015
$000

Sales of Lottery Products 889,487 826,344

Cost of Lottery Sales

Prizes (500,133) (463,387)

Commission Paid to Retailers (67,963) (64,312)

Goods and Services Tax [see Note 2(u)] (35,468) (33,031)

(603,564) (560,730)

Trading Profit 285,923 265,614

Allocation of prize monies ranges between 50% to 63.25% of sales, however some individual 
prizes are allocated as high as 70%. The prize allocation for games is determined by the 
National Bloc members participating in the national Lotto games except for the gaming 
products which are run directly by Lotterywest.

Retailers are paid a commission for the sale of Lotterywest products.

4. Other Revenue
2016
$000

2015
$000

Forfeited Prizes 8,915 8,565

Retailers Fees 4,594 4,291

Players Registration Service Fees 95 80

Other Revenue 600 553

14,204 13,489

5. Lotteries Operations
2016
$000

2015
$000

Employee Benefits Expenses 16,565 14,347

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 2,974 2,793

Telecommunications and Gaming System Expenses 4,821 4,954

Sales, Marketing and Distribution Expenses 21,790 18,098

Loss on Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale 120 –

Other Expenses 6,077 6,550

52,347 46,742

6. Grants and Community Development Operations
2016
$000

2015
$000

Employee Benefits Expenses 9,032 8,250

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 2,240 2,164

Other Expenses 4,824 4,905

16,096 15,319
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7. Returns to Grant Beneficiaries
The Lotteries Commission Act (the Act) prescribes for the following allocations from net 
subscriptions of all products:

Statutory Allocations

These grants are made to the credit of the Consolidated Account for subsequent appropriation 
to Agency Special Purpose Accounts.

• 40% to the State Pool Account of the State established under National Health Funding Pool 
Act 2012

• 5% to the Arts Lotteries Account

• 5% to the Sports Lotteries Account

Direct Grants

In addition to the statutory allocations, the Act mandates a minimum allocation of 12.5% 
to eligible organisations for approved purposes and up to 5% in total for the University of 
Western Australia for the Festival of Perth and ScreenWest for Commercial Film Production. 
Any remaining surplus (including surplus reserves generated from prior periods and 
unclaimed prizes as they fall due in the reporting period) is available for distribution to eligible 
organisations as the Commission thinks fit and the Minister approves.

Summary of 2016 Grants Program 2016
$000

2015
$000

State Pool Account (under National Health Funding Pool Act 2012) 130,054 121,648

Arts Lotteries Account 16,257 15,206

Sports Lotteries Account 16,257 15,206

University of Western Australia (Festival of Perth) 7,603 7,338

ScreenWest (Commercial Film Production) 7,603 7,338

Direct Grants (Net of Grants not taken up)(a) 99,777 111,324

277,551 278,060
(a) The total of grants not taken up during the financial year was $3.86 million (2015: $4.84 million).

8. Grants from State Government
2016
$000

2015
$000

GST reimbursement for gambling margin [See Note 2(u)] 35,468 33,031

9. Receivables
2016
$000

2015
$000

Current

Lotterywest Retailers 3,395 7,339

GST Receivable 1,776 2,397

Accrued Interest 1,233 1,419

Other Debtors(a) 4,230 11

10,634 11,166
(a) Other Debtors includes $3.72M (including GST) of the lease incentive for Lotterywest’s new premises in Subiaco.

10. Held to Maturity Financial Assets 
Lotterywest’s financial investments are made in accordance with the Financial Management 
Act 2006 and the Trustees Act 1962 (as amended).

2016
$000

2015
$000

Current Investments (maturity less than 1 year)

Short Term Products 45,163 70,202

Non Current Investments (maturity more than 1 year)

Floating Rate Instruments 182,300 158,300

Total Held to Maturity Financial Assets 227,463 228,502
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11. Non Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale

Assets Reclassified as Held for Sale 2016
$000

2015
$000

Land and Building 1,614 2,250

Less write-down from cost to fair value less cost to sell recognised 
in profit or loss 

 – (636)

Less assets sold (1,614) –

 – 1,614

12. Other Current Assets
2016
$000

2015
$000

Prepayments 469 393

13. Property, Plant and Equipment
2016
$000

2015
$000

Land at Fair Value(a) 7,172 7,715

Buildings at Fair Value(a) 7,373 7,815

Buildings Accumulated Depreciation  – (196)

7,373 7,619

Leasehold Improvements at Cost 1,440 1,440

Less Accumulated Depreciation (1,359) (1,200)

81 240

Equipment and Fittings at Cost 6,015 5,966

Less Accumulated Depreciation (5,202) (4,960)

813 1,006

Works of Art at Cost 92 78

Computer Equipment at Cost 15,631 15,594

Less Accumulated Depreciation (15,100) (14,807)

531 787

Work In Progress at Cost 11,314 4,131

Total Net Book Value of Property, Plant and Equipment 27,376 21,576

(a) All land and buildings were revalued by an independent valuer on 1 July 2015 (Western 
Australian Land Information Authority Valuation Services). Land and Building above include 
revaluation decrements of $0.622 million (2015: Nil). Information on fair value measurements is 
provided in Note 15.
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Reconciliations

Land Buildings Leasehold
Improvements

Equipment & 
Fittings

Works of Arts Computer 
Equipment

Work in  
Progress

Total

2016 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Carrying Amount at Start of Year 7,715 7,619 240 1,006 78 787 4,131 21,576

Additions  –  –  – 49 14 37 7,614 7,714 

Transfer from Work in Progress  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –

Transfer to Non-Current Assets  –  –  –  –  –  – (431) (431)

Classified as Held for Sale  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –

Revaluation (543) (79)  –  –  –  –  – (622)

Derecognition  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –

Depreciation  – (167) (159) (242)  – (293)  – (861)

Carrying Amount at End of Year 7,172 7,373 81 813 92 531 11,314 27,376 

Land Buildings Leasehold
Improvements

Equipment & 
Fittings Works of Arts Computer 

Equipment
Work in  

Progress Total

2015 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Carrying Amount at Start of Year 7,715 7,815 404 1,122 78 915 3,571 21,620

Additions 350 – – 130 – 174 3,492 4,146

Transfer from Work in Progress – – – – – – – –

Transfer to Non-Current Assets – – – – – – (2,932) (2,932)

Classified as Held for Sale (350) – – – – – – (350)

Revaluation – – – – – – – –

Derecognition – – – – – – – –

Depreciation – (196) (164) (246) – (302) – (908)

Carrying Amount at End of Year 7,715 7,619 240 1,006 78 787 4,131 21,576
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14. Intangibles
2016
$000

2015
$000

Computer Software 39,677 38,819

Less Accumulated Amortisation (26,006) (21,653)

13,671 17,166

Reconciliations

Computer Software
2016
$000

2015
$000

Carrying Amount at Start of Year 17,166 18,049

Additions 427 234

Derecognition  – –

Transfer from Work in Progress 431 2,932

Amortisation Expense (4,353) (4,049)

Carrying Amount at End of Year 13,671 17,166

15. Fair Value Measurements
Assets Measured at Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value At 

End of Period
2016 $000 $000 $000 $000

Non Current Assets Classified as 
Held for Sale (Note 11)

 –  –  –  –

Land (Note 13)  – 7,172  – 7,172 

Building (Note 13)  – 7,373  – 7,373 

 – 14,545  – 14,545 

Assets Measured at Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value At 
End of Period

2015 $000 $000 $000 $000

Non Current Assets Classified as 
Held for Sale (Note 11)

– 1,614 – 1,614

Land (Note 13) – 7,715 – 7,715

Building (Note 13) – 7,619 – 7,619

– 16,948 – 16,948

Valuation techniques to derive Level 2 fair values

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the period.

Level 2 fair values of Non Current Assets Held for Sale, Land and Buildings (Office 
Accommodation) are derived using the market approach. Market evidence of sales prices of 
comparable land and buildings (office accommodation) in close proximity is used to determine 
price per square metre.

Non-current assets held for sale have been written down to fair value less costs to sell. 
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16. Payables
2016
$000

2015
$000

CURRENT
Prizes

Unclaimed Prizes in Current Year(a) 27,957 28,896

Unpaid Prize Payables(b) 770 –

28,727 28,896

RETURNS TO BENEFICIARIES

State Pool Account (under National Health Funding Pool 
Act 2012)

596 292

Arts Lotteries Account 74 117

Sports Lotteries Account 74 117

Direct Grants(c) 135,730 129,899

136,474 130,425

OTHER

Trade Creditors 3,648 4,036

Other Creditors and Accruals 5,647 4,829

9,295 8,865

174,496 168,186

NON CURRENT

Prizes

Unpaid Prize Payables(b) 13,570 250

Total Payables 188,066 168,436
(a)  Lotterywest’s games prizes are payable as a one off lump sum payment which must be claimed within 12 months of 

winning the prize. This payable represents the amount of prizes won but not yet claimed.

(b)  This liability represents a discontinued Scratch ‘N’ Win game where the prize is paid in the form of an annuity and the 
proportion of Set for Life 1st prize. Amounts payable more than 12 months post balance sheet date are classified as 
non-current. 

(c) This relates to direct grants approved but not yet paid at year end. 

17. Provisions
2016
$000

2015
$000

CURRENT
Employee Benefits Provision

Annual Leave(a) 2,311 2,024

Long Service Leave(b) 3,208 3,062

Other Provisions

Employee On Costs(c) 356 327

Prize Reserve Provision(d) 24,711 25,613

30,586 31,026

NON-CURRENT

Employee Benefits Provision

Long Service Leave(b) 1,033 964

Superannuation Entitlements(e) 231 230

Other Provisions

Employee On Costs(c) 66 62

1,330 1,256

Total Provisions 31,916 32,282

(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 
12 months after the end of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected 
to occur as follows:

2016
$000

2015
$000

Annual Leave

Within 12 months 1,438 1,235

More than 12 months 873 789

2,311 2,024
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(b)  Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer settlement 
for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the 
liabilities is expected to occur as follows:

2016
$000

2015
$000

Long Service Leave

Within 12 months 1,196 1,303

More than 12 months 3,045 2,723

4,241 4,026

(c)  The settlement of annual leave and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on-costs 
including workers’ compensation insurance. The provision is the present value of expected future payments. The 
associated expense, apart from the unwinding of the discount (finance cost), is disclosed in Note 5 and Note 6 (Other 
Expenses).

(d)  The prize reserve provision is used to guarantee jackpots and bonus draws in the jackpotting lottery games and the 
advertised prizes on the non-jackpotting games. The settlement of the prize reserve provision is expected within the 
next 12 months.

(e)  The liability for superannuation entitlements has been derived from information provided by GESB. Lotterywest has no 
liability or expense under AASB 119 Employee Benefits arising from the pension scheme.

Pension Scheme

Lotterywest has no liability or defined benefit cost under AASB 119 arising from the Pension 
Scheme.

Gold State Super (transferred benefits)

Nature of the benefits provided by the Scheme

Some former Pension Scheme members have transferred to Gold State Super. In respect of 
their transferred benefit the members receive a lump sum benefit at retirement, death or 
invalidity which is related to their salary during their employment and indexed during any 
deferral period after leaving public sector employment.

Description of the regulatory framework

The Scheme operates under the State Superanniation Act 2000 (Western Australia) and the 
State Superannuation Regulations 2001 (Western Australia). Although the scheme is not fomally 
subject to the Superannuation Industry (Supervision) (SIS) legislation, the Western Australian 
government has undertaken (in a Heads of Government Agreement) to operate the scheme in 
accordance with the spirit of the SIS legislation.

Pre-transfer Benefit Gold State Superannuation Scheme

2016
$000

2015
$000

Defined Benefit Obligation 231 230

Net Defined Benefit Liability 231 230

Reconciliation of the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)

Present Value of defined benefit Obligations at Beginning of the Year 230 221

Interest Cost (a) 6 8

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses Arising from Changes in Demographic Assumptions (a)  – –

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses Arising from Changes in Financial Assumptions (a) 3 6

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses Arising from Liability Experience (a) (8) (5)

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at End of the Year 231 230
(a) Due to the immaterial effect of actuarial (gains)/losses in the defined benefit obligation, the net movements have been 
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income – Expenses Lottery Operations.

Significant Actuarial Assumptions at the Reporting Date

Assumptions to Determine Start of Year DBO  
and Defined Benefit Cost for the Current Year

2016
%

2015
%

Discount Rate (Active Members)(a) 2.74 3.69

Expected Salary Increase Rate 4.00 5.00
(a) The discount rate is based on the 10 year Government bond rate as at 29 May 2016.

Assumptions to Determine DBO at the Valuation Date 2016
%

2015
%

Discount Rate (Active Members)(a) 2.26 2.74

Expected Salary Increase Rate 3.50 4.00

Funding Arrangements

The employer contributes, as required, to meet the benefits paid.

Expected Contributions

Employer contributions of $39,000 (2015: $30,000) are expected to be paid to the Gold State 
Superannuation Scheme in the subsequent annual reporting period.
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Maturity Profile of DBO

The weighted average duration of Lotterywest’s defined benefit obligation is 4.4 years  
(2015: 4.9 years).

The recognition of the liability consequently has a minor effect on the year-end asset position 
of Lotterywest; therefore no sensitivity analysis is relevant.

Movements in Other Provisions

Movements in each class of provisions during the financial year, other than employees benefits 
are set out below:

2016
$000

2015
$000

Prize Reserve Provision

Carrying Amount at Start of Year 25,613 23,962

Additional Provisions Recognised 52,141 42,102

Payments made to the Prize Reserve Account(a) and Prizes Paid (53,043) (40,451)

Carrying Amount at End of Year 24,711 25,613

Employment On-Cost Provision

Carrying Amount at Start of Year 389 379

Additional/(Reversals of) Provisions Recognised 149 140

Payment/Other Sacrifices of Economic Benefit (116) (130)

Carrying Amount at End of Year 422 389

(a) Prize Reserve Accounts are managed and operated by each State and the administration is provided by the Bloc.

18. Other Liabilities
2016 
$000

2015 
$000

Sales in Advance (a) 5,720 5,061 

Lease Incentive unearned income [See Note 9(a)] 3,379 –

9,099 5,061

(a)  This represents tickets sold which relate to games where the draw will occur after the financial year and therefore the 
proceeds have not been recognised as revenue for the period. 

19. Equity
The Western Australian Government holds the equity interest in Lotterywest on behalf of the 
community. Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of Lotterywest. The asset 
revaluation surplus represents that portion of equity resulting from the revaluation of non-
current assets.

2016
$000

2015
$000

Asset Revaluation Reserve(a)

Balance at Start of Year 9,162 9,162 

Asset Revaluation (Decrements)/Increments (622) –

Balance at the end of the period 8,540 9,162 

Retained Earnings (b)

Balance at Start of the Year 81,163 98,187 

Loss for the Period (885) (17,024)

Balance at the end of the period 80,278 81,163 

Total Equity 88,818 90,325 

(a)  The asset revaluation reserve records increments/decrements in the fair value of land and buildings. Decrements are 
recognised in this reserve only to the extent that they were previously recognised as increments on the same class of asset.

(b)  This represents the retained earnings at the end of the reporting period and details the level of accumulated profits 
from previous years.

20. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows
Reconciliation of Cash

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to 
related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

2016 
$000

2015 
$000

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on Hand 37 8 

Cash at Bank 36,880 14,837 

Total per Statement of Cash Flows 36,917 14,845 
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Reconciliation of Profit/(Loss) to Net Cash Flows provided by Operating Activities

2016 
$000

2015
$000

Profit/(Loss) for the Period (885) (17,024)

Non cash items

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 5,214 4,957 

Loss on Impairment on Assets Held for Resale  – 636 

Net (Gain)/Loss on Disposal 120 –

Lotteries Houses Vested Back to Lotterywest – (350)

Cash Flows to/(from) Government

Statutory Grants 162,568 152,060 

GST Recoup Revenue from State Government (35,468) (33,031)

(Increase)/decrease in assets

GST Reimbursement Receivable/(Payable) 621 (627)

Trade Debtors 3,944 2,898

Other Debtors (4,219) 24 

Prepayments (76) (393)

Inventories (527) 17 

Accrued Interest 186 437 

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities

Other Liabilities 4,038 239 

Direct Grants 5,831 (14,778)

Unclaimed Prize Payable (939) (347)

Unpaid Prize Payable 14,090 –

Trade Creditors (388) 399 

Other Creditors and Accruals 818 725 

Current Provisions 462 87 

Non Current Provisions 74 95 

Prize Reserve Provision (902) 1,651 

Grants from State Government 1 125 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities before Cash 
Flows to State Government (Excluding Investing Activities)

154,563 97,800 

21. Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
2016
$000

2015
$000

Depreciation

Buildings 167 196 

Leasehold Improvements 159 164 

Equipment and Fittings 242 246 

Computer Equipment 293 302 

Total Depreciation 861 908 

Amortisation

Intangible Assets 4,353 4,049 

Total Amortisation 4,353 4,049 

Total Depreciation and Amortisation 5,214 4,957 

22. Assets and Services Received Free of Charge
2016
$000

2015
$000

Legal Services provided by the State Solicitor’s Office 83 29

23. Remuneration of Auditor
The total fees to the Auditor General for statutory audits are as follows:

2016
$000

2015
$000

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and performance 
indicators

124 122
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24.  Remuneration of Members of the Accountable Authority 
and Senior Officers

Remuneration of Members of the Accountable Authority 

The number of Commissioners, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non monetary 
benefits and other benefits received, or due and receivable, for the financial year, fall within the 
following bands:

2016
No.

2015
No.

        $1  –$10,000(a)  – 1

$10,001  –$20,000 1 1

$30,001  –$40,000 5 4

$50,001  –$60,000(a) 1 –

$60,001  –$70,000  – 1

7 7

(a) There was one retirement and one new Commissioner during the 2015/16 financial year.

The total collective remuneration for all Commissioners during the financial year was: 

2016
$000

2015
$000

Base remuneration and superannuation 234 233

Other benefits  – –

Total Remuneration of Members of the Accountable Authority 234 233

Remuneration of Senior Officers 

The number of Senior Officers, other than Members of the Accountable Authority, whose total 
of fees, salaries, superannuation, non monetary benefits and other benefits received, or due 
and receivable, for the financial year, fall within the following bands:

2016
No.

2015
No.

$20,001  –$30,000(a) 1 –

$50,001  –$60,000(a) 1 –

$140,001  –$150,000 – 1

$160,001  –$170,000(b) 1 –

$170,001  –$180,000(b) 1 3

$200,001  –$210,000 1 2

$210,001  –$220,000 1 2

$220,001  –$230,000 2 –

$380,001  –$390,000 1 –

9 8

(a)  New position created during the 2015/16 financial year as a result of the new organisational restructuring to occur 
during 2016–17.

(b) Senior officers employed for only part of the 2015/16 financial year.

The total collective remuneration for all senior officers during the year was:

2016
$000

2015
$000

Base remuneration and superannuation 1,459 1,763

Annual leave and long service leave accruals 139 (321)

Other benefits 74 59

Total Remuneration of Senior Officers of the Accountable 
Authority

1,672 1,501

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2016

72      Lotterywest 2016 Annual Report



25. Financial Instruments
(a) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Financial instruments held by Lotterywest are cash and cash equivalents, term deposits, 
floating rate notes, floating rate deposits, receivables and payables. Lotterywest has limited 
exposure to financial risks. Lotterywest’s investment portfolio is managed by the Western 
Australia Treasury Corporation within the constraints of the investment policy and the approved 
service level agreement. The Treasury Investment Policy includes strategies on managing the 
risks identified below. 

Credit Risk
Credit risk arises where there is a possibility that counterparties will default on interest 
payments or capital repayments resulting in financial losses to Lotterywest.

In measuring risk at a counterparty level there are three components which include the 
probability of default by the counterparty (a), the current exposure to the counterparty (b),  
and the likely recovery ratio on defaulted obligations (c).

(a)  Probability of default: Lotterywest will only deal with counterparties that have a minimum 
credit rating issued by Standard and Poors of A-long term and Moody’s of A3 long term, 
which is above investment grade (BBB).

(b)  Current exposure to counterparties: Lotterywest deals mainly with major financial 
institutions. The average exposure to these counterparties was $322.10 million (2015: 
$319.55 million). The maximum exposure to each counterparty is determined by their 
credit rating. The higher the credit rating the greater the maximum exposure, subject to 
upper limits counterparty’s and aggregate class limits. 

(c)  Likely recovery ratio on defaulted obligations: Lotterywest does not trade securities, nor 
are there any investments in securities which have embedded derivatives. Consequently 
Lotterywest does not have exposure to market movements in relation to capital 
repayment. Given the high credit quality of investments, the risk of default in relation to 
interest or capital is very low.

With respect to receivables, customers cannot pay for Lotterywest products on credit. 
Lotterywest collects these monies electronically from its retail network on a weekly basis and 
monitors the performance of retail outlets. All new retail outlets are requested to provide a 
bank guarantee equivalent to one week’s takings. Consequently there is no material default 
risk for receivables. There were no bank guarantees called upon during this financial year.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk arises when Lotterywest is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. 
Lotterywest is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of its business. 
Lotterywest manages liquidity risk by limiting investment terms to have sufficient funds 
available to meet forecasted payment outcomes as and when they fall due.

Market Risk
Lotterywest does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other price 
risks. Lotterywest’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates to the whole 
investment portfolio and changes in interest rates which impact on investment income. The 
current outlook for interest rates is considered unfavourable. Lotterywest has no borrowings. 

The primary objective of Lotterywest’s investment portfolio is capital preservation whilst 
generating an appropriate return. Investment in high quality products where all investments 
are held to maturity and all counterparties are investment grade provides low risk of capital 
loss. The current investment portfolio only contains term deposits, floating rate notes and 
floating rate deposits. 

(b) Categories of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial 
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2016
$000

2015
$000

Financial Assets

Cash 36,917 14,845 

Loan and Receivables(a) 8,858 8,769 

Other Financial Assets Held-to-Maturity 227,463 228,502 

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost 188,066 168,436 

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (statutory receivable).
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(c) Financial Instrument Disclosures

Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk and Interest Rate Risk Exposure

The following table details the exposure to liquidity risk and interest rate risk as at the end of the reporting period. Lotterywest`s maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is 
the carrying amount of the financial assets as shown on the following table. The table is based on information provided from Western Australian Treasury Corporation (WATC) to Lotterywest.

The contractual maturity amounts in the table are representative of the undiscounted principal and interest receivable or payable amounts. 

Lotterywest holds bank guarantees as collateral for its retailer debtors. 

There are no financial assets that are past due and therefore there is no further ageing analysis for the financial assets.

Lotterywest does not hold any financial assets that had to have their terms renegotiated that would have otherwise resulted in them being past due or impaired.

Maturity Analysis of Financial Assets

Interest Rate Exposure Maturity Dates

Carrying 
Amount

Weighted 
Average 

Interest Rate

Fixed  
Interest  

Rate

Variable 
Interest  

Rate

Non–
Interest 
Bearing

Nominal 
Amount

Within 1 
Year

2–3 
Years

3–4 
Years

4–5 
Years

More than  
5 Years

2016 $000 % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 36,917 1.87% – 36,917  – 36,917 36,880 – – – –

Loan and Receivables 8,858 – –  – 8,858 8,858 8,858 – – – –

Other Financial Assets Held-to-Maturity 227,463 3.02% 55,163 172,300  – 227,847 45,117 69,197 84,650 28,883  – 

273,238 55,163 209,217 8,858 273,622 90,855 69,197 84,650 28,883  – 

Interest Rate Exposure Maturity Dates

Carrying 
Amount

Weighted 
Average 

Interest Rate

Fixed 
Interest

Rate

Variable 
Interest  

Rate

Non–
Interest 
Bearing

Nominal 
Amount

Within 1 
year

2–3 
Years

3–4 
ears

4–5 
Years

More than 
5 Years

2015 $000 % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 14,845 2.50% – 14,845 – 14,885 14,885 – – – –

Loan and Receivables 8,769 – – – 8,769 8,769 8,769 – – – –

Other Financial Assets Held-to-Maturity 228,502 3.49% 75,202 153,300 – 228,800 69,953 27,053 47,144 84,650 –

252,116 75,202 168,145 8,769 252,454 93,607 27,053 47,144 84,650 –

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2016

74      Lotterywest 2016 Annual Report



Maturity Analysis of Financial Liabilities

Interest Rate Exposure Maturity Dates

Carrying 
Amount

Weighted 
Average 

Interest Rate

Fixed 
Interest  

Rate

Variable 
Interest  

Rate

Non- 
Interest 
Bearing

Total 
Nominal 
Amount

Up to 3 
Months

3-12 
Months

2-20
Years

2016 $000 % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities Measured at  
Amortised Cost

188,066 – – – 188,066 188,066 173,752 744 13,570 

188,066 – – – 188,066 188,066 173,752 744 13,570 

Interest Rate Exposure Maturity Dates

Carrying 
Amount

Weighted 
Average 

Interest Rate

Fixed 
Interest  

Rate

Variable 
Interest  

Rate

Non- 
Interest 
Bearing

Total 
Nominal 
Amount

Up to 3 
Months

3-12 
Months

1-2 
Years

2015 $000 % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities Measured at  
Amortised Cost

168,436 – – – 168,436 168,436 167,660 526 250 

168,436 – – – 168,436 168,436 167,660 526 250 
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following table summarises the interest rate sensitivity of Lotterywest’s financial assets and 
liabilities at the end of the reporting period. It assumes that any change in interest rates if held 
constant throughout the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis provided is a movement of  
– 0.5% and 0.5%. (2015: –0.5% and 0.5%)

As at 30 June 2016 the cash rate was 1.75% (2015: 2.00%) 

Carrying
–0.5% 

Change
+0.5% 

Change
Amount (Loss) Profit

2016 $000 $000 $000

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 36,917 (185) 185 

Other Financial Assets Held to Maturity 227,463 (1,137) 1,137 

Loan and Receivables 8,858  –  – 

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Costs 188,066  –  – 

Total Increase/(Decrease) (1,322) 1,322 

Carrying
–0.5% 

Change
+0.5% 

Change
Amount (Loss) Profit

2015 $000 $000 $000

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 14,845 (74) 74

Other Financial Assets Held to Maturity 228,502 (1,143) 1,143

Loan and Receivables 8,769 – –

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost 168,436 – –

Total Increase/(Decrease) (1,346) 1,346

Fair Value
All financial assets and liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they 
are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable 
approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the specific notes.

26. Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities
At the date of this report, Lotterywest is not aware of any contingent assets or contingent 
liabilities.

27. Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service
Lotterywest has two services. 
Service 1- Sale of lottery products to the public of Western Australia; and
Service 2- The provision of grants and other distributions to the community of Western Australia.
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Service 1 Service 2

Sale of Lottery 
Products

Grants and Other 
Distributions Total

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

INCOME

Sales 889,487 826,344 – – 889,487 826,344 

Interest Income 9,514 10,963 – – 9,514 10,963 

Other Revenue 14,204 13,489 – – 14,204 13,489 

Total Income 913,205 850,796 – – 913,205 850,796 

EXPENSES

Cost of Sales 603,564 560,730 – – 603,564 560,730 

Lotteries Operations 52,347 46,742 – – 52,347 46,742 

Grants and Community 
Development Operations

– – 16,096 15,319 16,096 15,319 

Total Expenses excluding 
Returns to Beneficiaries

655,911 607,472 16,096 15,319 672,007 622,791 

Profit/(Loss) before 
Returns to Beneficiaries

257,294 243,324 (16,096) (15,319) 241,198 228,005 

Grants from State 
Government

35,468 33,031 – – 35,468 33,031 

Grants Transfer (292,762) (276,355) 292,762 276,355  – –

Amount Available for 
Distribution

 – – 276,666 261,036 276,666 261,036 

Total Returns to 
Beneficiaries

– – 277,551 278,060 277,551 278,060 

Loss for the period – – (885) (17,024) (885) (17,024)

28. Related and Affiliated Bodies 
Section 26 (1) of the Act requires details of all grants recipients to be listed separately, including 
grants provided to any affiliated bodies. There were no related and/or affiliated bodies 
requiring disclosure for the year. A full list of grants approved is disclosed in the Annual Report.

29. Commitments for Expenditure
The commitments below are inclusive of GST where relevant.

Capital Expenditure Commitments

Capital expenditure commitments in relation to information technology capital purchases 
contracted at the reporting date but not recognised in the financial statements as liabilities are 
payable as follows:

2016
$000

2015
$000

Within 1 year 4,097 8,783 

Other Expenditure Commitments

Other expenditure commitments in relation to information technology maintenance, support 
and various inventory items contracted at the reporting date but not recognised in the financial 
statements as liabilities are payable as follows:

2016
$000

2015
$000

Within 1 year 3,393 2,950 

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 9,559 8,019 

12,952 10,969 
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Lease Commitments 

Commitments in relation to leases contracted at the reporting date but not recognised in the 
financial statements as liabilities are payable (exclusive GST) as follows:

2016
$000

2015
$000

Non-Cancellable Property Lease Commitments(a)

Within 1 year 1,474 335 

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 6,473 140 

Later than 5 years 11,597 –

19,544 475 

Non-Cancellable Operating Lease Commitments(b)

Within 1 year 106 107 

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 56 123 

162 230 

Total Lease Commitments 19,706 705
(a)  The property lease is a non cancellable lease with a twelve year term commencing from 1 September 2016, with rent 

payable monthly in advance. Contingent rent provision within the lease agreement requires that the minimum lease 
payments shall be increased by fixed annual rent increases of 3% on each anniversary of the Commencement Date 
except year 12 which is based on market rent review.

(b)  These amounts were provided by the Department of Finance and relate to Lotterywest’s motor vehicle lease arrangements 
which operate under the State Fleet Funding Facility contract. Lotterywest’s vehicle leases are generally for two or three years. 

30. Events Occurring after the End of the Reporting Period
There has been no event subsequent to the end of the reporting period which would have a 
material effect on Lotterywest’s financial statements at 30 June 2016.

31. Explanatory Statement
The following tables provide details of significant variations between actual revenues and 
expenditures for the financial year compared with the corresponding items for the preceding 
year and the corresponding items in the budget.

Significant variations are considered to be those where the amount is deemed as being in 
excess of 5% and $1.2 million.

Significant Variations 
Between Actual and Estimates (Original Budget) of Revenues and Expenditures for 2015/16

2016 Actual 
$000

2016 Budget 
$000

Variance 
$000

REVENUE
Sales 889,487 880,000 9,487 (a)

Less: Cost of Sales
Prizes 500,133 492,911 7,222 
Retailers’ Commission 67,963 70,122 (2,159)
Goods and Services Tax 35,468 36,950 (1,482)
Total Cost of Sales 603,564 599,983 3,581 (b)

Trading Profit 285,923 280,017 5,906 

OTHER REVENUE
Interest 9,514 11,000 (1,486) (c)
Other 14,204 13,893 311 
Total Other Revenue from Lottery Activities 23,718 24,893 (1,175)

EXPENSES
Lotteries Operations 52,347 53,943 (1,596)
Grants and Community Development 
Operations

16,096 17,981 (1,885)

Total Expenses from Lottery Activities 68,443 71,924 (3,481) (d)
Profit from Lottery Activities 241,198 232,986 8,212 

Total Returns to Beneficiaries
Direct Grants (Net of Grants not taken up) 114,983 115,000 (17)
State Pool Account 130,054 129,536 518 
Sport/Arts Lotteries Accounts 32,514 32,384 130 

 Total Returns to Beneficiaries 277,551 276,920 631 

GST Reimbursement for Gambling Margin 35,468 36,950 (1,482)

Net Profit/(Loss) (885) (6,984) 6,099 
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(a) Sales

Lotterywest’s sales revenue for the 2015/16 financial year was $9.5 million (1%) higher than the 
budget. This result was mainly driven by higher than forecast sales throughout the year due 
to higher levels of jackpot activity for Oz Lotto and Powerball games. These were 21% and 19% 
favourable to budget respectively. In addition, the new Set for Life game performed strongly, 
particularly immediately after the launch and was $11.0 million above budget for the year.

The higher sales in Oz Lotto, Powerball and Set for Life were offset by lower than expected 
sales in Red Lotto games (11% unfavourable) and lower Scratch ‘n’ Win sales (10% unfavourable).

(b) Cost of Sales

Prize allocation and Goods and Services Tax are directly linked to increased sales. Commission 
paid to retailers for selling lottery products whilst also directly linked to sales are lower due to 
increase in Play Online sales.

(c) Interest

Interest for 2015/16 is 13.5% below budget due to interest rates trending lower than estimated 
at the time the budget was determined.

(d) Total Expenses from Lottery Activities

Total expenses from Lottery Activities for the 2015/16 financial year were $3.5 million (5%) below 
budget. Lower than expected Retail Distribution expenditure of $4.2 million was due to RTP 
project delays as well as underspend in ticket printing, ticket rolls, incentives and couriers. 
There are also delays in capital works resulting in lower depreciation. These timing factors 
resulted in lower than budgeted expenditure.

Significant Variations 

Actual Revenues and Expenditures for 2015/16 and 2014/15

2016 Actual 
$000

2015 Actual 
$000

Variance 
$000

REVENUE

Sales 889,487 826,344 63,143 (a)

Less: Cost of Sales

Prizes 500,133 463,387 36,746 

Retailers’ Commission 67,963 64,312 3,651 

Goods and Services Tax 35,468 33,031 2,437 

Total Cost of Sales 603,564 560,730 42,834 (b)

Trading Profit 285,923 265,614 20,309 

OTHER REVENUE

Interest 9,514 10,963 (1,449) (c)

Forfeited Prizes 8,915 8,565 350 (d)

Retailer Fees 4,594 4,291 303 

Player Registration Service Fee 95 80 15 

Other 600 553 47 

Total Other Revenue from Lottery Activities 23,718 24,452 (734)
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2016 Actual 
$000

2015 Actual 
$000

Variance 
$000

EXPENSES

Lotteries Operations 52,347 46,742 5,605 

Grants and Community Development 
Operations

16,096 15,319 777 

Total Expenses from Lottery Activities 68,443 62,061 6,382 (e)

Profit from Lottery Activities 241,198 228,005 13,193 

Total Returns to Beneficiaries

Direct Grants (Net of Grants not taken up) 114,983 126,000 (11,017)

State Pool Account 130,054 121,648 8,406 

Sport/Arts Lotteries Accounts 32,514 30,412 2,102 

 Total Returns to Beneficiaries 277,551 278,060 (509) (f)

GST Reimbursement for Gambling Margin 35,468 33,031 2,437 

Net Loss (885) (17,024) 16,139 (g)

(a) Sales

Lotterywest’s sales revenue for the 2015/16 financial year was $63.1 million (7.6%) higher than 
last year. The high levels of jackpots for Oz Lotto and Powerball this financial year were the 
main contributing factors to this year’s positive variance as well as the launch of Set for Life. 

(b) Cost of Sales

Prize allocation and commission paid to retailers for selling lottery products are directly linked 
to sales. The 7.6% increase in sales over the previous year resulted in a proportionate increase 

in prizes and retailers’ commission. The increase in Play Online sales are adversely impacting 
the amount paid to retailers in the form of commission.

(c) Interest

Investment Income for the 2015/16 financial year of $9.5 million was 13% lower in comparison to 
last year. The lower interest rates were the main contributing factor.

(d) Forfeited Prizes

Under the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 (as amended), players have 12 months to claim 
a lottery prize. If the prize is not claimed within that period, the prize is forfeited. Forfeited 
prizes are included in the pool of funds that become available for distribution to the Western 
Australian community through Lotterywest’s direct grants program. The forfeited prizes amount 
in the 2015/16 financial year totalled to $8.9 million, an increase of $0.4 million.

(e) Total Expenses from Lottery Activities

Operational expenses for the 2015/16 financial year were $6.4 million (10%) higher than last 
year. This is attributable to increase in advertising expenses across TV, Radio and Digital media 
($2.9 million), salary and wage expenses ($3.2 million) and an increase professional and 
property contracts ($0.3m).

(f) Total Returns to Beneficiaries

Statutory funding to State Pool Account, Sports and the Arts is distributed according to section 
22 of Lotteries Commission Act 1990 (as amended) and is directly linked to the level of sales 
recorded. The 7.6% increase in sales in the 2015/16 financial year resulted in $277.6 million 
Returns to Beneficiaries.

Direct Grants are distributed according to sections 19 and 24 of the Lotteries Commission 
Act 1990 (as amended). Direct grants were lower than previous year as a result of a reduction 
to the direct grant programme. The reduction was implemented to provide a sustainable level 
of direct grants and to preserve prudent cash reserves.

(g) GST Reimbursement for Gambling Margin

GST reimbursement for Gambling Margin is based on the Gambling Margin, which is directly 
linked to sales. The 7.6% increase in sales over the previous year resulted in a proportionate 
increase in GST reimbursement.

Significant Variations continued
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Operating Budget

In accordance with the Treasurer’s Instruction 953, this statement shows the 2016/17 Budget 
estimate for the Statement of Comprehensive Income. This statement is not subject to audit. 

2017 Budget 
$000

2016 Actual 
$000

Variance 
$000

REVENUE

Sales 922,000 889,487 32,513 (a)

Less: Cost of Sales

Prizes 516,436 500,133 16,303 

Printing Costs 4,110  – 4,110 

Retailers’ Commission 73,469 67,963 5,506 

Goods and Services Tax 38,000 35,468 2,532 

Total Cost of Sales 632,015 603,564 28,451 

Trading Profit 289,985 285,923 4,062 

OTHER REVENUE

Interest 8,500 9,514 (1,014)

Forfeited Prizes 8,584 8,915 (331)

Retailer Fees 5,051 4,594 457 

Player Registration Service Fee 150 95 55 

Other  – 600 (600)

Total Revenues from Lottery Activities 22,285 23,718 (1,433)

2017 Budget 
$000

2016 Actual 
$000

Variance 
$000

EXPENSES

Lotteries Operations 56,893 52,347 4,546 

Grants and Community Development 
Operations

18,964 16,096 2,868 

Total Expenses from Lottery Activities 75,857 68,443 7,414 (b)

Profit from Lottery Activities 236,413 241,198 (4,785)

Total Returns to Beneficiaries

Direct Grants (Net of Grants not taken up) 117,000 114,983 2,017 

State Pool Account 135,718 130,054 5,664 

Sport/Arts Lotteries Accounts 33,930 32,514 1,416 

 Total Returns to Beneficiaries 286,648 277,551 9,097 (c)

GST Reimbursement for Gambling Margin 38,000 35,468 2,532 

Net Loss (12,235) (885) (11,350) (d)
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NOTES TO THE BUDGET

Lotterywest’s budget for the fiscal year 2016/17 meets the operational and financial objectives 
for the year as well as long term outcomes and strategies documented in the Strategic 
Development Plan. 

(a) The sales budget of $922 million represents a growth of 3.6% on sales from 2015/16. 

(b)  Lotterywest’s operational expense budget of $75.9 million represents an increase of 
$7.4 million (10.8%) from 2015/16. The increases in costs are as follows:

• Increase in accommodation costs of $1.7M for the new property lease

• Increase in depreciation of $2.9M for new assets

• Increase in advertising of $1.6M

• Increase in IT licence and fees of $0.7M

• Decrease in retail distribution of $0.4M

• Increase in service and contracts of $0.9M

(c)  The community funding budget for 2016/17 totals $286.6 million and includes funding 
to Hospitals of $135.7 million, $16.9 million each to Sport and Arts and direct grants 
$117.0 million. In total, funding to the community represents 31.1% of gross sales. 

(d) Lotterywest has planned for an operating deficit of $12.2M in 2016–17.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2016
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Grants approved to the WA community
101 Club Inc $6,140
2/4th Machine Gun Battalion (A.I.F) Ex-Members Association  $15,000
360 Health and Community Limited  $15,000
55 Central Inc  $10,301
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Veterans and Services Association of Western Australia (Inc)  $7,600
Aboriginal Choice Australia Pty Ltd  $14,699
Aboriginal Health Council of Western Australia  $483,163
Aboriginal Male's Healing Centre Strong Spirit Strong Families Strong Culture Incorporated  $22,220
Abruzzo and Molise Sporting Club Inc  $1,834
Activ Foundation Incorporated  $464,421
Adult Better Hearing WA Services Inc  $28,818
Aged & Community Services Western Australia Incorporated  $30,000
Agelink Theatre Inc  $121,000
Agencies for South West Accommodation Inc  $45,000
Airport City Community Services Incorporated  $15,000
Albany & Regional Volunteer Service Incorporated  $7,855
Albany Halfway House Association Inc  $36,000
Albany Kindergarten Association  $51,605
Albany Occasional Child Care Centre Inc  $28,935
Albany Playgroup (Inc.)  $15,000
Albany Sea Rescue Squad (Inc.)  $69,156
Albany Secondary Education Support Centre Bush Rangers WA Cadet Unit  $1,364
Alexander Park Craft House Inc  $6,000
Allambee Counselling Incorporated  $26,000
Altone Youth Services (WA) Inc  $12,714
Alzheimer's Australia WA Ltd  $20,000
Anglicare WA Inc  $568,640
Anglicare WA Inc  $195,500
Anglicare WA Inc  $1,460,000
Apace Aid  $14,647
Ardross Primary School - River Rangers  $14,888
Armadale/Gosnells Regional Neighbourhood Watch Association Incorporated  $13,253
Artrinsic Inc.  $60,000
Arts and Culture Goldfields Association Inc  $18,000
Arts Margaret River Incorporated  $74,000
Arts Margaret River Incorporated  $11,740
Arts Narrogin Incorporated  $11,400
Arts Radio Limited  $101,991
Ashburcritters Playgroup  $3,000
Augusta Community Resource Centre (Inc.)  $2,200
Augusta Men's Shed Inc  $27,654
Augusta River Festival (Inc)  $15,000
Australasian Evaluation Society Ltd  $49,908
Australasian Wildlife Management Society  $8,000

Australia Day Council of Western Australia Inc.  $25,711
Australian Arab Association Incorporated  $8,942
Australian Army Cadets Association (W.A) Inc  $103,207
Australian Breastfeeding Association - WA Branch  $29,349
Australian Ex-Services Atomic Survivors Association Incorporated  $1,300
Australian Kidney Foundation  $51,891
Australian Museum of Motion Picture and Television (AMMPT) Western Region (Inc.)  $4,002
Australian Red Cross Society - Western Australian Division  $85,000
Australian Red Cross Society - Western Australian Division  $63,615
Australian Sign Language Interpreters Association (Western Australia) Incorporated  $3,251
Australian-Asian Association of Western Australia (Incorporated)  $23,000
Avon Youth Community and Family Services Incorporated  $17,000
AWESOME Arts Australia Ltd  $330,000
Baldivis Primary School Parents and Citizens' Association Incorporated  $15,000
Balga Senior High School Child Care Centre (Inc) - Teen Family Centre  $38,412
Bangladesh Australia Association of Western Australia Incorporated  $12,000
Bayswater Child Care Association (Incorporated) - Noranda Child Care Centre  $80,764
Bayswater Family Centre Inc  $6,098
Bayswater Family Centre Inc  $2,840
Be The Church  $5,138
Beaconsfield Primary School Parents and Citizens' Association Incorporated  $11,570
Beaufort Street Network Inc  $50,000
Befriend Inc  $156,686
Benedictine Loop Social Group Inc  $4,390
Bethanie Group Inc  $30,273
Bidan Aboriginal Corporation  $65,824
Bindoon and Districts Agricultural Society Inc  $20,000
Birra-Li Child Care Association Inc  $11,006
Black Swan State Theatre Company Ltd  $20,000
Black Swan State Theatre Company Ltd  $181,486
Blind Citizens WA Inc  $4,237
Bloodwood Tree Association Incorporated  $80,000
Blue Sky Community Group Inc.  $15,000
Blues at Bridgetown Incorporated  $20,000
Boab Festival at Derby  $20,000
Boddington Community Resource Centre Inc  $7,500
Boddington Community Resource Centre Inc  $51,860
Bonsai Society of Western Australia Incorporated  $5,630
Bonsai Workshop Incorporated  $5,502
Borden Development Group Incorporated  $8,222
Bremer Bay Community Resource and Visitor's Centre (Inc.)  $18,000
Bremer Bay Community Resource and Visitor's Centre (Inc.)  $8,150
Bridge Builders Ministries (Inc.)  $46,607
Bridgetown Community Resource Centre Inc.  $10,940
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Grants approved to the WA community
Bridgetown Family and Community Centre Incorporated  $43,219
Bridgetown High School Emergency Services Cadets  $14,940
Bringing Them Home Committee (WA) Incorporated  $27,870
British Ex-Services Association Incorporated  $1,793
Broome Community Information Resource Centre and Learning Exchange  $23,000
Broome Community Resource Centre Inc.  $14,272
Broome Future Limited  $135,000
Broome Lotteries House  $6,720
Broome Senior High School Bush Rangers Cadets  $15,000
Bruce Rock and Districts Agricultural Society (Inc)  $8,500
Buddha's Light International Association Western Australia Incorporated  $10,000
Bullsbrook Community Kindergarten (Inc)  $7,545
Bullsbrook Community Kindergarten (Inc)  $2,500
Bunbury Agricultural Society Inc  $20,000
Bunbury Bel Canto Singers Inc  $1,362
Bunbury Diocesan Trustees - Anglican Parish of Dunsborough  $24,950
Bunbury Lotteries House Complex Inc  $90,189
Bunbury Multicultural Group Incorporated  $15,000
Bunbury Musical Comedy Group  $3,115
Bunbury Orchid Society Inc.  $4,750
Bunbury Playgroup (Incorporated)  $14,555
Bunbury Regional Theatre Incorporated  $91,000
Bunbury Sea Rescue Incorporated  $18,750
Busselton Allsports Inc  $20,000
Busselton Family Centre Inc  $5,300
Busselton Family Centre Inc  $65,479
Busselton Family History Society Inc  $4,684
Busselton Jetty Environment & Conservation Association Incorporated  $50,000
Busselton Old Time Dance Inc  $1,436
Cambridge Coastcare (Inc)  $150,000
Camp Quality Limited  $27,862
Cancer Council Western Australia Inc.  $1,500,000
Canning Agricultural Horticultural and Recreational Society (Inc.)  $20,000
Canning City Brass Band (Inc.)  $8,000
Capel Playground (Inc.)  $13,000
Carers Association of Western Australia Incorporated  $30,000
Carers Association of Western Australia Incorporated  $179,450
Carnarvon Family Support Service Incorporated  $69,000
Carnarvon Festival Inc  $15,000
Catch Music Inc  $21,304
Cecil Andrews Senior High School Armadale Police Rangers  $15,000
Celebrate Western Australia (Inc)  $850,000
Centacare Kimberley Association Inc  $60,500
Centrecare Incorporated  $76,630

Centrepoint Church Incorporated  $15,849
Chamber of Arts and Culture WA Incorporated  $20,000
Chamber of Arts and Culture WA Incorporated  $40,000
Champion Lakes Residents Association Inc  $4,501
Charity Link (Incorporated)  $244,500
Child Inclusive Learning and Development Australia Inc  $82,726
Christ Church Grammar School Surf Life Saving Cadets  $10,105
Christian Family Church Inc  $15,000
Chung Wah Association  $10,000
Church of Christ Albany Inc.  $353,729
Church of Christ Kalgoorlie  $3,150
Citizen Advocacy Perth West Inc.  $14,500
City of Albany  $50,000
City of Albany  $35,000
City of Albany  $24,000
City of Armadale  $20,000
City of Armadale  $38,900
City of Bayswater  $20,000
City of Bayswater Child Care Centre Association (Incorporated) - Salisbury Child Care Centre  $80,000
City of Belmont  $20,000
City of Belmont  $99,095
City of Belmont  $3,837,557
City of Bunbury  $20,000
City of Bunbury Surf Life Saving Club (Incorporated)  $11,566
City of Busselton - Foreshore Youth Precinct Project  $2,881,000
City of Canning  $20,000
City of Canning  $149,635
City of Cockburn  $78,000
City of Cockburn - Cockburn Community Men's Shed  $484,220
City of Cockburn Pipe Band Incorporated  $15,000
City of Fremantle  $45,550
City of Fremantle  $355,000
City of Fremantle  $20,000
City of Fremantle  $2,200,000
City of Greater Geraldton  $28,000
City of Greater Geraldton  $23,350
City of Greater Geraldton  $20,000
City of Greater Geraldton  $7,125
City of Greater Geraldton  $176,709
City of Greater Geraldton - Queens Park Theatre  $76,000
City of Joondalup  $90,000
City of Joondalup  $45,000
City of Joondalup  $46,740
City of Kalgoorlie-Boulder  $100,000
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City of Kalgoorlie-Boulder  $300,000
City of Kalgoorlie-Boulder  $20,000
City of Kalgoorlie-Boulder - Goldfields Arts Centre  $73,000
City of Karratha  $2,000,000
City of Kwinana  $250,000
City of Mandurah  $10,000
City of Mandurah  $10,000
City of Mandurah  $337,000
City of Mandurah  $84,523
City of Mandurah  $10,000
City of Mandurah - Halls Cottage  $49,643
City of Melville  $8,884
City of Melville  $10,725
City of Melville Citizens Relief Fund  $15,000
City of Nedlands  $20,000
City of Perth  $500,000
City of Perth Band Incorporated  $14,918
City of Rockingham  $20,000
City of South Perth  $20,000
City of South Perth  $300,000
City of Stirling  $20,000
City of Stirling - Stirling Womens Centre  $18,000
City of Swan  $20,000
City of Vincent - Beatty Park Leisure Centre Creche  $2,997
City of Wanneroo  $96,000
City of Wanneroo  $30,000
City of Wanneroo  $700,000
Claisebrook Lotteries House Association Incorporated  $138,200
Clontarf Foundation  $15,510
Coalition for Asylum Seekers, Refugees and Detainees Inc  $25,706
Coalition for Asylum Seekers, Refugees and Detainees Inc  $15,000
Coastal District Care Centre Inc  $1,450
Coastal Scottish Pipe Band WA Inc  $13,059
Collie Early Education Inc  $15,118
Collie Senior Citizens and H. A. C. C. Services (INC)  $10,408
Community Living Association Inc  $2,272
Community Living Association Inc  $2,332
Community Vision Incorporated  $1,460
ConnectGroups - Support Groups Association WA Inc  $27,628
Conservation Council of Western Australia  $99,051
Consular Corps of Western Australia Inc  $20,000
Coolgardie Day Celebrations Inc  $15,000
Coolgardie Day Celebrations Inc  $15,000
Council on the Ageing (Western Australia) Incorporated  $37,039

Council on the Ageing (Western Australia) Incorporated  $27,500
Council on the Ageing (Western Australia) Incorporated  $50,000
Country Music Club of Boyup Brook, WA Incorporated  $20,000
Country Women's Association of Western Australia (Inc) - Pemberton Branch  $91,920
Country Women's Association of Western Australia - Murray Districts Branch  $95,742
Cranbrook Tourist and Business Promotion Group  $4,382
Crosslinks Incorporated  $18,878
Crossways Community Services Inc  $65,000
Cue Community Resource Centre Inc  $7,793
Cue Community Resource Centre Inc  $10,000
Curtin University  $21,250
Cystic Fibrosis Western Australia (Inc)  $5,000
Cystic Fibrosis Western Australia (Inc)  $28,040
DADAA Limited  $28,000
Dalwallinu & Districts Agricultural Society Inc.  $2,722
Dalyellup Beach Playgroup Inc  $15,000
Dardanup Bull and Barrel Festival Incorporated  $14,860
Darlington Arts Festival Association Inc  $20,000
Darlington Arts Festival Association Inc  $20,000
Darlington Sports and Recreation Association (WA) Incorporated  $275,000
Deafness Council Western Australia Incorporated  $69,540
Denmark Arts Council  $187,361
Denmark Arts Council  $19,200
Denmark Arts Council  $19,500
Denmark Historical Society (Incorporated)  $3,000
Denmark Sea Rescue Group Inc  $29,762
Depression Support Network Albany Incorporated  $21,984
Derbarl Yerrigan Health Service Incorporated  $44,000
Developmental Disability Council of Western Australia (Inc)  $16,900
Diabetes Association of Western Australia (Inc)  $36,220
Diabetes Association of Western Australia (Inc)  $33,643
Dinosaur Coast Management Group Inc  $13,282
Dongara Community Resource Centre Inc  $9,775
Donnybrook Apple Festival Inc  $15,000
Donnybrook Community Radio Inc  $14,531
Donnybrook Community Resource Centre Inc.  $5,500
Duke of Edinburgh's Award in Australia (WA Division) Incorporated  $25,000
Dumbleyung Events Committee Inc  $9,577
Duncraig Primary School Parents And Citizens' Association Incorporated  $11,443
Dungeon Youth Centre Inc  $12,500
Dunsborough and Districts Progress Association Inc  $12,000
Dunsborough and Districts Progress Association Inc  $3,000
Dutch Aged Care (Western Australia) Inc  $73,195
Earthwise Community Association Inc  $30,000
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East Perth Tiny Tots Playgroup  $13,515
East Pilbara Independence Support Inc  $70,000
Eastern Metropolitan Regional Council  $194,375
Eastern Metropolitan Regional Council  $20,000
Eastern Metropolitan Regional Council  $155,000
Edmund Rice Centre, Mirrabooka Inc  $11,850
El Shaddai Kwinana Christian Fellowship Inc  $18,000
ELBA Inc  $1,223
Elev8 Ministries Inc  $18,600
Ellenbrook Cultural Foundation Incorporated  $5,251
Embroiderers Guild of Western Australia  $15,000
Emmaus Community Incorporated  $206,624
Enable Southwest Inc  $311,071
Environs Kimberley Incorporated  $15,695
Epilepsy Association  $23,000
Escare Incorporated  $51,117
Escare Incorporated  $19,854
Esperance Bay Historical Society (Inc)  $15,000
Esperance Care Services Inc  $25,000
Esperance Community Arts (Inc)  $31,700
Esperance Men In Sheds Incorporated  $21,695
Esperance Potters Club Inc  $3,000
Esperance Senior High School Parents and Citizens' Association Incorporated  $9,656
Esperance Volunteer Sea Search and Rescue Group (Inc.)  $55,914
Exmouth Community Support Group Inc  $45,000
Fair Game Australia Limited  $22,498
Family Planning Association of Western Australia (Inc.)  $151,620
Family Planning Association of Western Australia (Inc.)  $140,111
Feed the Little Children Inc.  $15,000
Fellowship of Australian Writers (Western Australian Section)  $20,308
Festival of Busselton Incorporated  $15,000
Filipino Australian Multicultural Association Incorporated  $6,250
Fishers' With Disabilities Association Incorporated  $23,627
Floreat Toy Library Inc  $11,888
Foothills Information and Referral Service Incorporated  $27,500
FORM Building a State of Creativity Inc  $133,515
Foster Care Association of Western Australia  $77,102
Foundation For Young Australians  $640,000
Foundation Housing Ltd  $500,000
Foundation Housing Ltd  $9,000
Foundation Housing Ltd  $60,000
Freedom City Church (Fremantle) Incorporated  $10,000
Fremantle Arts Centre Press  $37,610
Fremantle Bridge Club Inc  $10,297

Fremantle Multicultural Centre Inc  $39,750
Fremantle Volunteer Sea Rescue Group Incorporated  $100,000
Friends of Edenvale (Inc)  $2,107
Friends of Kings Park (Inc.)  $100,000
Friends of Kings Park (Inc.)  $1,260,000
Friends of L'Arche, Perth Incorporated  $2,000
Friends of Rockingham Arts Centre Inc  $4,705
Full Circle Therapies Inc  $75,504
Furqan Islamic Association of Western Australia Inc  $10,801
Gascoyne in May Inc  $37,710
Geraldton Resource Centre Incorporated  $80,000
Geraldton Volunteer Marine Rescue Group (Inc)  $61,289
Gillamii Centre (Inc)  $13,070
Gingin - Chittering Lions Club Inc  $18,000
Gingin District Community Resource Centre Inc  $4,715
Girl Guides Western Australia Inc  $100,442
Gnujurung Festival Aboriginal Corporation  $15,000
Goldfields Child Care Centre Incorporated  $36,106
Goldfields Child Care Centre Incorporated  $4,500
Goldfields Tourism Network Association Inc  $35,000
Good News Broadcasters Inc.  $20,000
Gosnells Community Legal Centre (Inc)  $60,000
Gosnells Community Legal Centre (Inc)  $4,500
Grace Care Inc  $4,000
Grace Christian School Emergency Services Cadets Unit  $14,696
Graham (Polly) Farmer Foundation Incorporated  $41,082
Graylands Hospital Volunteer Service Inc  $16,500
Green Skills Inc  $18,000
Green Skills Inc - Albany  $194,300
Growing Change Australia Ltd.  $10,200
Gujarati Samaj of Western Australia (Inc.)  $8,500
Haemophilia Foundation Australia Inc  $16,900
Harvey Community Resource Centre Inc.  $17,000
Harvey Health and Community Services Group (Inc)  $94,575
Harvey Mainstreet (Inc.)  $20,000
Harvey Senior Citizens' Centre Committee (Inc)  $54,672
Health Communication Resources Inc.  $42,743
Heart Kids (W.A.)  $22,970
Hedland Well Women's Centre Incorporated  $15,000
Hellenic Community of Western Australia  $20,000
Helping Out People Everywhere Incorporated  $23,373
Helping Out People Everywhere Incorporated  $25,000
Heritage Perth Inc  $23,400
Hilton Harvest Community Garden Incorporated  $4,416
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Holyoake Australian Institute for Alcohol and Drug Addiction Resolutions Inc  $40,921
Honey Festival Inc  $5,909
Hope Community Services Inc  $1,246,245
Hopetoun Community Resource Centre Inc  $15,781
Hopetoun Playgroup Incorporated  $8,043
House Darksun Inc  $13,200
Humpty Dumpty Toy Library Inc  $6,126
Huntington's WA (Inc)  $7,700
ICEA Ltd  $13,000
Immunisation Alliance of Western Australia Incorporated  $11,900
In Town Centre Incorporated  $10,000
In Town Centre Incorporated  $4,487
Incest Survivor's Association (Inc.)  $55,595
Inclusion WA Inc  $198,000
Independent Living Centre of Western Australia Inc.  $965,099
Independent Living Centre of Western Australia Inc.  $2,369,652
Indian Blue Chorus Inc  $15,000
Indian Society of Western Australia  $20,000
Indigenous Community Volunteers Limited  $24,188
Institute for Respiratory Health Inc  $10,000
Intework Inc  $1,184,824
Iranian Association Inc - Iranian Community of Western Australia  $1,940
Irishtown Bush Fire Brigade  $5,200
Ishar Multicultural Women's Health Centre Inc  $60,000
Jacaranda Community Centre Inc  $70,000
Jacaranda Gardens Lifestyle Village - Social Club  $7,500
Jade Lewis and Friends Inc  $69,242
Jain Community of Western Australia (Inc)  $11,000
Japan Festival Association in Perth Inc  $15,000
Japanese Animation Fans of Western Australia Incorporated  $4,467
Jaycees Community Foundation  $78,913
Jewish Care WA (Inc)  $20,722
Jewish Care WA (Inc)  $19,000
Joondalup Christmas Lunch  $10,871
Joongari House/Wyndham Family Support Incorporated  $5,000
Jungarni-Jutiya Indigenous Corporation  $78,371
Jurien Bay Community Men's Shed Inc  $6,163
Jurien Bay Volunteer Marine Rescue Group Inc  $15,836
Kalamunda Districts Toy Library  $8,184
Kalamunda Mountain Bike Trails Association Inc.  $83,532
Kalbarri Development Association Incorporated  $20,007
Kalbarri Mens Shed Inc  $14,656
Kalbarri Occasional Child Care Incorporated  $22,306
Kalbarri State Emergency Service Unit (Inc.)  $2,767

Kalgoorlie Boulder Volunteer Centre Inc  $22,338
Kalgoorlie Bridge Club Incorporated  $4,935
Kalgoorlie Creche Incorporated  $114,800
Kalgoorlie-Boulder Racing Club Incorporated  $39,430
Kalgoorlie-Boulder Urban Landcare Group (Inc.)  $2,523
Kalumburu Aboriginal Corporation  $17,342
Kardinya Murdoch Playgroup Association Incorporated  $12,491
Karratha Emergency Relief Organisation Incorporated  $40,000
Karratha Family Centre (Inc) - Humpty Dumpty Toy Library  $5,139
Karrayili Adult Education Centre (Aboriginal Corporation)  $13,434
Katanning Agricultural Pastoral and Horticultural Society (Incorporated)  $12,665
Katanning Agricultural Pastoral and Horticultural Society (Incorporated)  $20,000
Katanning Land Conservation District Committee  $53,835
Katanning Land Conservation District Committee  $23,926
Katanning Men's Shed Incorporated  $1,537
Katanning Regional Business Association Incorporated  $16,449
Katanning Regional Emergency Accommodation Centre Inc.  $98,595
Katanning Senior High School Bush Ranger Cadets  $9,179
Katharine Susannah Prichard Foundation Inc  $4,218
Kids' Camps Inc  $39,190
Kimberley Aboriginal Law and Culture Centre (Aboriginal Corporation)  $80,000
Kimberley Aboriginal Law and Culture Centre (Aboriginal Corporation)  $40,000
Kimberley Aboriginal Medical Services Limited  $144,679
Kimberley Aboriginal Medical Services Limited  $30,000
Kimberley Institute Limited  $100,000
Kimberley Institute Limited  $25,400
Kimberley Stolen Generation Aboriginal Corporation  $87,589
Kingsley Community Carols Festival  $11,580
Kulin District High School Parents and Citizens' Association Incorporated  $3,843
Kulungah-Myah Family Centre Inc  $10,400
Kunawarritji (Aboriginal Corporation)  $30,000
Kununurra Neighbourhood House Incorporated  $15,000
Kununurra Volunteer Fire and Rescue Service  $4,484
Kurdish Association of Western Australia (KAWA) Inc  $1,900
La Casa Dei Bambini Montessori Playgroup  $2,558
Ladies Probus Club of Booragoon W.A. (Inc.)  $1,072
Lake Clifton-Herron Progress and Sporting Association Inc  $23,460
Lake Joondalup Baptist College Inc - Emergency Services Cadet Unit  $11,900
Lake King Progress Association Incorporated  $2,850
Lakeside Village Social Club Inc  $7,759
Lakeside Village Social Club Inc  $1,485
Lancelin Volunteer Fire Brigade  $15,000
Law Access Limited  $266,000
Law Society of Western Australia  $68,318
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Leading Youth Forward Incorporated  $42,965
Leederville Connect Inc  $20,000
Leschenault Progress Association Incorporated  $7,000
Lesmurdie and Districts Community Association (Inc).  $15,000
Life Without Barriers  $2,500
Life Without Barriers  $500,000
Life Without Barriers  $7,500
Lions Club of Dalyellup Inc  $3,767
Lions Club of Rockingham Incorporated  $15,000
Lions Club of South Perth  $6,222
Live Church Inc  $10,000
Living Proud Incorporated  $14,220
Living Stone Foundation Inc  $92,292
Local Drug Action Groups Incorporated  $48,155
Loveland For Wildlife Inc  $9,673
Lucy Saw Centre Association  $27,000
Maccabi Contract Bridge Club  $4,950
Macular Disease Foundation Australia  $39,800
Maida Vale Baptist Church Inc  $2,500
Malayali Association of Perth Incorporated  $1,941
Mandurah Murray Mayday Inc  $7,270
Mandurah Performing Arts Incorporated  $100,000
Mandurah Performing Arts Incorporated  $112,000
Mandurah Volunteer Marine Rescue Group (Incorporated)  $54,994
Manjimup Chamber of Commerce and Industry (Inc)  $18,800
Manjimup Family Centre Inc  $192,030
Margaret River Community Resource Centre Inc - Community Childcare Centre  $33,860
Margaret River Community Resource Centre Incorporated  $8,000
Maritime Archaeological Association of Western Australia (Inc.)  $13,500
Marnin Bowa Dumbara Aboriginal Corporation - Derby Family Healing Centre  $8,000
Marnin Bowa Dumbara Aboriginal Corporation - Family & Domestic Violence Support & Outreach Service  $10,000
Marnja Jarndu Womens Refuge Incorporated  $16,750
Masters Swimming Western Australia Inc.  $20,000
Masti Bollywood Dance Group  $9,121
Mature Adults Learning Association Incorporated  $1,500
McAuley Ministries Limited - St Catherine's House of Hospitality  $63,259
Meath Mews Trigg Residents Association (Inc)  $3,086
Meerilinga Young Children's Foundation Inc  $50,580
Men's Health and Wellbeing WA Inc  $11,832
Men's Outreach Service Inc  $47,629
Mental Health Law Centre (WA) Inc  $129,033
Merredin Community Resource Centre Inc  $40,969
Metropolitan Migrant Resource Centre Inc  $40,000
Metropolitan Migrant Resource Centre Inc  $25,000

Midland Information, Debt and Legal Advocacy Service Inc  $6,300
Midland Information, Debt and Legal Advocacy Service Inc  $30,000
Midway Community Care  $11,360
Midwest Multicultural Association (WA) Incorporated  $8,220
Mingenew Arts and Crafts Council Inc  $3,100
Mingenew Midwest Expo Inc.  $15,200
Mission Australia  $63,236
Moore Catchment Council (Inc)  $3,000
Mothers of Preschoolers (MOPS) Australia  $10,499
Motor Museum of Western Australia Pty Ltd acting as Trustee for the Motor Museum of Western Australia Trust  $711,990
Mount Helena Residents and Ratepayers Progress Association Incorporated  $12,915
Mount Lawley Neighbourhood Learning Centre  $7,809
Mt Hawthorn Business And Community Group Inc  $15,000
Mt Marshall & Districts Agricultural Society (Inc.)  $8,238
Mukinbudin Planning and Development Group (Inc)  $11,124
Mullaloo Surf Life Saving Club  $675,000
Mullewa Community Resource Centre  $3,571
Mullewa District Agricultural Society  $8,450
Multicultural Services Centre of Western Australia Incorporated  $155,000
Multiple Sclerosis Society of Western Australia (Incorporated)  $41,860
Murray Districts Aboriginal Association Inc  $52,833
Muscular Dystrophy Association of Western Australia (Incorporated)  $12,889
Museum of Freedom And Tolerance-Western Australia Limited  $15,000
Museums Australia Incorporated  $28,530
Mustard Seed Community Hub Inc  $242,000
My Place Foundation (Inc.)  $25,000
Myalup Community Association Incorporated  $5,800
N Class Destroyers Association Western Australian Branch (Inc)  $9,612
NAIDOC Perth Incorporated  $30,000
Nannup Garden Village Inc  $20,000
Nannup Music Club Incorporated  $20,000
Nardine Wimmins Refuge  $20,000
Narrogin Cottage Homes Incorporated  $6,225
Narrogin Environmental Action Team (Inc)  $1,140
Narrogin Spring Festival Inc  $7,996
National Council of Women of Western Australia (Inc)  $7,862
National Disability Services Limited - National DisabilityServices Western Australia  $21,705
National Disability Services Limited - National DisabilityServices Western Australia  $70,200
National Disability Services Limited - National DisabilityServices Western Australia  $516,284
National Disability Services Limited - National DisabilityServices Western Australia  $21,346
National Heart Foundation of Australia (Western Australian Division)  $20,660
National Trust of Australia (WA) - Ellensbrook Interpretation Project  $676,291
Nepali Association of Western Australia (NAWA) Incorporated  $5,260
New Life Welfare (WA) Incorporated  $35,000
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Newman Women's Shelter Inc  $15,000
Newton Moore Senior High School Bush Rangers Cadets  $8,702
Ngalla Maya Aboriginal Corporation  $10,093
Ngarluma and Yindjibarndi Foundation Limited  $875,000
Ngnowar-Aerwah Aboriginal Corporation  $89,363
Ngunga Womens Group Aboriginal Corporation  $81,500
Nine Mile Aboriginal Corporation  $15,000
Ningaloo Whaleshark Festival Inc  $15,000
Nintirri Centre (Incorporated)  $49,000
Norseman Gold Fever Festival  $15,000
North Perth Business and Community Association Inc  $20,000
Northampton District Agricultural Society Inc  $5,000
Northampton Old School Community Initiative Incorporated  $25,931
Northam's Avon Descent Association  $50,000
Northcliffe Pioneer Museum Incorporated  $2,100
Northcliffe Pioneer Museum Incorporated  $10,500
Northern Agricultural Catchments Council Incorporated  $4,909
Northern Districts Bridge Club Incorporated  $3,500
Northern Suburbs Community Legal Centre Inc  $121,074
Northern Suburbs Model Railway Group Inc  $2,713
Nungarin Community Development Group - Nungarin Community and Mens Shed  $66,500
Nyamba Buru Yawuru Ltd  $3,000,000
Old Kobeelyans Association  $12,468
Older Women's Network (W.A.) Inc  $13,350
Omega Pentecostal Church Inc  $26,735
One World Centre Inc  $87,000
Open House Perth  $35,000
Orana House (Inc)  $10,000
Orchid Judging Panel of Western Australia  $2,785
Ord Valley Events Inc  $19,929
Organisation of African Community of Western Australia Inc  $18,397
Outdance Incorporated  $5,669
Paediatric Nursing Services Limited  $15,000
Palace Theatre Recreation Centre Inc.  $5,000
Pannawonica Volunteer Fire and Rescue Service Inc.  $5,026
Parents' and Friends' Federation of Western Australia (Inc)  $38,404
Parents Of Children With Special Needs Inc  $50,000
Parish of Sts Apostles Peter and Paul Church  $11,454
Parkerville Children and Youth Care Incorporated  $19,518
Parkerville Children and Youth Care Incorporated  $232,431
Parnngurr Aboriginal Corporation  $100,965
Partners of Veterans Association of Western Australia Inc  $12,350
Pat Thomas House Inc  $20,000
Pat Thomas House Inc  $56,114

Patricia Giles Centre Inc  $10,000
Paupiyala Tjarutja Aboriginal Corporation  $1,245,000
PEEDAC Pty Ltd  $154,175
Peel Community Kitchen Incorporated  $2,399
Peel Trails Group (Inc)  $9,155
Pemberton Visitor Centre Inc  $25,000
People With Disabilities (W.A.)  $14,680
Perenjori Womens Playgroup  $5,282
Perth Christian Life Centre Inc  $401,772
Perth Diocesan Trustees - Anglican Parish of Bullcreek-Leeming  $15,000
Perth Diocesan Trustees - Anglican Parish of Gosnells Welfare & Community Services  $15,000
Perth Fashion Concepts Incorporated  $87,500
Perth Finnish School Inc.  $13,414
Perth Hebrew Congregation Inc  $12,000
Perth Home Care Services Inc  $728,907
Perth Inner City Youth Service Inc  $15,500
Perth International Jazz Festival Inc  $85,000
Perth Metro Pipe Band Inc  $15,000
Perth Swing Dance Society Incorporated  $7,700
PetRescue Ltd  $9,500
Pilbara Community Legal Service Incorporated  $10,000
Pilbara Regional Council  $70,000
Pingelly Community Resource Centre Inc  $8,000
Plantagenet Village Homes Inc  $4,686
Playgroup WA (Inc)  $101,155
Playgroup WA (Inc)  $12,474
PortCare Incorporated  $15,000
Pregnancy Assistance (Incorporated)  $7,500
Probus Club of Carine-Duncraig Incorporated  $1,600
Probus Club of Denmark Incorporated  $2,187
Probus Club of Eaton Inc.  $1,605
Probus Club of Fremantle WA Inc  $2,367
Propel Youth Arts WA Incorporated  $34,500
Puntukurnu Aboriginal Medical Service Aboriginal Corporation  $309,092
Quairading and Surrounding Districts Agricultural Society (Inc.)  $5,000
Quairading Tourist and Tidy Town Committee  $5,000
Ravensthorpe Regional Arts Council  $3,662
Reconciliation Western Australia Inc  $180,000
Relationships Australia (Western Australia) Inc  $1,879,243
Residents Committee of Willow Creek Mews Retirement Village  $5,531
Retirees WA (Inc)  $11,000
Returned and Services League of Aust. WA Branch Inc - Northampton  $21,676
Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Incorporated  $1,053,641
Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Incorporated  $106,948
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Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Incorporated  $22,000
Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Incorporated - Armadale Sub Branch  $14,999
Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Incorporated - Bedford-Morley  $12,955
Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Incorporated - Esperance Sub Branch  $120,825
Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Incorporated - Esperance Sub Branch  $13,000
Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Incorporated - Three Springs - Arrino Sub Branch  $11,100
Rise Network Inc  $12,500
Rise Network Inc  $179,635
Rise Network Inc  $37,500
River Blossom Education Association Inc  $15,000
River Conservation Society Incorporated  $2,287
Riverview Community Services Inc  $65,000
Rockingham & Districts Toy Library  $10,000
Rockingham Early Learning and Child Care Centre Inc  $34,101
Rockingham Lotteries House Inc  $119,880
Rockingham Social and Dance Club Inc  $1,778
Rocky Bay Incorporated  $15,000
Roleystone Community Garden Incorporated  $40,962
Roleystone Men's Community Shed Incorporated  $199,631
Roleystone Neighbourhood Family Centre Incorporated  $10,793
Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth - Identitywa  $7,459
Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth - Identitywa  $167,750
Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth - Identitywa  $1,608,000
Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth - St Joseph Parish Northam  $10,000
Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth - The Shopfront  $15,000
Roman Catholic Bishop of Geraldton - Centacare Family Services  $55,000
Rossmoyne Probus Club Western Australia  $3,407
Rossmoyne Senior High School Bush Rangers WA  $6,107
Rotary Club of Applecross Inc  $12,000
Rotary Club of Applecross Inc  $12,000
Rotary Club of Esperance Bay Inc  $6,000
Rotary Club of Mandurah Districts Western Australia Incorporated  $5,000
Rotary Club of Matilda Bay Incorporated  $10,000
Rotary Club of North Perth (Inc)  $20,000
Rotary Club of Willetton (Inc)  $14,000
Rotary International District 9465 Inc  $5,900
Royal Commonwealth Society, Western Australia Branch  $8,506
Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia (Western Operations)  $3,900,000
Royal Life Saving Society - Western Australia Inc  $639,817
Royal Western Australian Historical Society Incorporated  $141,839
Royal Western Australian Historical Society Incorporated  $11,302
Royal Western Australian Historical Society Incorporated  $8,554
Roy's Retreat Inc.  $68,398
Ruah Community Services  $25,000

Ruah Community Services  $206,307
Ruah Community Services- Wadjuk Boodja Gateway  $209,646
Russian Ethnic Community and Youth Development Association Rusichi Incorporated  $8,805
S.O.S. Supporting Our Seniors and Disabled Inc  $5,500
Salvation Army (Western Australia) Property Trust  $210,400
Sandalwood Arts and Crafts Inc  $2,098
Sandgropers Sunshine Toy Library Incorporated  $12,197
Save the Children Australia As Trustee for Save the Children Australia Trust  $282,888
Save The Children Australia Trust - East Kimberley  $36,468
School for Parents Association Inc  $2,000
ScreenWest Inc  $7,603,000
Second Harvest Australia Inc  $90,000
Second Harvest Australia Inc  $42,461
Secret Harbour Residents Association Inc  $15,000
Seniors' Recreation Council of WA (Inc)  $3,182
Seniors' Recreation Council of WA (Inc)  $30,000
Senses Australia  $2,498
Senses Australia  $56,026
Serpentine-Jarrahdale Community Resource Centre Incorporated  $19,309
Serpentine-Jarrahdale Grammar School (Inc.) - Police Cadets Unit  $15,000
Settlers Lakeside Village Ravenswood Residents' Association Incorporated  $4,743
Seventh-day Adventist Church (Western Australian Conference) Limited - Livingston Seventh-day Adventist Church  $6,900
Share & Care Community Services Group Incorporated  $94,000
Share and Care Community Services Group Incorporated - Jacaranda House  $30,162
Shelley Primary River Rangers  $14,126
Shelter WA Inc  $50,000
Shinju Matsuri Inc  $20,000
Shire of Augusta-Margaret River  $4,964
Shire of Augusta-Margaret River  $70,000
Shire of Augusta-Margaret River  $1,393,126
Shire of Boddington  $20,000
Shire of Boddington  $46,035
Shire of Brookton  $33,500
Shire of Broome  $50,410
Shire of Broome  $25,000
Shire of Bruce Rock  $12,487
Shire of Capel  $1,705,755
Shire of Carnarvon  $7,000
Shire of Carnarvon  $60,000
Shire of Carnarvon - Carnarvon Civic Centre  $45,990
Shire of Chittering  $16,500
Shire of Coolgardie  $87,755
Shire of Coolgardie  $15,887
Shire of Corrigin  $40,284
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Shire of Cranbrook  $26,500
Shire of Cue  $305,000
Shire of Dalwallinu  $326,550
Shire of Dandaragan  $100,000
Shire of Denmark  $100,018
Shire of Denmark  $100,000
Shire of Derby-West Kimberley  $12,500
Shire of Derby-West Kimberley  $50,000
Shire of Donnybrook-Balingup  $45,000
Shire of Donnybrook-Balingup  $7,000
Shire of Dundas  $92,000
Shire of Dundas  $51,947
Shire of Dundas  $20,000
Shire of Dundas  $130,000
Shire of Esperance  $64,000
Shire of Esperance  $415,000
Shire of Exmouth  $55,509
Shire of Exmouth  $45,000
Shire of Gingin  $9,500
Shire of Gnowangerup  $32,064
Shire of Gnowangerup  $180,945
Shire of Harvey- Australind Senior Citizens Centre  $90,000
Shire of Irwin  $15,000
Shire of Jerramungup  $30,592
Shire of Kalamunda  $20,000
Shire of Katanning  $20,000
Shire of Katanning  $2,000,000
Shire of Kent  $51,243
Shire of Kent - Burston Park  $49,784
Shire of Kulin  $10,535
Shire of Laverton  $678,262
Shire of Leonora  $20,000
Shire of Manjimup  $6,700
Shire of Meekatharra  $20,000
Shire of Meekatharra  $57,812
Shire of Meekatharra  $20,000
Shire of Menzies  $206,000
Shire of Merredin  $4,000
Shire of Merredin - Cummins Theatre  $67,186
Shire of Moora  $350,000
Shire of Mount Magnet  $20,000
Shire of Mundaring  $16,541
Shire of Mundaring  $3,500
Shire of Mundaring  $43,600

Shire of Mundaring - Boya Community Hub  $1,250,000
Shire of Murray  $20,000
Shire of Murray  $150,000
Shire of Murray  $11,528
Shire of Murray  $20,648
Shire of Murray  $90,000
Shire of Nannup  $43,728
Shire of Narembeen  $75,840
Shire of Narrogin  $18,392
Shire of Narrogin  $2,400
Shire of Narrogin  $274,460
Shire of Northam  $95,000
Shire of Northampton  $1,335
Shire of Northampton Northampton Child Care  $5,280
Shire of Peppermint Grove  $11,664
Shire of Peppermint Grove  $14,245
Shire of Perenjori  $20,000
Shire of Pingelly - Pingelly Recreation and Cultural Centre  $1,000,000
Shire of Quairading  $29,901
Shire of Ravensthorpe  $42,974
Shire of Serpentine-Jarrahdale  $8,266
Shire of Three Springs  $21,450
Shire of Trayning  $5,000
Shire of Upper Gascoyne - Gascoyne Junction Bush Fire Brigade  $14,000
Shire of West Arthur  $200,000
Shire of Wickepin  $36,168
Shire of Wyalkatchem  $8,875
Shire of Wyndham-East Kimberley  $25,000
Shire of Yilgarn - Yilgarn History Museum  $13,128
So Change Inc.  $9,665
Somerville Playgroup  $10,000
South East Regional Centre for Urban Landcare (Inc)  $9,459
South East Regional Centre for Urban Landcare (Inc)  $53,542
South Lake Child Care Centre Inc  $89,364
South Lake Ottey Family & Neighbourhood Centre Incorporated  $52,500
South Perth Bowling Club (Inc.)  $4,500
South Perth Community Resources Inc  $175,000
South West Autism Network Inc.  $8,500
South West Capes Bridle Trails Association Incorporated  $15,000
South West Counselling Inc  $5,750
South West Opera Company (Inc)  $11,198
Southcare (Incorporated)  $8,391
Southcare (Incorporated)  $5,000
Southcare (Incorporated)  $80,000
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Grants approved to the WA community
Southern Aboriginal Corporation  $16,650
Southern Cross Village Success Residents' Committee  $4,760
Southern Districts Bands Inc  $11,500
Spiers Centre Inc  $185,298
Spirit of the Streets Choir (Inc)  $34,000
Splitperth Group Inc.  $10,000
Sport Aircraft Builders Club of WA (Inc)  $10,000
Spring in the Grove Inc  $8,322
St Barbara's Festival Incorporated  $20,000
St Basil's Aged Care Services in Western Australia (Vasileias) Inc - Dianella  $1,500,000
St Ives Centro Residents' Association Inc.  $1,130
St Ives Mandurah Residents' Association Inc  $14,600
St John Ambulance Western Australia Ltd - Lake Grace  $197,417
St Patrick's Community Support Centre Limited  $169,402
St Patrick's Community Support Centre Limited  $200,746
St Patrick's Community Support Centre Limited  $24,505
St Patrick's Day WA Inc  $15,000
St Vincent De Paul Society (WA) Incorporated  $800,000
St Vincent De Paul Society (WA) Incorporated  $5,700,000
St. Bartholomew's House Inc  $4,500
St. Bartholomew's House Inc  $41,000
Starick Services Inc  $50,000
Stirling Carols by Candlelight  $10,816
Subiaco Play Centre (Inc)  $15,000
Subiaco Toy Library  $11,029
Sun City Care Incorporated  $10,000
Swan Emergency Accommodation  $35,000
Swan Guildford Historical Society  $2,200
Swan Valley Happenings Inc  $4,309
SWIG (South West Indian Group) Inc  $10,000
Tambellup Community Resource Centre Inc  $57,500
Tammin Economy Shop Cooinda Association T.E.S.C.A. (Inc)  $5,500
Telethon Juvenile Diabetes Family Centre Limited  $40,845
Temple of Fine Arts Inc  $20,000
Theatre Kimberley Incorporated  $14,659
Therapy Focus Incorporated  $10,000
Thomas Perrott Village Residents Committee  $2,053
Thommo's Community Garden Inc  $35,166
Tivoli Club of WA Inc  $3,000
Tjirrkarli Aboriginal Corporation  $22,929
Toodyay Festivals Inc  $15,000
Toodyay Men's Shed Inc.  $199,504
Toodyay Playgroup Association Incorporated  $14,869
Torbay Agricultural Community Hall Incorporated  $14,236

Town of Bassendean  $20,000
Town of Cambridge  $19,257
Town of Cambridge  $307,040
Town of Claremont  $20,000
Town of East Fremantle  $20,000
Town of Mosman Park  $15,016
Town of Port Hedland  $20,000
Town of Port Hedland  $20,000
Town of Port Hedland  $14,705
Town of Victoria Park  $20,000
Training Ship Canning Unit Committee  $11,570
Uni Camp For Kids Incorporated  $88,712
Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust (WA) - Finucare  $65,000
Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust (WA) - Uniting Aid  $115,000
Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust (WA) - Uniting Outreach Mandurah  $13,000
UnitingCare West  $180,000
UnitingCare West  $225,000
University of the Third Age, the University of Western Australia Incorporated  $3,600
University of Western Australia  $40,000
University of Western Australia  $3,200,000
University of Western Australia - Centre for Social Impact  $40,000
Upper Gascoyne Land Conservation District Committee  $11,683
Uthando Project Inc  $4,390
UWA - Perth International Arts Festival  $7,603,000
Variety WA Incorporated  $20,000
Variety WA Incorporated  $20,000
Vic Park Collective Inc  $6,429
Victoria Park Centre for the Arts Inc  $12,600
Vietnam Veterans Association of Australia W.A. Branch Incorporated  $4,982
Vietnamese Community in Australia / Western Australia Chapter Incorporated  $15,000
View Clubs of Australia Zone WA 01 $1,300
Volunteer Centre of Western Australia (Inc)  $309,074
Volunteer Home Support Inc  $24,000
Volunteer Marine Rescue Service Port Hedland Inc  $12,523
Volunteer Marine Rescue Shark Bay Inc  $54,490
Volunteer Marine Rescue Western Australia (Inc)  $131,830
W.A. Council on Addictions - Rick Hammersley Centre Therapeutic Community  $150,000
W.A. Disabled Sports Association  $117,350
W.A. Disabled Sports Association  $137,057
WA No Interest Loans Network Incorporated  $48,720
Wairua Tipuna Indigenous Performing Arts Group  $8,664
Walpole Community Resource Centre (Inc)  $3,507
Wanneroo Community Men's Shed (Inc)  $400,000
Wanneroo Repertory  $25,000
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Waratah Christian Community Inc  $7,500
Waratah Christian Community Inc  $14,333
Waratah Support Centre (South West Region) Inc  $16,000
Warmun Art Aboriginal Corporation  $2,465
Waroona Agricultural Society Incorporated  $10,580
Waroona Community Resource Centre Inc  $25,046
Waroona Community Resource Centre Inc  $20,000
Waroona Playgroup Incorporated  $14,893
Wellstead Community Resource Centre Inc  $18,839
Wembley Playgroup Inc  $1,111
Wembley Playgroup Inc  $15,000
Wembley Toy Library Incorporated  $9,554
Wembley Ware Society Inc  $2,100
West Arthur Community Resource Centre Incorporated  $8,500
West Australian Ballet Company  $150,000
West Australian Folk Federation Inc  $15,000
West Australian Men's Gathering Inc  $10,720
West Australian Model Railway Club (Inc)  $7,864
West Australian Music Industry Association Incorporated  $15,000
West Australian Symphony Orchestra Pty Ltd  $255,000
West Australian Symphony Orchestra Pty Ltd  $5,000
WestAus Crisis and Welfare Services Inc  $50,000
Western Australia Kannada Sangha Inc  $6,405
Western Australia Telugu Association Inc  $15,000
Western Australian Adult Literacy Council Incorporated  $102,945
Western Australian AIDS Council (Inc.)  $5,000
Western Australian Association for Mental Health (Inc)  $21,000
Western Australian Association for Mental Health (Inc)  $23,200
Western Australian Association for Mental Health (Inc)  $48,600
Western Australian Association of the Deaf Incorporated  $15,000
Western Australian Association of Toy Libraries Incorporated  $11,250
Western Australian Council of Social Service Incorporated  $302,676
Western Australian Council of Social Service Incorporated  $174,549
Western Australian Council of Social Service Incorporated  $74,688
Western Australian Council of State School Organisations  $35,000
Western Australian Cricket Association  $30,900
Western Australian Genealogical Society  $2,850
Western Australian Mens Shed Association Inc  $33,019
Western Australian Motor Industry Foundation Inc  $85,450
Western Australian Network of Alcohol and Other Drug Agencies Incorporated  $30,000
Western Australian Opera Company Incorporated  $250,000
Western Australian Regional U3A, Mandurah City, Incorporated  $5,199
Western Australian Sikh Band (Inc)  $14,795
Western Australian Sports Federation  $25,000

Western Australian Substance Users' Association Incorporated  $95,000
Western Australian Volunteer Fire and Rescue Services Association (Inc)  $164,560
Western Australia's Individualised Services Inc.  $14,900
Wheelchair Sports WA Association Incorporated  $209,617
White Lion Inc.  $10,000
Whitford Church of Christ (Inc)  $30,000
Whitford Church of Christ (Inc)  $1,000,000
Whitford Senior Citizens Club (Inc)  $4,702
Whitfords Rainbow Toy Library Incorporated  $6,750
Wild Horses Kimberley Inc  $7,464
Wilinggin Aboriginal Corporation  $30,000
Willetton Community Garden Association Inc  $15,000
Willetton Toy Library Association Incorporated  $2,105
William Langford Community House Incorporated  $59,500
William Langford Community House Incorporated  $7,195
Williams Gateway Expo (Inc)  $15,000
Wilson Park Japanese Playgroup  $8,432
Windmill Community Newspaper Incorporated  $9,000
Winun Ngari Aboriginal Corporation  $33,587
Women's Council for Domestic and Family Violence Services (WA) Inc  $14,304
Women's Council for Domestic and Family Violence Services (WA) Inc  $14,645
Women's Council for Domestic and Family Violence Services (WA) Inc  $20,000
Women's Health Care Association  $40,000
Woodlake Playgroup Inc  $4,384
Woodturners Association of Western Australia (Inc)  $5,475
Woodturners Association of Western Australia (Inc)  $7,500
World Wide Fund for Nature Australia  $589,000
Wyalkatchem District High School Parents And Citizens' Association Incorporated  $4,323
Yirra Yaakin Aboriginal Corporation  $12,150
Yongergnow Incorporated  $5,850
York Community Resource Centre Inc  $8,846
Youth Affairs Council of Western Australia  $20,000
Youth Affairs Council of Western Australia  $77,400
Youth Futures WA Inc  $23,597
Youth Involvement Council Incorporated  $59,538
Youth Involvement Council Incorporated  $14,355
Zero2Hero Inc.  $3,337
Zig Zag Community Arts Inc  $19,903
Zonta House Women's Refuge Inc  $23,000
963 $118,860,557
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